.
CRTRA-

CAPITAL REGION

TRANSPORTATION PLANNINGJAGENCY
‘,’
7

or e

CRTPA BOARD

MEETING OF MONDAY, FEBRUARY 19, 2024 AT 1:30 PM

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE COMMISSION CHAMBERS
300 S. ADAMS STREET
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32301

MISSION STATEMENT

“The mission of the CRTPA is to act as the principal forum for collective transportation policy discussions that results in the
development of a long range transportation plan which creates an integrated regional multimodal transportation network
that supports sustainable development patterns and promotes economic growth.”

FINAL AGENDA

Citizens wishing to provide input at the CRTPA meeting may:

(1) Provide comments in person at the meeting. Speakers are requested to limit their
comments to three (3) minutes; or

(2) Submit written comments prior to the meeting at http://crtpa.org/contact-us/ by providing
comments in the “Email Us” portion of the page before 5:00 p.m. on Friday, February 16.
This will allow time for comments to be provided to CRTPA members in advance of the
meeting. Comments submitted after this time (up to the time of the meeting) will be
accepted and included in the official record of the meeting; or

(3) Provide live comments during the meeting virtually by registering before 5:00 p.m. on
Friday, February 16 at http://crtpa.org/contact-us/ and noting your desire to provide
comments via video in the “Email Us” portion of the page along with the agenda item or
issue your wish to discuss. You will be contacted by CRTPA staff and provided with a link to
virtually access the meeting and provide your comment during the meeting. Speakers are
requested to limit their comments to three (3) minutes.

The public is invited to view the meeting’s live broadcast on
https://www.talgov.com/cotnews/wcot.aspx or Comcast Channel 13 (WCOT-13).

If you have a disability requiring accommodations, please contact the Capital Region Transportation Planning
Agency at (850) 891-8630. The telephone number of the Florida Relay TDD Service is # 711.

“Public Participation is solicited without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability, or family status. Persons who
require special accommodations under the Americans With Disabilities Act, or persons who require translation services (free of charge)
should contact the CRTPA Title VI Coordinator, Suzanne Lex, four days in advance of the meeting at 850-891-8627
(Suzanne.Lex@crtpa,org”) and for the hearing impaired, telephone 711 or 800-955-8771 (TDY).”

“La participacion publica se solicita sin distincion de raza, color, nacionalidad, edad, sexo, religion, discapacidad o estado familiar. Las
personas que requieran adaptaciones especiales en virtud de la Ley de Americanos con Discapacidades, o las personas que requieran
servicios de traduccion (sin cargo) deben comunicarse con Suzanne Lex, CRTPA Coordinadora del Titulo VI, al 850-891-8627
Suzanne.lex@crtpa.org) y para las personas con discapacidad auditiva, teléfono 711 o 800-955-8771 (TDY ) cuatro dias antes de la
reunion.



mailto:Suzanne.Lex@crtpa,org
mailto:Suzanne.lex@crtpa.org
http://crtpa.org/contact-us/
http://crtpa.org/contact-us/
https://www.talgov.com/cotnews/wcot.aspx

February 19, 2024 CRTPA Board Meeting Agenda Page 2

1. CALL To ORDER AND RoLL CALL
2. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS
3. PuBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS NOT APPEARING ON THE AGENDA

This portion of the agenda is provided to allow for public input on general CRTPA issues that are
not included on the meeting’s agenda. Speakers are requested to limit their comments to three
(3) minutes.

q, CONSENT AGENDA

A. Minutes of the November 21 CRTPA Meeting
B. Citizens Multimodal Advisory Committee (CMAC) Appointment
C. Executive Director’s Quarterly Timesheets Approval

5. CONSENT ITEMS PULLED FOR DISCUSSION

6. RoLL CALL VOTE AGENDA ITEMS

A. Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 - FY 2028 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Amendment

This item seeks Board ratification of an amendment to the FY 2024— FY 2028 Transportation
Improvement Program (TIP) to include the following project:

e SR61 (US 27)/Monroe Street at Park Avenue (Project No. 454170-1): Provide $388,330
in funding in FY 24 for the replacement of the mast arm (Design Phase) at the
intersection (Leon County)

e SR61 (US 319)/Thomasville Road (Timberwolf Crossing to the Georgia State
Line) (Project No. 452940-1): Provide $1,516,273 in funding in FY 24 for the Design
Phase for the resurfacing (Leon County)




February 19, 2024 CRTPA Board Meeting Agenda Page 3

10.

11.

CRTPA AcTION

The public is welcome to comment on any discussion item after a motion has been made and
seconded. Each member of the public is provided three (3) minutes to address the CRTPA.

A. CRTPA Safety Targets
This item seeks adoption of the 2024 CRTPA Safety Performance Targets for safety
performance measures that the CRTPA is required to annually address.

B. Telecommute Study
The CRTPA Telecommute Study evaluating the impacts of Covid 19 stay-at-home orders on
congestion in the CRTPA Region, assessing telecommuting trends, and evaluating the
potential impacts to the transportation network has been developed and is proposed for
Board adoption.

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION REPORT

A status report on FDOT activities will be provided.

EXEcUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

A status report on CRTPA activities will be provided.

CRTPA INFORMATION

Future Meeting Dates (Next Board Meeting March 18, 2024)
CRTPA Committee Actions

Utilization Report

Correspondence

ocow>»

ITEMS FROM CRTPA BOARD MEMBERS

This portion of the agenda is provided to allow members an opportunity to discuss and request
action on items and issues relevant to the CRTPA.



February 19, 2024

-
CRTRA-

CAPITAL REGION

RANSPORTATION PLANNINGZAGENCY
u«,

AGENDA ITEM 4A

MINUTES

TyPE OF ITEM: Consent

The minutes from the November 21, 2023, CRTPA Meeting are provided as Attachment 1.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Option 1: Approve the minutes of the November 21, 2023, CRTPA Meeting.

ATTACHMENT

Attachment 1: Minutes of the November 21, 2023, CRTPA Meeting



ATTACHMENT 1

b s
CRTEA-

CAPITAL REGION

TRANSPORTATION PLANNINGJAGENCY
‘,’
7

or e

CRTPA BOARD
MEETING OF TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 21, 2023 AT 1:30 PM
CITY OF TALLAHASSEE COMMISSION CHAMBERS
300 S. ADAMS STREET
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32301

Meeting Minutes

Members Present:

Commissioner Rick Minor, CRTPA Chair, Leon County

Commissioner Quincee Messersmith, CRTPA Vice Chair, Wakulla County
Commissioner Kimblin NeSmith, Gadsden County

Commissioner Evelyn Riley Goldwire, Gadsden Municipalities
Commissioner David O’Keefe, Leon County

Commissioner Nick Maddox, Leon County

Commissioner Curtis Richardson, City of Tallahassee

Commissioner Dianne Williams-Cox, City of Tallahassee

Staff Present: Greg Slay, CRTPA: Jack Kostrzewa, CRTPA; Greg Burke, CRTPA; Suzanne Lex, CRTPA;
Yulonda Mitchell, CRTPA; Bryant Paulk, FDOT; Donna Green, FDOT; Chris Rietow, ARPC

1. CALL To ORDER AND RoLL CALL

The meeting was called to order by the Chairman with a roll call at 1:30 pm.

2. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS

3. PuBLIC COMMENT ON ITEMS NOT APPEARING ON THE AGENDA

4, CONSENT AGENDA

Minutes of the September 19 CRTPA Meeting
CRTPA 2024 Calendar

Regional Trails Project Priority List (PPL) Update
SUN Trails Applications Resolutions of Support
Executive Director’s Quarterly Timesheet Approval
Unified Planning Work Program Amendment

TmO O P



November 21, 2023 CRTPA Board Meeting Minutes Page 2

Mr. Slay made comments on Consent Agenda ltem 4.F, Unified Planning Work Program Amendment.
He stated that at the September 19, 2023, meeting there was discussion regarding adding North
Monroe Street to the CRTPA’s Priority Projects List. Due to legislative timelines, the timing of the
request was after the deadline due to the early (January 2024) legislative session and could not be met.
Based on that information, he stated staff was proposing to complete a North Monroe implementation
plan and apply for funds under the Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) program. He stated the
implementation plan would primarily focus on safety improvements because that is the focus of the
SS4A program.

Board Action: Commissioner Richardson made a motion to approve the consent agenda as

presented by staff. Commissioner O’Keefe seconded the motion, and the motion was unanimously
passed.

5. CONSENT ITEMS PULLED FOR DISCUSSION

6. RoLL CALL VOTE AGENDA ITEMS

A. Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 — FY 2028 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Amendment

This item seeks Board ratification of an amendment to the FY 2024— FY 2028 Transportation
Improvement Program (TIP) to include the following project:

e Tallahassee Connection: Sustainable Southside Transit Center 442542-3: (Leon County)
Fifteen million in federal grant funding in FY 24 for the construction of the City of
Tallahassee’s project, the Sustainable Southside Transit Center.

Ms. Lex provided information on the Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 — FY 2028 Transportation Improvement
Program (TIP) Amendment. She stated this amendment would add the Tallahassee Connection:
Sustainable Southside Transit Center and that the amendment was requested by FDOT to be included
in the TIP. Ms. Lex noted the funds were federal funds that would be directly sent to the City of
Tallahassee’s StarMetro agency. She noted there was a required match for the funds between the
state, Blueprint Intergovernmental Agency and the City of Tallahassee.

Board Action: Commissioner Richardson made a motion to approve the Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 — FY

2028 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Amendment. Commissioner Williams-Cox
seconded the motion. A roll call vote was conducted, and the motion was unanimously passed.

7. CRTPA AcTION

A. Fiscal Year (FY) 2025 — FY 2029 Draft Tentative Work Program
A presentation on the FY 2025 — FY 2029 Draft Tentative Work Program will be provided by
the Florida Department of Transportation, District 3.



November 21, 2023 CRTPA Board Meeting Minutes Page 3

Ms. Carla Hodges, FDOT, D3, Program Management Administrator, provided an overview of the FY
2025 — FY 2029 Draft Tentative Work Program. Ms. Hodges provided information on the projects in
the Work Program for each of the counties in the CRTPA region. She provided highlights on the Traffic
Operations Projects (additions); Capacity Projects (additions); Local Programs (additions/advances);
SUN Trails (additions); Transportation Systems Management Projects (additions); Resurfacing Projects
(additions); and Bridge Projects (advances). Ms. Hodges noted all information on the projects can be
reviewed at the FDOT District 3 Work Program Webpage www.fdot.gov/wpph/district3.

Board Action: This item was for Information only; therefore, no action was taken.

B. Transportation Alternatives (TA) Program
A discussion related to a proposed update to the evaluation criteria for use in the review of
TA applications as well an update applicant guidance related to the maximum amount of
funding that may be requested per project application will be provided.

Mr. Burke introduced the CRTPA Transportation Alternatives (TA) Program and stated that back on
November 1, 2023, the CRTPA initiated a call for applications to be submitted for the TA Program. He
discussed the recent federal changes to the program related to the 2021 the Bipartisan Infrastructure
Law (BIL). Mr. Burke stated the changes included an increase in funding annually for the TA program
exclusively dedicated to the CRTPA Region and that, as a result, the evaluation criteria needed to be
reviewed. He stated that on October 18, 2023, the TA subcommittee met and discussed the criteria
including the new requirement regarding equity. Other minor changes proposed for the TA evaluation
criteria include removal of the “Project Constructability” criterion as the Subcommittee noted that if a
project was not constructable it would be ineligible for TA funding consideration. Mr. Burke stated this
funding increase almost doubled the anticipated TA funds for the CRTPA region to approximately
$660,000 annually over the next five years.

Mr. Burke reminded the Board of the action taken at the November 16, 2021, Board Meeting, that
approved a policy that limited the maximum amount of funding for TA applicants to $650,000, which at
the time reflected two years of CRTPA TA allocation. Due to funding changes, staff recommends the
policy be updated to limit the maximum amount of TA funding that could be requested by an applicant
to two years of anticipated CRTPA TA annual allocation.

Mr. Burke stated staff was seeking the adoption of the CRTPA TA evaluation criteria as developed by
the TA Subcommittee and approval of guidance to the applicants limiting the maximum amount of TA
funding that could be requested by an applicant to two years of CRTPA TA annual allocation.

Board Action: Commissioner O’Keefe made a motion to adopt the Transportation Alternatives (TA)
Program’s option 1 as presented by staff. Commissioner Richardson seconded the motion, and the
motion was unanimously passed.

C. CRTPA Resolution of Support related to the Town of Havana
This item seeks approval of a resolution to the Florida Department of Transportation related
to the CRTPA’s support of the Town of Havana’s desire to reduce the lanes of US 27 through
downtown Havana.


http://www.fdot.gov/wpph/district3

November 21, 2023 CRTPA Board Meeting Minutes Page 4

Mr. Burke stated staff was contacted by a consultant working with the Town of Havana on
development of a town plan funded by the Florida Department of Commerce. He noted that a few
years ago the CRTPA conducted a study that evaluated the Town of Havana’s desire to reduce the lanes
on US Highway 27in the downtown area of Havana to provide a more pedestrian friendly environment.
Mr. Burke also stated the report from the study concluded the lane reduction was feasible but there
were concerns with hurricane evacuation routes. The CRTPA was requested to support the Town’s
request for lane reduction on US 27 in downtown and has developed a resolution for provision to the
FDOT that supports the Town of Havana’s efforts.

Commissioner Williams-Cox voiced concerns with the evacuation routes for the Town of Havana and
stated the Board should hear from the representatives of Gadsden County. Commissioner NeSmith
stated he would like to take time to discuss with the Town of Havana and table the discussion to a later
date to get clarity from the Town of Havana.

Board Action: Commissioner NeSmith made a motion to table the decision on the CRTPA Resolution
of Support related to the Town of Havana to discuss the reduction of lanes on US Highway 27
through the downtown area. Commissioner Williams-Cox seconded the motion, and the motion was
passed with Commissioner O’Keefe voting in opposition.

D. Election of Chair/Vice Chair
Annually, CRTPA member elect a new Chair and Vice Chair to serve for the upcoming
calendar year. Currently, Commissioner Rick Minor and Commissioner Quincee
Messersmith hold the CRTPA Chair and Vice Chair positions, respectively.

Board Action: Commissioner Richardson nominated Commissioner Messersmith to be the
Chairperson for the board for next year. Commissioner Williams-Cox seconded the motion, and the
motion was unanimously passed.

Board Action: Commissioner Richardson nominated Commissioner Williams-Cox to be the Vice-
Chairperson for the board next year. Commissioner O’Keefe seconded the motion, and the motion
was unanimously passed.

E. Election of MPOAC Representative and Alternate
Pursuant to CRTPA By-Laws, the CRTPA’s Metropolitan Planning Organization Advisory
Council (MPOAC) representative serves a 3-year term. Currently, Commissioner Mattox
serves as MPOAC representative with Commissioner Richardson serving as the alternate.

Board Action: Commissioner Williams-Cox made a motion for the current Representative,
Commissioner Maddox to remain the Representative the MPOAC for next year. Commissioner
Richardson seconded the motion, and the motion was unanimously passed.

Board Action: Commissioner Williams-Cox made a motion for the current Alternate, Commissioner
Richardson to remain the Alternate the MPOAC for next year. Commissioner Nesmith seconded the
motion, and the motion was unanimously passed.



November 21, 2023 CRTPA Board Meeting Minutes Page 5

8. FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION REPORT

Mr. Bryant Paulk, FDOT provided information on a hybrid public meeting for a US 90 resurfacing
project in Gadsden County (from west of four lanes (west of Quincy) to Duval Street in Quincy).
e Date: Thursday, January 18, 2024, at 5:30 pm-6:30 pm
e Location: Gadsden County Extension Office, 2140 W. Jefferson Street, Quincy, FL
Additional information and registration to attend the meeting can be found at nwflroads.com.

Commissioner Richardson requested an update on Orange Avenue widening project from Adams
Street to Capital Circle SW. Mr. Slay noted the project was still in the design phase. Mr. Slay noted he
would need to gather information and provide an update later.

9. EXEcUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

A status report on CRTPA activities will be provided.

Mr. Slay stated the scope for the Regional Mobility Plan update was current under development. He
requested a board member volunteer to serve on the selection committee for the for the project.
Commissioner O’Keefe volunteered to serve on the selection committee. Additionally, Mr. Slay noted
that Mr. Patrick Merle, professor from Florida State University, wanted to work with CRTPA to
complete messaging campaigns to address bicycle and pedestrian safety.

10. CRTPA INFORMATION

Future Meeting Dates
Committee Actions
Correspondence
Utilization Report Q4 FY 23

ocnow>»

11. ITEMS FROM CRTPA BOARD MEMBERS

This portion of the agenda is provided to allow members an opportunity to discuss and request
action on items and issues relevant to the CRTPA.

12. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 2:25 pm.


https://nwflroads.com/projects/413425-2

February 19, 2024

CRTA-

CAPITAL REGION

RANSPORTATION PL ﬂr\\u\u:!w;\ NCY

AGENDA ITEM4 B

CITIZENS MULTIMODAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE
APPOINTMENT

TyPE OF ITEM: Consent

STATEMENT OF ISSUE

This item seeks board approval of the appointment of Jon Sewell to serve on the CRTPA’s Citizens
Multimodal Advisory Committee (CMAC). The application of Mr. Sewell is provided as Attachment 1.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Option 1: Approve the appointment of Jon Sewell to the CRTPA’s Citizens Multimodal Advisory
Committee

BACKROUND

The CMAC is an advisory committee to the CRTPA composed of volunteers who dedicate their time
and advice to the CRTPA on issues pertaining to transportation planning within the region. Pursuant
to Article Ill, Section 2 of the CMAC Bylaws, the CMAC may consist of a maximum of fifteen (15) voting
representatives from the four (4) county region. Currently, the CMAC is comprised of eleven (11)
members. In addition to the CMAC, the CRTPA is advised by the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC),
which is composed of local and state planners and engineers with expertise in the area of
transportation.

ATTACHMENT
Attachment 1: Application of Mr. Jon Sewell



ATTACHMENT 1

Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
CITIZEN’S MULTIMODAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE (CMAC)
APPLICATION

Please return to:

Capital Region Transportation
Planning Agency

300 S. Adams St., 3rd Floor
Tallahassee, Florida 32301

files for two years.

Please contact the CRTPA to
advise of any changes regarding

or: CAPITAL REGION

TRANSPORTATION PLi‘.Nl\\l:.lNG AGENCY

Email:
yulonda.mitchell@citpa.org

Email: yulonda.mitchell@crtpa.org
PHONE: 850-891-8628

This application will remain in active

the information on this application.

Name: 'S oy Spanled L e i/ 2 / 2024
Phone: <& 5 €9\ \g o> b \JS@,wQ,L.\,LEé@‘/me  Cowy

b !

Please list your specific employer/occupation if employed by a State, Federal, or local government:

Employer: Q\Q_/\.»\( ")

Please provide your home and work address (if applicable). Please check that box of your preferred mailing address.

[X Home Address: ‘—\\\L\ flcm\\g\(\u Loanne
City/State/Zip: ~\all Msse. YL 313 (|

[] Work Address:
City/State/Zip:

The Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency strives to ensure that its citizens

To assist in this endeavor, please provide the following information (voluntary).

Please also note if you are physically challenged [] Yes [] No

s (] American Indian or Alaskan Native [] Black [0 Other o ] Female
' O Asian or Pacific Islander [ Hispanic White " K] Male

multimodal advisory committee is representative of the community’s demographic makeup.

Please identify any potential conflicts. Such conflicts may include pursuit of CRTPA consultant work related to the
provision of professional services: N of\e

Do you ride the bus? (JYes B4 No
Do you drive a car? [X] Yes [ No | Do you bicycle to work/shopping? [JYyes [X]No
Do you bicycle for recreation? X Yes []No
Please circle your age bracket Do you walk to work/shopping? Yes [JNo
18-25/26-35/36-49/ Do you walk for recreation? ] Yes [No
<50 and oven
—_— -
Can you serve a multi-year term? K Yes [ONo (C)i:fxlligtus TEglary gtendimeetings? m Yes [N

Please circle any special population interests you may represent:

Road Cyclists,(Off-Road Cyclistg, Transit Users('r ransportation Disadvantaged
T ——— s

Child, Youth, or&Senior Pedestrian Advocates, Students, Seniors)\Persons with Disabilities
o e T P ——

Page 1 of 2



CITIZEN’S MULTIMODAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE APPLICATION

Please tell us something about yourself. This information will help us create an advisory board that is reflective ofa |

broad spectrum of the community. If you have any interests, hobbies, community activities, previous experience on
committees, or anything else you would like us to know in consideration of your application please write it here. You
may also attach this information.

C M o i 4 ;
/L— LAANN M'\‘ Q/é ’AKFCA\JP\Q QO (XOK\\QV‘\ QLO\V\\V\W’\G C}O\f‘"\ Q(J\Qj!(” C’\\/\_)‘ W \]%T\/\

LeX \{”‘g exfetiescn . Wha Cavear Rocus wo's \Bi@(cx,»» /

) AE - Aoy X ) \ S— .
p @XQ_%&( LN ‘ Q»\ \(«‘)% QE}JQ-DT\DV’\ !)((\;'\\/)\\7@\/ o\\,\; L '\.NO(\LQQ

Rot WS Tl Al CoMmaednt s WA n§  CranT
9 \ 3/ Qe § }\\)\f 37 Yol [0\\/\%

we o6 Nue WS n \W\O\v\\i Shotes, L Nss verye)

g\@)( IK‘? WU oL ‘g@f-’\f’ﬁ e WAKS /X/ ALSY Wue ﬂ&l(‘ R i stvey
e Gl CL%\NQV\ awe Kys R~ CREPA ‘\Jﬂgau‘% U7

ion provided in this application are true to the best of my knowledge.

]

All statements and il;l‘fOlTn t

I
i
{

Signature: v

CJV
If you have a disability requiring accommodations, or need assistance filling out this

application, please contact the Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
at 8560-891-8630.

The telephone number for the Florida Relay TDD Service is 711 or 1-800-955-8771.

Page 2 of 2

(Updated September 2021)



February 19, 2024

i X |
CRTRA-
CAPITAL REGION

TRANSPORTATION PLANNINGAGENCY

AGENDA ITJI‘E’M 4C

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S QUARTERLY TIMESHEETS APPROVAL

TyPE OF ITEM: Consent

STATEMENT OF ISSUE

This item seeks Board approval of the Executive Director’s timesheets for the last fiscal quarter
(October 1, 2023, through December 31, 2023).

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Option 1: Approve Executive Director’s timesheets for the period October 1, 2023, through
December 31, 2023

BACKGROUND

The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) annually evaluates and certifies the CRTPA
program activities. A component of the certification review is monitoring fiscal records and
procedures. One monitoring item requested is documentation that the Board or the Executive
Committee has approved the Executive Director’s timesheets.

As a result, staff is seeking Board approval of Greg Slay’s timesheets for the most recent fiscal quarter
(October 1, 2023, through December 31, 2023).

OPTIONS
Option 1: Approve Executive Director’s timesheets for the period of October 1, 2023,

through December 31, 2023
(Recommended)

Option 2: CRTPA Board Discretion

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1: Greg Slay’s Timesheets for October 1, 2023, through December 31, 2023




ATTACHMENT 1

EMP NAME: Greg Slay PAYROLL DATE: 10/13/23
EMP # 14156 DATE RANGE: 9/25/23 10/6/23
DEPT: 460101

CRTPA EMPLOYEE TIME SHEET

DAY DATE VACATION HOURS SICK HOURS OTHER LEAVE
Mon 9/25/23
Tues 9/26/23
Wed 9/27/23
Thurs 9/28/23
Fri 9/29/23
Mon 10/2/23
Tues 10/3/23
Wed 10/4/23
Thurs 10/5/23
Fri 10/6/23 8
Comments:

By signing below the employee indicates that the foregoing are the hours of leave taken during the
payroll period and that aside from such leave time, the employee has worked during the payroll period
in accordance with his/her job requirements.

—/“_/ i ] .»:)
/ = ot /2{'(;.,{{/_,,-17 -;{—‘(;Ciiil

October 6, 2023

EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE DATE
APPROVED BY DATE
PAYROLL CLERKS SIGNATURE DATE

For Payroll Clerks Use Only:
Paid Holiday

Personal Leave

Sick Leave

Administrative Leave
Catastrophic Leave
Wellness Leave

Floating Holiday

Personal Day

TOTAL

This record is maintained for administrative purposes only and does not in any way impact the employees
wages or exempt status.




CRTPA TASK SHEET

Employee Name Greg Slay
Employee Number 14156
Department CRTPA VACATION, SICK, HOLIDAY OR OTHER TIME SHOULD BE LISTED UNDER THE ADMIN TASK
Payroll Date 10/13/23
Payroll Range 09/25/23 thru 10/06/23
Task 1.0 Task 2.0 Task 3.0 Task 4.0 Task 5.0 Task 6.0 Task 7.0
Admin Data LRP SRP Mobility Public Special
Day Date Collection Planning Inv. Projects
701 989 703 990 706 705 995 Hours Activity
Mon 09/25/23 5 1 1 1 8 Admin, staff meeting, Census data, PPLs, regional trails
Tues 09/26/23 2 1 1 2 2 8 Finance, Airport FTZ, ITS, School Safety Study
Wed 09/27/23 2 2 1 1 2 8 Admin, RMP, Starmetro, Telecommuting Study, Freight Study
Thurs 09/28/23 3 1 1 3 8 Admin, RMP, Telecommuting Study
Fri 09/29/23 2 1 2 2 1 8 Crash data, RMP, PPLs/TIP, TDP, Telecommuting Study
Mon 10/02/23 3 1 1 3 8 Admin, staff meeting, RMP, regional trails
Tues 10/03/23 2 2 2 1 1 8 Admin, Procurement, CCSW, RMP, regional trails, website
Wed 10/04/23 2 2 3 1 8 Crash data, RMP, ITS, regional trails, School Safety Study
Thurs 10/05/23 2 6 8 Admin, DEP First Bike helmet fitting
Fri 10/06/23 8 8 Personal leave




CRTPA Employee: Greg Slay

FIELDWORK DOCUMENTATION FOR LIABILITY INSURANCE

Date Hours in the Field [Location Activity Conducted
8/1/2022 2 Sabal Palm Elementary Connectivity review
9/9/2022 1 Gadsden Sidewalk @ 6/7th St Field review
9/16/2022 3 Coastal Trail/Tharpe Street Field review
2/10/2023 3 Thomasville Rd Trail Field review




EMP NAME: Greg Slay PAYROLL DATE: 10/27/23

EMP # 14156 DATE RANGE: 10/9/23 10/20/23

DEPT: 460101

CRTPA EMPLOYEE TIME SHEET

DAY DATE VACATION HOURS SICK HOURS OTHER LEAVE
Mon 10/9/23
Tues 10/10/23
Wed 10/11/23
Thurs 10/12/23

Fri 10/13/23
Mon 10/16/23
Tues 10/17/23
Wed 10/18/23
Thurs 10/19/23

Fri 10/20/23

Comments:

By signing below the employee indicates that the foregoing are the hours of leave taken during the
payroll period and that aside from such leave time, the employee has worked during the payroll period
in accordance with his/her job requirements.

—/“_/ i ] .»:)
/ = ot /2{'(;.,{{/_,,-17 -;{—‘(;Ciiil

October 20, 2023

EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE DATE
APPROVED BY DATE
PAYROLL CLERKS SIGNATURE DATE

For Payroll Clerks Use Only:
Paid Holiday

Personal Leave

Sick Leave

Administrative Leave
Catastrophic Leave
Wellness Leave

Floating Holiday

Personal Day

TOTAL

This record is maintained for administrative purposes only and does not in any way impact the employees
wages or exempt status.




CRTPA TASK SHEET

Employee Name Greg Slay
Employee Number 14156
Department CRTPA VACATION, SICK, HOLIDAY OR OTHER TIME SHOULD BE LISTED UNDER THE ADMIN TASK
Payroll Date 10/27/23
Payroll Range 10/09/23 thru 10/20/23
Task 1.0 Task 2.0 Task 3.0 Task 4.0 Task 5.0 Task 6.0 Task 7.0
Admin Data LRP SRP Mobility Public Special
Day Date Collection Planning Inv. Projects
701 989 703 990 706 705 995 Hours Activity
Mon 10/09/23 2 1 3 2 8 Admin, RMP, Bike Working Group, regional trails, Freight Study
Tues 10/10/23 3 1 1 3 8 Admin, staff meeting, Apportionment Plan, Dale Allen, regional trails
Wed 10/1 1/23 2 2 2 2 8 Census data, work program, regional trails, SR2S
Thurs 10/12/23 2 2 2 2 8 RMP, regional trails, Telecommuting Study
Fri 10/13/23 2 4 2 8 Admin, RMP, Census data, work program
Mon 10/16/23 2 2 1 3 8 Admin, RMP scope, CMP, ITS
Tues 10/17/23 1 2 3 2 8 Crash data, regional trails, ITS, Freight Study
Wed 10/18/23 2 2 2 2 8 Staff meeting, Bike safety, TA subcommittee, SRTS, ITS
Thurs 10/19/23 1 2 3 1 1 8 Insurnace Audit, bike safety, RMP, Starmetro TDP
Fri 10/20/23 2 2 2 2 8 Admin, RMP, Census data, regional trails




CRTPA Employee: Greg Slay

FIELDWORK DOCUMENTATION FOR LIABILITY INSURANCE

Date Hours in the Field [Location Activity Conducted
8/1/2022 2 Sabal Palm Elementary Connectivity review
9/9/2022 1 Gadsden Sidewalk @ 6/7th St Field review
9/16/2022 3 Coastal Trail/Tharpe Street Field review
2/10/2023 3 Thomasville Rd Trail Field review




EMP NAME: Greg Slay PAYROLL DATE: 11/10/23

EMP # 14156 DATE RANGE: 10/23/23 11/3/23

DEPT: 460101

CRTPA EMPLOYEE TIME SHEET

DAY DATE VACATION HOURS SICK HOURS OTHER LEAVE
Mon 10/23/23
Tues 10/24/23
Wed 10/25/23
Thurs 10/26/23

Fri 10/27/23
Mon 10/30/23
Tues 10/31/23
Wed 11/1/23
Thurs 11/2/23

Fri 11/3/23

Comments:

By signing below the employee indicates that the foregoing are the hours of leave taken during the
payroll period and that aside from such leave time, the employee has worked during the payroll period
in accordance with his/her job requirements.

—/“_/ i ] .»:)
/ = ot /2{'(;.,{{/_,,-17 -;{—‘(;Ciiil

November 3, 2023

EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE DATE
APPROVED BY DATE
PAYROLL CLERKS SIGNATURE DATE

For Payroll Clerks Use Only:
Paid Holiday

Personal Leave

Sick Leave

Administrative Leave
Catastrophic Leave
Wellness Leave

Floating Holiday

Personal Day

TOTAL

This record is maintained for administrative purposes only and does not in any way impact the employees
wages or exempt status.




CRTPA TASK SHEET

Employee Name Greg Slay
Employee Number 14156
Department CRTPA VACATION, SICK, HOLIDAY OR OTHER TIME SHOULD BE LISTED UNDER THE ADMIN TASK
Payroll Date 11/10/23
Payroll Range 10/23/23 thru 11/03/23
Task 1.0 Task 2.0 Task 3.0 Task 4.0 Task 5.0 Task 6.0 Task 7.0
Admin Data LRP SRP Mobility Public Special
Day Date Collection Planning Inv. Projects
701 989 703 990 706 705 995 Hours Activity
Mon 10/23/23 1 2 2 2 1 8 Admin, Crash data, wildlife corridors, SRTS
Tues 10/24/23 2 1 2 1 2 8 Admin, Apportionment Plan, PPLs, regional trails
Wed 10/25/23 8 8 MPOAC
Thurs 10/26/23 8 8 MPOAC
Fri 10/27/23 8 8 MPOAC
Mon 10/30/23 2 4 1 1 8 Admin, Apportionment Plan, SRTS
Tues 10/31/23 1 1 3 2 1 8 Briefing - Willams-Cox, Crash data, Apportionment Plan, RMP, FlowCube - ITS, SRTS
Wed 1 1/01/23 2 2 2 2 8 Briefing - Minor, Comp Plan, Apportionment Plan,
Thurs 11/02/23 2 1 1 1 1 2 8 Adoin, Cybersecurity review, N. Monroe, ITS, Telecommuting Study, Freight Study
Fri 11/03/23 2 2 2 2 8 Admin, Bike/Ped data, Apportionment Plan,




CRTPA Employee: Greg Slay

FIELDWORK DOCUMENTATION FOR LIABILITY INSURANCE

Date Hours in the Field [Location Activity Conducted
8/1/2022 2 Sabal Palm Elementary Connectivity review
9/9/2022 1 Gadsden Sidewalk @ 6/7th St Field review
9/16/2022 3 Coastal Trail/Tharpe Street Field review
2/10/2023 3 Thomasville Rd Trail Field review




EMP NAME: Greg Slay PAYROLL DATE: 12/8/23

EMP # 14156 DATE RANGE: 11/20/23 12/1/23

DEPT: 460101

CRTPA EMPLOYEE TIME SHEET

DAY DATE VACATION HOURS SICK HOURS OTHER LEAVE

Mon 11/20/23

Tues 11/21/23

Wed 11/22/23

Thurs 11/23/23 8 - Holiday
Fri 11/24/23 8 - Holiday
Mon 11/27/23

Tues 11/28/23

Wed 11/29/23

Thurs 11/30/23 8-FL
Fri 12/1/23 8-FL

Comments:

By signing below the employee indicates that the foregoing are the hours of leave taken during the
payroll period and that aside from such leave time, the employee has worked during the payroll period
in accordance with his/her job requirements.

—/“_/ i ] .»:)
/ = ot /2{'(;.,{{/_,,-17 -;{—‘(;Ciiil

November 29, 2023

EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE DATE
APPROVED BY DATE
PAYROLL CLERKS SIGNATURE DATE

For Payroll Clerks Use Only:
Paid Holiday

Personal Leave

Sick Leave

Administrative Leave
Catastrophic Leave
Wellness Leave

Floating Holiday

Personal Day

TOTAL

This record is maintained for administrative purposes only and does not in any way impact the employees
wages or exempt status.




CRTPA TASK SHEET

Employee Name Greg Slay
Employee Number 14156
Department CRTPA VACATION, SICK, HOLIDAY OR OTHER TIME SHOULD BE LISTED UNDER THE ADMIN TASK
Payroll Date 12/08/23
Payroll Range 11/20/23 thru 12/01/23
Task 1.0 Task 2.0 Task 3.0 Task 4.0 Task 5.0 Task 6.0 Task 7.0
Admin Data LRP SRP Mobility Public Special
Day Date Collection Planning Inv. Projects
701 989 703 990 706 705 995 Hours Activity
Mon 11/20/23 3 2 2 1 8 Admin, Briefing - Minor,
Tues 11/21/23 5 1 1 1 8 Admin, Board Meeting, staff meeting
Wed 11/22/23 4 2 2 8 Admin, Safety Roundtable, Freight Study
Thurs 11/23/23 8 8 Holiday
Fri 11/24/23 8 8 Holiday
Mon 11/27/23 1 1 1 5 8 Admin, crash data, census data, SR 267 Trail, CMP
Tues 11/28/23 2 1 1 4 8 Admin, staff meeting, census data, Capital City to the Sea Alliance
Wed 11/29/23 2 1 1 2 2 8 Safety Roundtable, crash data, PPLs, regional trails, Freight Study
Thurs 11/30/23 8 8 Floating Holiday
Fri 12/01/23 8 8 Floating Holiday




CRTPA Employee: Greg Slay

FIELDWORK DOCUMENTATION FOR LIABILITY INSURANCE

Date Hours in the Field [Location Activity Conducted
8/1/2022 2 Sabal Palm Elementary Connectivity review
9/9/2022 1 Gadsden Sidewalk @ 6/7th St Field review
9/16/2022 3 Coastal Trail/Tharpe Street Field review
2/10/2023 3 Thomasville Rd Trail Field review




EMP NAME: Greg Slay PAYROLL DATE: 12/8/23

EMP # 14156 DATE RANGE: 11/20/23 12/1/23

DEPT: 460101

CRTPA EMPLOYEE TIME SHEET

DAY DATE VACATION HOURS SICK HOURS OTHER LEAVE

Mon 11/20/23

Tues 11/21/23

Wed 11/22/23

Thurs 11/23/23 8 - Holiday
Fri 11/24/23 8 - Holiday
Mon 11/27/23

Tues 11/28/23

Wed 11/29/23

Thurs 11/30/23 8 -PD
Fri 12/1/23 8 -PD

Comments:

By signing below the employee indicates that the foregoing are the hours of leave taken during the
payroll period and that aside from such leave time, the employee has worked during the payroll period
in accordance with his/her job requirements.

—/“_/ i ] .»:)
/ = ot /2{'(;.,{{/_,,-17 -;{—‘(;Ciiil

November 29, 2023

EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE DATE
APPROVED BY DATE
PAYROLL CLERKS SIGNATURE DATE

For Payroll Clerks Use Only:
Paid Holiday

Personal Leave

Sick Leave

Administrative Leave
Catastrophic Leave
Wellness Leave

Floating Holiday

Personal Day

TOTAL

This record is maintained for administrative purposes only and does not in any way impact the employees
wages or exempt status.




CRTPA TASK SHEET

Employee Name Greg Slay
Employee Number 14156
Department CRTPA VACATION, SICK, HOLIDAY OR OTHER TIME SHOULD BE LISTED UNDER THE ADMIN TASK
Payroll Date 12/08/23
Payroll Range 11/20/23 thru 12/01/23
Task 1.0 Task 2.0 Task 3.0 Task 4.0 Task 5.0 Task 6.0 Task 7.0
Admin Data LRP SRP Mobility Public Special
Day Date Collection Planning Inv. Projects
701 989 703 990 706 705 995 Hours Activity
Mon 11/20/23 3 2 2 1 8 Admin, Briefing - Minor,
Tues 11/21/23 5 1 1 1 8 Admin, Board Meeting, staff meeting
Wed 11/22/23 4 2 2 8 Admin, Safety Roundtable, Freight Study
Thurs 11/23/23 8 8 Holiday
Fri 11/24/23 8 8 Holiday
Mon 11/27/23 1 1 1 5 8 Admin, crash data, census data, SR 267 Trail, CMP
Tues 11/28/23 2 1 1 4 8 Admin, staff meeting, census data, Capital City to the Sea Alliance
Wed 11/29/23 2 1 1 2 2 8 Safety Roundtable, crash data, PPLs, regional trails, Freight Study
Thurs 11/30/23 8 8 Personal Day
Fri 12/01/23 8 8 Personal Day




CRTPA Employee: Greg Slay

FIELDWORK DOCUMENTATION FOR LIABILITY INSURANCE

Date Hours in the Field |[Location Activity Conducted

8/1/2022 2 Sabal Palm Elementary Connectivity review

9/9/2022 1 Gadsden Sidewalk @ 6/7th St Field review

9/16/2022 3 Coastal Trail/Tharpe Street Field review

2/10/2023 3 Thomasville Rd Trail Field review

11/27/2023 3 SR 267 and Springhill Road Corridor Review for potential project




EMP NAME: Greg Slay PAYROLL DATE: 12/22/23

EMP # 14156 DATE RANGE: 12/4/23 12/15/23
DEPT: 460101
CRTPA EMPLOYEE TIME SHEET
DAY DATE VACATION HOURS SICK HOURS OTHER LEAVE
Mon 12/4/23 8
Tues 12/5/23
Wed 12/6/23
Thurs 12/7/23
Fri 12/8/23
Mon 12/11/23
Tues 12/12/23
Wed 12/13/23
Thurs 12/14/23
Fri 12/15/23
Comments:

By signing below the employee indicates that the foregoing are the hours of leave taken during the
payroll period and that aside from such leave time, the employee has worked during the payroll period
in accordance with his/her job requirements.

—/“_/ i ] .»:)
/ = ot /2{'(;.,{{/_,,-17 -;{—‘(;Ciiil

EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE DATE
APPROVED BY DATE
PAYROLL CLERKS SIGNATURE DATE

For Payroll Clerks Use Only:
Paid Holiday

Personal Leave

Sick Leave

Administrative Leave
Catastrophic Leave
Wellness Leave

Floating Holiday

Personal Day

TOTAL

This record is maintained for administrative purposes only and does not in any way impact the employees
wages or exempt status.




CRTPA TASK SHEET

Thurs

Employee Name Greg Slay
Employee Number 14156
Department CRTPA VACATION, SICK, HOLIDAY OR OTHER TIME SHOULD BE LISTED UNDER THE ADMIN TASK
Payroll Date 12/22/23
Payroll Range 12/04/23 thru 12/15/23
Task 1.0 Task 2.0 Task 3.0 Task 4.0 Task 5.0 Task 6.0 Task 7.0
Admin Data LRP SRP Mobility Public Special
Day Date Collection Planning Inv. Projects
701 989 703 990 706 705 995 Hours Activity
Mon 12/04/23 8 8 Personal leave
Tues 12/05/23 3 1 2 1 1 8 Admin, safety data, RMP, SunTrail applications
Wed 12/06/23 1 1 2 1 3 8 Legislative meeting - Williams-Cox/C. Simon, Census Boundary, School Safety, Telecommmute Study
Thurs 12/07/23 1 2 1 1 3 8 Safety roundtable, Comp Plan, regional trails, School Safety Study
Fri 12/08/23 2 3 1 2 8 Safety Roundtable, Smoothed Boundary, PPLs, regional trails
Mon 12/11/23 2 2 1 2 1 8 Admin, staff meeting,Smoothed Boundary, Legislative review, N. Monroe
Tues 12/12/23 3 2 1 1 1 8 Safety grant review, CMP, website, N. Monroe
Wed 12/13/23 2 2 2 2 8 Admin, safety roundtable,Smoothed boundary, regional trails, CMP
12/14/23 2 1 1 3 1 8 MPOAC, Safety Roundtable, Midtown, CMP, SunTrails apps, Freight Study
0

Fri 12/15/23




CRTPA Employee: Greg Slay

FIELDWORK DOCUMENTATION FOR LIABILITY INSURANCE

Date Hours in the Field |[Location Activity Conducted

8/1/2022 2 Sabal Palm Elementary Connectivity review

9/9/2022 1 Gadsden Sidewalk @ 6/7th St Field review

9/16/2022 3 Coastal Trail/Tharpe Street Field review

2/10/2023 3 Thomasville Rd Trail Field review

11/27/2023 3 SR 267 and Springhill Road Corridor Review for potential project




EMP NAME: Greg Slay PAYROLL DATE: 1/5/24

EMP # 14156 DATE RANGE: 12/18/23 12/29/23

DEPT: 460101

CRTPA EMPLOYEE TIME SHEET

DAY DATE VACATION HOURS SICK HOURS OTHER LEAVE
Mon 12/18/23
Tues 12/19/23
Wed 12/20/23
Thurs 12/21/23
Fri 12/22/23
Mon 12/25/23 8 - Holiday
Tues 12/26/23
Wed 12/27/23
Thurs 12/28/23 4
Fri 12/29/23
Comments:

By signing below the employee indicates that the foregoing are the hours of leave taken during the
payroll period and that aside from such leave time, the employee has worked during the payroll period
in accordance with his/her job requirements.

—/“_/ i ] .»:)
/ = ot /2{'(;.,{{/_,,-17 -;{—‘(;Ciiil

December 29, 2023

EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE DATE
APPROVED BY DATE
PAYROLL CLERKS SIGNATURE DATE

For Payroll Clerks Use Only:
Paid Holiday

Personal Leave

Sick Leave

Administrative Leave
Catastrophic Leave
Wellness Leave

Floating Holiday

Personal Day

TOTAL

This record is maintained for administrative purposes only and does not in any way impact the employees
wages or exempt status.




CRTPA TASK SHEET

Employee Name Greg Slay
Employee Number 14156
Department CRTPA VACATION, SICK, HOLIDAY OR OTHER TIME SHOULD BE LISTED UNDER THE ADMIN TASK
Payroll Date 01/05/24
Payroll Range 12/18/23 thru 12/29/23
Task 1.0 Task 2.0 Task 3.0 Task 4.0 Task 5.0 Task 6.0 Task 7.0
Admin Data LRP SRP Mobility Public Special
Day Date Collection Planning Inv. Projects
701 989 703 990 706 705 995 Hours Activity
Mon 12/18/23 2 2 1 2 1 8 Admin, RMP, regional trails, Telecommute Study
Tues 12/19/23 2 2 2 1 1 8 Admin, RMP, CMP, website
Wed 12/20/23 1 1 1 1 2 2 8 Admin, safety data, Census data, regional trails, School Safety Study, N. Monroe
Thurs 12/21/23 1 2 2 2 1 8 Crash data, RMP, CMP, N. Monroe
Fri 12/22/23 2 2 2 2 8 Crash data, Census data, CMP
Mon 12/25/23 8 8 Holiday
Tues 12/26/23 3 1 2 1 1 8 File management, Safety Roundtable, RMP, CMP
Wed 12/27/23 4 2 1 1 8 Admin, File management, RMP, PPLs, ITS
Thurs 12/28/23 6 1 1 8 Admin, personal leave, Telecommute Study
Fri 12/29/23 4 1 2 1 8 File management, Safety Roundtable, legislative review, regional trails




CRTPA Employee: Greg Slay

FIELDWORK DOCUMENTATION FOR LIABILITY INSURANCE

Date Hours in the Field |[Location Activity Conducted

8/1/2022 2 Sabal Palm Elementary Connectivity review

9/9/2022 1 Gadsden Sidewalk @ 6/7th St Field review

9/16/2022 3 Coastal Trail/Tharpe Street Field review

2/10/2023 3 Thomasville Rd Trail Field review

11/27/2023 3 SR 267 and Springhill Road Corridor Review for potential project




February 19, 2024

CRTRA-

CAPITAL REGION

RANSPORTATION PL ﬁP\\H\‘l?!AH\ NCY

AGENDA ITEM 6A

FiscAL YEAR (FY) FY 2024 - FY 2028
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMS
AMENDMENTS

TyPE OF ITEM: RoLL CALL

STATEMENT OF ISSUE

The purpose of this item is to ratify an amendment to the CRTPA Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 — FY 2028
Transportation Improvement Program adopted by the Executive Committee at the January 4, 2024
meeting. Resolution No. 2024-01-3A (Attachment 1) approved a TIP Amendment to add two projects
as follows:

e SR 61 (US 27)/Monroe Street at Park Avenue (Project No. 454170-1): Provide funding
$388,330in FY 24 for the replacement of the mast arm [Design Phase] at the intersection. (Leon
County) (Attachment 2)

e SR 61 (US 319)/Thomasville Road from Timberwolf Crossing to the Georgia State Line
(Project No. 452940-1): Provide $1,516,273 in funding in FY 24 for the Design Phase for
the resurfacing.(Leon County) (Attachment 3)

Executive COMMITTEE ACTION

The Executive Committees met on January 4, 2024 and adopted Resolution No. 2024-01-3A approving
the time-sensitive TIP Amendment.

COMMITTEE ACTION

The CRTPA Committees met on February 6, 2024 and recommended the Board ratify the amendments
to the FY 2024 — FY 2028 TIP adopted by Resolution No. 2024-01-3A.




Agenda Item 6A —FY 2024 — FY 2028 Transportation Improvement Programs Amendment
FEBRUARY 19, 2024 PAGE 2

HISTORY AND ANALYSIS

Adopted annually, the CRTPA’s TIP reflects those projects in the region that have received state and
federal funding in the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) Work Program. After adoption,
changes can necessitate an amendment. The FDOT requested the CRTPA amend the FY 2024 - FY
2028 TIP to add two projects and associated funding in FY 2024.

In order for the projects to be amended into the State Transportation Improvement Program and
subsequently authorized by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), the projects must be
reflected in the CRTPA’s current FY 2024- FY 2028 TIP. The TIP Amendment was time sensitive as
FDOT was seeking immediate authorization from Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) for this
project.

The amendments were transmitted to the FDOT for processing and further approval. The FY 2024-
FY 2028 TIP was updated to reflect the addition of the projects.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Option 1: Recommend the Board ratify the Executive Committee Resolution No. 2024-01-4A
amending the FY 2024 — FY 2028 Transportation Improvement Program to reflect the addition of
projects and funding as follows:

e SR 61 (US 27)/Monroe Street at Park Avenue (Project No. 454170-1): Provide funding $388,330
in FY 24 for the replacement of the mast arm [Design Phase] at the intersection. (Leon County)
(Attachment 2)

e SR61(US319)/Thomasville Rd. from Timberwolf Crossing to the Georgia State Line (Project No.
452940-1): Provide $1,516,273 in funding in FY 24 for the Design Phase for the resurfacing
project. (Leon County) (Attachment 3)

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1: CRTPA Executive Committee Adopted Resolution No. 2024-01-4A
Attachment 2: Amended CRTPA FYs 2024-2028 TIP Project Page, Project No. 454170-1
Attachment 3: Amended CRTPA FYs 2024-2028 TIP Project Page, Project No. 452940-1



ATTACHMENT 1
CRTPA RESOLUTION 2024-01-4A

A RESOLUTION OF THE CAPITAL REGION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AGENCY (CRTPA) EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ENDORSING
THE AMENDMENTS TO THE FY 2024 - FY 2028 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

Whereas, the Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency (CRTPA) is the organization designated by the Governor of Florida on August 17, 2004
together with the State of Florida, for carrying out provisions of 23 U.S.C. 134 (h) and (i)(2), (3) and (4); CFR 450.324, 326, 328, 330, and 332; and FS
339.175 (S) and (7); and

Whereas, the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) shall be endorsed annually by the CRTPA and submitted to the Governor of the State of
Florida, to the Federal Transit Administration, and to the Federal Highway Administration, through the State of Florida;
Whereas, the TIP is periodically amended to maintain consistency with the Florida Department of Transportation Work Program and;

Whereas, The Executive Committee is authorized to approve time-sensitive documents pursuant to Section IV. CRTPA Bylaws, Subsection D.4.c.,
Duties of the Executive Committee;

Whereas, authorization for federal funding of projects within an urbanized area cannot be obtained unless the projects are included in the CRTPA’s
TIP, and authorization of the federal funding for Projects Nos. 454170-1 and 452940-1 is time sensitive.

NOW, THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED BY THE CAPITAL REGION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AGENCY (CRTPA) THAT:
The CRTPA amends the FY 2024 - FY 2028 Transportation Improvement Programs to reflect:

Project No. 454170-1 - SR 61 (US 27)/Monroe St. at Park Avenue: Provide funding $388,330 in FY 24 for the replacement of the mast arm [Design
Phase] at the intersection. (Leon County]

Project No. 452940-1 - SR 61 (US 319)/Thomasville Rd. from Timberwolf Crossing to the Georgia State Line: Provide $1,516,273 in funding in FY 24 for
the Design Phase for the resurfacing project. (Leon County)

Passed and duly adopted by the Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency Executive Committee on this 4" day of January 2024.

Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency

p
e

# ) (/—'«'(‘[—.{ 7, —4.<

Greg Slay, Executive Director



ATTACHMENT 2

Capital Region TPA Transportation Improvement Program - FY 2023/24 - FY 2027/2028

MONROE STREET AT PARK AVENUE INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENT
4541701 Non-SIS

Project Description: TRAFFIC SIGNALS

I Lead Agency: CITY OF TALLAHASSEE From: MONROE STREET
County: LEON At: PARK AVENUE
Length: 0.001
Phase Group: Design

-v-f' q - Phase Fund Code 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Total

PE ACBR 368,330 0 0 0 0 368,330
S Monroe St, PE DIH 20,000 0 0 0 0
ilahassee, FL 3230 388,330 388,330
The TIP was amended at the January 4, 2024 Executive Committee
WC Meeting to add the project design phase and associated project costs.

— - - = -

Prior Year Cost: 0

Future Year Cost: 0

Total Project Cost: 388,330

LRTP: 2045 RMP Page 5-8 - Table 5-4

Page 165 of 348 G-15


lexsu
Highlight

lexsu
Highlight


ATTACHMENT 3

Capital Region TPA Transportation Improvement Program - FY 2023/24 - FY 2027/2028

SR 61/THOMASVILLE ROAD FROM TIMBERWOLF CROSSING TO GEORGIA STATE LINE

4529401 Non-SIS

Prior Year Cost: 0

Future Year Cost: 0

Total Project Cost: 1,516,273

LRTP: 2045 RMP Page 5-8 - Table 5-4

Project Description: RESURFACING
Lead Agency: MANAGED BY FDOT From: TIMBERWOLF CROSSING

County: LEON To: GEORGIA STATE LINE
Length: 8.531

Phase Group: PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING

Phase Fund Code 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Total

PE DIH 170,000 0 0 0 0 170,000

PE SA 1,346,273 0 0 0 0 1,346,273
1,516,273 1,516,273

The TIP was amended at the January 4, 2024 Executive Committee Meeting to
add the project design phase and associated project costs.

Page 150 of 348 F-41



February 19, 2024

. L |
CRTEA-
CAPITAL REGION

RTATION PLANNING AGENCY
N

4

AGENDA ITEM 7 A

CRTPA ANNUAL SAFETY TARGETS
ADOPTION

TYPE OF ITEM: Action

STATEMENT OF ISSUE

As required by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), this item seeks adoption by resolution of
the CRTPA’s 2024 Safety Performance Targets for the following five (5) safety performance measures
for public roads in the CRTPA region:

Rate of Fatalities

per 100 million vehicle miles traveled
(VMT)

Number of Fatalities

Rate of Serious Injuries

per 100 million vehicle miles traveled
(VMT)

Number of Serious Injuries

Number of Non-Motorized
Fatalities and Serious Injuries

Relatedly, the item includes a recommendation to continue the CRTPA’s adoption of a long-term
safety goal of zero fatalities and serious injuries for the CRTPA region, consistent with the Florida
Department of Transportation (FDOT) Vision Zero initiative, to eliminate all road traffic fatalities
and serious injuries by the year 2040.

CRTPA CoMMITTEE ACTIONS

The CRTPA’s Technical Advisory Committee and Citizen’s Multimodal Advisory Committee met on
February 6 and both committees voted to recommend the CRTPA adopt the recommended 2024
CRTPA Safety Targets and the long-term safety goal of zero fatalities and serious injuries for the
CRTPA region to be achieved by the year 2040.



Agenda Item 7A— CRTPA Annual Safety Targets Adoption
FEBRUARY 19, 2024 PAGE 2

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Option 1: Adopt by resolution the 2024 CRTPA Safety Targets and a long-term safety goal
of zero fatalities and serious injuries for the CRTPA region to be achieved by the
year 2040 as shown on Attachment 1.

LATEST INFORMATION

For 2023%, total fatalities (55) and total serious injuries (151) were down in the CRTPA region
compared to the previous year (2022), 63 and 225, respectively. However, for pedestrians, fatalities
increased in 2023 (18) versus year 2022 (11). Bicyclist fatalities also increased (4) in 2023 compared to
2022 (2). Serious injuries increased for bicyclists and decreased for pedestrians in 2023 versus 2022.

*Information obtained through Signal Four Analytics. For 2023, the data reflects (January 1 to November 28),
the most recently available at the time of agenda development.

BACKGROUND

Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPOs), such as the CRTPA, are required by the federal
government to annually adopt safety targets for the following five (5) safety performance measures
for all public roads:

1. Number of fatalities;

2. Rate of fatalities per 100 Million Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT);

3. Number of serious injuries;

4. Rate of serious injuries per 100 Million VMT; and

5. Number of non-motorized fatalities and non-motorized serious injuries.

With regards to the annual adoption of safety targets, the CRTPA (like other MPOs within the State of
Florida) has the option to:

(1) support the measures developed by the FDOT (Note: FDOT has adopted a target of “Zero”
for each of the five (5) safety performance measures supportive of the agency’s “Vision
Zero” goal of achieving zero fatalities and serious injuries Statewide); or,

(2) develop and adopt the agency’s own safety targets.

CRTPA SAFETY TARGETS HISTORY

The CRTPA first adopted safety targets on January 16, 2018. Since that time, the CRTPA’s has chosen
to develop and adopt the agency’s own safety targets as initial guidance from the FHWA encouraged
MPOs to not set aspirational goals in the development of safety targets.

Historically, the targets developed by the CRTPA were developed using data provided by FDOT that is
based upon a rolling average for each performance measure for the most recent five-years of


https://signal4analytics.com/

Agenda Item 7A— CRTPA Annual Safety Targets Adoption
FEBRUARY 19, 2024 PAGE 3

available data (for example, the data used in 2020 target development was for the years 2014 — 2018).
The five-year FDOT data averages were what the CRTPA adopted annually as its safety targets.

This methodology remained the same until 2021 when the CRTPA adopted targets that reflected the
lower target for each of the five measures between the previous year’s (2020) adopted targets and
the proposed 2021 targets.

More recently (and how the CRTPA currently develops its annual safety targets), on February 21,
2022, the CRTPA changed the way it develops its safety targets by adopting targets for 2022 using the
previous year’s adopted targets as a baseline with the addition of reduction factor. Specifically, a
reduction factor of five percent (5%) was used and was to be applied annually to the CRTPA’s targets.

RECOMMENDATION
The safety targets for this year’s adoption have been developed consistent with the CRTPA Board
direction to annually apply a 5% reduction factor to each of the agency’s safety targets.

Relatedly, staff is again recommending maintaining the CRTPA’s adoption of a long-term safety goal of
zero fatalities and serious injuries for the CRTPA region, consistent with the FDOT’s long term goal of
Vision Zero, as the CRTPA works towards reducing serious injuries and fatalities on the region’s
roadways with achievement of this goal by the year 2040.

2024 Proposed Safety Targets

The targets proposed for adoption for 2024 are as follows:

2024 PROPOSED
Safety Performance Measures

Number of fatalities (1) 49
Rate of fatalities per 100 Million Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) (2) 1.091
Number of serious injuries (3) 216
Rate of serious injuries per 100 Million VMT (a) 4.726
Number of non-motorized fatalities and non-motorized serious injuries (s) 36

Source: FDOT office of Transportation Data and Analytics

(1) The average number of fatalities per year is the sum of the annual total fatalities for each year in the range divided
by 5.

(2) The average fatality rate is an average of the yearly rate figures for the years in the range, to three decimal places.
(3) The average number of serious injuries per year is the sum of the annual total serious injuries for each year in the
range divided by 5.

(4) The average serious injury rate is an average of the yearly rate figures for the years in the range, to three decimal
places. Each yearly rate is calculated by dividing the total number of serious injuries for the year by the total traffic
volume for the year.

(5) The average number of combined fatalities and serious injuries for bicyclists and pedestrians is per year is the sum
of the annual total bicyclist and pedestrian fatalities and total bicyclist and pedestrian serious injuries for each year in
the range divided by 5



Agenda Item 7A— CRTPA Annual Safety Targets Adoption
FEBRUARY 19, 2024 PAGE 4

Adopted Targets Analysis

The annual development of safety targets provides the CRTPA an opportunity to assess the region’s
progress towards meeting its adopted safety targets using the data provided annual by the FDOT.
Attachment 2 summarizes the agency’s achievement of its adopted safety targets since the CRTPA
began adopting such measures in 2018 including that for the most recently available data for year
2022.

Most recent FDOT data identify that for 2022, the CRTPA has met two (2) of its five (5) adopted 2022
safety targets. Specifically, the CRTPA met its target related to the number and rate of serious
injuries.

CRTPA Safety Trends

Utilizing the annual data provided by FDOT provides a historic context of the CRTPA region’s safety
trends from 2006 to 2022. The following provides an analysis for Serious Injuries & Fatalities, and
Bicycle/Pedestrian Combined Serious Injuries & Fatalities.

Serious Injuries & Fatalities

CRTPA TRENDS
2006 - 2022
Serious Injuries & Fatalities

o 580
501
457 425
316 m

255 266 249 265 257 245 243 196 264 277

56 a1 T s 56 58 T2 g w7965 5 s 56 8 63

06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 1% 20 21 22

Serious Injuries Fatalities

As may be seen in the above chart, serious injuries in the CRTPA region had been generally declining
from a high of 580 in 2008 to a low of 196 in 2020. Most recent data show a decrease in 2022 of such
injuries from the previous year (2021), 222 versus 264, respectively. Fatalities also decreased in 2022
(63) from the previous year (68 in year 2021).



Agenda Item 7A— CRTPA Annual Safety Targets Adoption
FEBRUARY 19, 2024 PAGE 5

Bicycle/Pedestrian Combined Serious Injuries & Fatalities

CRTPA TRENDS
2006 - 2022
Ped/Bike Combined Serious
& Fatal Injuries

06°02,000%¢¢%0®

06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

The above chart reflects that from 2006 to 2022 pedestrian and bicycle combined serious & fatal
injuries reached a high of 55 in 2008. The most recent two (2) years of reported FDOT data reflect a
21 percent increase in 2022 (47) as compared with 2021 (39).



Agenda Item 7A— CRTPA Annual Safety Targets Adoption
FEBRUARY 19, 2024 PAGE 6

MOST RECENT (2023) DATA USING SIGNAL FOUR ANALYTICS

Bicycle & Pedestrian Fatalities 2016 - 2023

As identified above, one of the five (5) required safety targets is related exclusively to bicycles and
pedestrians (“Number of non-motorized fatalities and non-motorized serious injuries”). This target
combines both bicycle and pedestrian data as well as fatality and serious injury data.

Use of Signal Four Analytics data*, allows the CRTPA to break out this information by mode and
incident and update this information to the year 2023 (as is shown as follows).

CRTPA REGION
2016 - 2023*
Bicycle & Pedestrian
Fatalities

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

«=@==Bike Fatalities ==®==Pedestrian Fatalities

As identified in the above chart, bicycle fatalities in 2023 (4) increased from the previous year 2022
(2). Pedestrian fatalities (18) in 2023 also increased from the previous year 2022 (11).

Consistent with nationwide data revealing that in 2021, three out of four of the 7,300 pedestrians
killed in the United States lost their lives between sunset and sunrise, most recent data identify a
similar trend within the CRTPA region for 2023. Of the 18 pedestrians who lost their lives, 12
pedestrian deaths (67%) occurred during nighttime hours.

*Note: Signal Four Analytics data used to identify recent bicycle & pedestrian fatalities (and serious injuries,
below). Most recent Signal Four 2023 data is not yet finalized.


https://www.nytimes.com/interactive/2023/12/11/upshot/nighttime-deaths.html

Agenda Item 7A— CRTPA Annual Safety Targets Adoption

FEBRUARY 19, 2024 PAGE 7

Bicycle & Pedestrian Serious Injuries 2016 - 2023

Similar to the above analysis, staff has updated bicycle & pedestrian serious injury data to 2023 using
the Signal 4 Analytics database.

CRTPA REGION
2016 - 2023*
Bicycle & Pedestrian Serious

Injuries
29 26
— 20 20 20 = 20 —
16 19
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Bike Serious Injuries Pedestrian Serious Injuries

As shown above, for 2023, pedestrian serious injuries decreased (20) from the previous year 2022
(26*). Bicycle serious injuries increased in 2023 (3) from 2022 (1).

*Note: Signal Four Analytics data used to identify recent bicycle & pedestrian serious injuries. Most recent
Signal Four 2023 data not yet finalized.



Agenda Item 7A— CRTPA Annual Safety Targets Adoption
FEBRUARY 19, 2024 PAGE 8

ENHANCING SAFETY THROUGHOUT THE CRTPA REGION

Safety is integrated throughout the CRTPA planning process including in the development of plans and
programs, the identification and implementation of projects, and safety program coordination with
the CRTPA’s partner agencies.

e To provide a focus on these efforts, in 2023 the CRTPA created a safety page (“Focus on
Safety”) directly addressing safety in the transportation planning process, as shown below.

Focus on Safety

THE LATEST: The CRTPA is scheduled to adopt its annual safety targets at the February 19, 2024 CRTA Meeting.

The goal of safety in the transportation planning process is to reduce fatalities and serious injuries on all public roads. Advancing safety
requires a collaborative and integrated approach. Such an approach brings together partners to leverage resources for a common goal:
increasing safety on our roadways.

As the transportation planning agency for the CRTPA region (Gadsden, Jefferson, Leon & Wakulla counties), safety in the transportation
planning process is our top pricrity. Unfortunately, recent federal data identifies that pedestrians deaths in the United States increased

77 percent from 2010 to 2021

Relatedly, the most recent data for the CRTPA region, like the United States,

CRTPA REGION
also identifies an increase in fatalities for some of the most v 2016 - 2023*
pedestrians and bicyclists. Although data varies from year to year, Bicycle & Pedestrian Fatalities
pedestrians and bicyclist fatalities in the CRTPA region increased between
2022 and 2023", as shown on the right ("note: 2023 data from Signal Four
s not yet finalized).
In terms of all roadway users (including pedestrians and bicyclists),
statewide every day 8 people are killed and 49 people are seriously injured 087 3818 % 00 a1 M Nn
on Florida's roadways. Data from the Florida Department of Transportation —e—Bike Fatalities  —e— Pedestrian Fatalities
(FDOT) reflect that within the CRTPA region both serious injuries and
fatalities slightly decreased between 2021 and 2022, as shown below.
CRTPA REGION The issue of transportation safety is a broad one touching many factors,

2016 - 2022
Roadway Serious Injuries & Fatalities

including some outside of the direct purview of the CRTPA. These
include vehicle design, roadway design., traffic enforcement, and road

265 = _ 264 user behavior (including vehicle drivers, pedestrians and cyclists). As a
s result, a collaborative approach is required to address the issue of
transportation safety in the CRTPA region.
” [ sa 5 “ L] ]
2006 a1r 018 w010 220 201 2021

e ST hOS I Fatalties

So what is the CRTPA doing to help ensure our roadways are safe? A number of efforts are underway ranging from seeking to better
balance the region’'s roadways for all modes to educaticn efforts focusing attention on safety's importance. The below identifies some
of the initiatives in which the agency is involved, including cooperative efforts:


https://crtpa.org/focus-on-safety/
https://crtpa.org/focus-on-safety/

Agenda Item 7A— CRTPA Annual Safety Targets Adoption
FEBRUARY 19, 2024 PAGE 9

e Contained within the CRTPA's safety page is a table identifying many of safety efforts in which
the agency is involved. The following pages provide a screenshot of this information as it
appears on the CRTPA’s website:

A study to identify &
prioritize safety
improvements for
vulnerable users along the

N. Monroe Street Safey

Implementation Plan Learn Mare

corridor has been
initiated.

The CRTPA has recently

Key Sid lks Funded for received construction

Construction

i Learn Maore
funding for several urban

sidewalks in the region.

On Qctober 1, 2023, the
CRTPA and its partners
participated in a helmet
fitting event as part of a
continuing effort to

Helmet Fitting Events Learn More

increase cycling safety in
the CRTPA region.

Safe Streets and Roads for All
SAFETY ACTION PLAN )
Adopted in June 2023, the

SS4A plan identifies a
comprehensive set of
projects & strategies to
improve safety on the

Safe Streets and Roads
Learn Mare
for AlL(SS4A) Plan

CRTPA region's roadways.

The CRTPA annually

adopts safety targets
Annual Safety Targets .
2023 Safetyf related to fatalities and Learn More

Adoption . P,
P Targefs serious injuries in the

region.



Agenda Item 7A— CRTPA Annual Safety Targets Adoption

FEBRUARY 19, 2024

PAGE 10

INITIATIVE

Community Traffic Safety
Teams (CTSTs)

Regional Multiuse Trails

Congestion Management
Plan

School Transportation
Safety Study

Transportation
Alternatives Program

SAFE MOBILITY
FOR LIFE —

TAKE THE
SAFE ROUTE

Safe Access to School Study

DETAILS

Each of the CRTPA's 4
counties (Gadsden,
Jefferson, Leon & Wakulla)
have a CTST that meets
regularly to discuss traffic
safety issues.

The CRTPA actively
pursues the expansion of
the region’s multiuse trail
system providing safe
transportation options for
the capital region.

An update to the CRTPA's
CMP is currently underway
which will identify the
region’'s roadways with
identified safety concemns.

The CRTPA has initiated a
study to improve walking
& biking safety for the
region’s students.

The CRTPA region
receives federal TA funds
to enhance mobility &
safety for all roadway
users. Numerous projects
in the CRTPA region have
been funded (and
continue to be funded)
with these funds.

MORE INFORMATION

Learn More

Learn Mare

CMP scheduled for
adoption in early 2024

Learn Mare

Learn More



Agenda Item 7A— CRTPA Annual Safety Targets Adoption
FEBRUARY 19, 2024 PAGE 11

HIGHLIGHTS
Some highlights of recent efforts associated with safety in the CRTPA region include:

Upcoming Key Sidewalk Projects Funded for Construction

N. Monroe Street (Lakeshore Drive to John Knox Road (.896 miles)) (Leon County).

This project is funded ($5.2 million) in fiscal year 2025 to construct sidewalks along the west
side of N. Monroe.

Paul Russell Road (Monday Road to Apalachee Parkway (1.2 miles)) (Leon County). This project
is funded for construction ($2.9 million) in fiscal year 2025.

Old St. Augustine Road (Lafayette Street to Paul Russell Road (.95 miles)) (Leon County).
Construction is funded (S1.4 million) in fiscal year 2026.

CRTPA Community Events Conducted

Helmet Fitting Events — CRTPA staff and partners conducted several helmet fitting events in
the region over the last few months. These events included helmet giveaways as well as a
coordinated helmet training event to train helmet fitters in Wakulla County for future events.

Safety Studies Initiated & Adopted

Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) Plan — The SS4A plan identified a comprehensive set of
projects & strategies to improve safety on the CRTPA region’s roadways from which further
studies and funding initiatives have begun (adopted June 2023).

North Monroe Street Safety Implementation Plan — This study came out of the SS4A Plan and
is identifying needed safety improvements on the corridor (Tharpe Street to Capital Circle,
Northwest). The study was kicked off at the January 2024 CRTPA Retreat and includes
development of an implementation plan focused on securing funding for execution of
identified improvements through development of a SS4A Implementation grant.

CRTPA School Safety Study (“Take the Safe Route — Safe Access to School Study”) — this
study, also discussed at the January 2024 CRTPA Retreat, is focusing on identifying walking and
biking improvements to targeted to schools identified as having the greatest need in the
region.

High Visibility Enforcement (HVE)

Leon County High Visibility Enforcement Initiative— Current initiative (8/31/2023 -
5/10/2024) being conducted by the Tallahassee Police Department along identified high crash
location corridors (West Pensacola Street, Orange Avenue, Apalachee Parkway, West
Tennessee Street and North Monroe Street). High Visibility Enforcement is a FDOT program
designed to increase awareness of, and compliance with, traffic laws and regulations that
protect the safety of pedestrians and bicyclists on Florida’s roads. Within the CRTPA region,
Leon County is amongst the top 25 counties with the highest representation of crashes
resulting in pedestrian and bicyclist serious and fatal injuries. The Leon County initiative is
occurring through a contract between State of Florida and City of Tallahassee.



https://www.wctv.tv/2023/10/30/tallahassee-police-department-conduct-proactive-patrols-ensure-pedestrian-bicycle-safety/

Agenda Item 7A— CRTPA Annual Safety Targets Adoption
FEBRUARY 19, 2024 PAGE 12

Regional Trail Expansion
e Regional Trail Network Studies & SUN Trail Funding Opportunities — Expanding the CRTPA
regional trail network through development of trail project studies and pursuit of SUN Trail
funding opportunities. Recent efforts include the Wakulla Springs Trail, the Tallahassee to
Havana Trail, and the US 90 West Trail (Gadsden County).

OPTIONS

Option 1: Adopt by resolution the 2024 CRTPA Safety Targets and a long-term safety goal
of zero fatalities and serious injuries for the CRTPA region to be achieved by the
year 2040 as shown on Attachment 1.
(Recommended)

Option 2: CRTPA Board Discretion.

ATTACHMENT
Attachment 1: Adoption Resolution
Attachment 2: Summary of Historical CRTPA Safety Measures



ATTACHMENT 1

CRTPA RESOLUTION 2024-02-7A

A RESOLUTION OF THE CAPITAL REGION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AGENCY (CRTPA)
ADOPTING TARGETS FOR SAFETY PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Whereas, the Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency (CRTPA) is the organization designated by the Governor of Florida on August 17, 2004
together with the State of Florida, for carrying out provisions of 23 U.S.C. 134 (h) and (i)(2), (3) and (4); CFR 450.324, 326, 328, 330, and 332; and FS 339.175
(5) and (7); and

Whereas, the Federal Highway Administration issued a final rule based on section 1203 of the Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-
21) and with considerations to provisions in the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act, which established five safety performance measures; and

Whereas, the Florida Department of Transportation, as part of their annual development of the State Highway Safety Improvement Plan has developed
safety targets for each of the five safety performance measures; and each Metropolitan Planning Organization shall establish safety targets for each state by
February 27, 2024 and report progress over time in reaching the adopted target; and

Whereas, CRTPA review, in coordination with the Florida Department of Transportation and local transportation partners has identified opportunities
for inclusion of safety improvements in projects, and the monitoring of safety criteria, in order to achieve higher safety measures in the CRTPA region.

NOW, THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED BY THE CAPITAL REGION TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AGENCY THAT:
The CRTPA adopts the following targets for Safety Performance Measures for 2024:

2024
Safety Performance Measures

Number of fatalities 49
Rate of fatalities per 100 Million Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) 1.091
Number of serious injuries 216
Rate of serious injuries per 100 Million VMT 4.726
Number of non-motorized fatalities and non-motorized serious injuries 36

Furthermore, the CRTPA adopts a long-term safety goal of zero fatalities and serious injuries for the CRTPA region to be achieved by 2040.
Passed and duly adopted by the Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency on this 19t day of February 2024.

Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency
Attest:

By:

Quincee Messersmith, Chair
By:

Greg Slay, Executive Director



CRTPA ADOPTED SAFETY PERFORMANCE TARGETS & REPORTED DATA

ATTACHMENT 2

2018 to 2024
SAFETY PERFORMANCE Adopted Target Reported Adopted Target | Reported Adopted Target | Reported Adopted Target Reported

MEASURE 2018 2018" 2019 2019" 2020 2020" 2021 2021
Number of fatalities 56 58 54 54 58 56 58 68
Rate of fatalities per 100
Million Vehicle Miles Traveled
(VMT) 1.279 1.245 1.203 1.166 1.273 1.339 1.273 1.559
Number of serious injuries 266 245 258 243 256 196 252 264
Rate of serious injuries per 100
Million VMT 7.313 5.259 5.842 5.249 5.684 4.865 5.513 6.054
Number of non-motorized
fatalities and non-motorized
serious injuries 44 37 43.8 46 42.2 38 42.2 39

SAFETY PERFORMANCE ADOPTED Target Reported ADOPTED Target | Reported PROPOSED Target| Reported

MEASURE 2022 2022 2023 2023 2024 20247
Number of fatalities 55 63 52 49
Rate of 1atalties per 100
Million Vehicle Miles Traveled
(VMT) 1.209 1.39 1.148 S 1.091 R
Number of serious injuries 239 222 227 o'é' 216 o“'
Rate of serious injuries per 100 &Qg’Q &Qg’Q
Million VMT 5.237 4.91 4.975 < 4.726 °
Number of non-motorized
fatalities and non-motorized
serious injuries 40 47 38 36

1 - Based upon reported annual data (source: Annual Safety Data for FHWA Peformance Measures by MPO provided by the Florida Department of Transportation)

2 - Data not yet available ("FDOT Annual Safety Data for FHWA Peformance Measures by MPQ")




February 19, 2024

i L |
CRTR2A-
CAPITAL REGION

TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AGENCY

4

AGENDA ITEM 7 B

CRTPA TELECOMMUTE STUDY

TYPE OF ITEM: Action

STATEMENT OF ISSUE

Staff is seeking acceptance of the CRTPA Telecommute Study, A Look Back and A Look Forward.

CRTPA CoMMITTEE ACTIONS

Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)
The CRTPA Technical Advisory Committee, at their February 6, 2024 meeting, voted unanimously to
recommend the CRTPA Board accept the CRTPA Telecommute Study.

Citizens Multimodal Advisory Committee (CMAC)

The CRTPA’s Citizen’s Multimodal Advisory Committee, at their February 6, 2024 meeting,
unanimously recommended the CRTPA Board approve the CRTPA Telecommute Study.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Option 1: Accept the CRTPA Telecommute Study, A Look Back and A Look Forward.

BACKGROUND

In the Spring of 2023, CRTPA staff and Kittelson and Associates (the Project Team) initiated the
Telecommute Study. Telecommuting (also known as “remote work” or “telework”) sees employers and
employees performing work tasks from a location other than a traditional office space. Teleworkers
may work a mixed or hybrid schedule (working sometimes remotely and sometimes in an office), utilize
a remote work hub, or primarily work from home.

Physical trips decreased in 2020 and 2021, when the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic forced
nonessential workers to pivot to telework. This study examined traffic and telework conditions pre-
pandemic, during and post pandemic. The effect on congestion in the CRTPA region was most acute
during the morning and evening peak hours— the prime commuting period.



Agenda Item 7B — Telecommute Study
FEBRUARY 19, 2024 PAGE 2

The Technical Report provides an overview of the relevant traffic and teleworker data, highlights of the
literature review, key takeaways from stakeholder interviews, and recommendations, including best
practices. Four appendices present the comprehensive body of information in support of the Technical
Report.

Appendix A contains a Review of the Literature, conducted at the onset of the study. Appendix B
presents the data and analysis. In addition, providing insight into the impact digital commuting has on
roadway congestion, future roadway conditions are modeled assuming various rates of telecommuting.
Appendix C presents a synopsis of the interviews with local transportation and economic agencies and
employers. Lastly, Appendix D offers resources on developing and implementing a telework program.

CRTPA TELECOMMUTE TECHNICAL REPORT

When the suddenly compelled by COVID-19 stay-at-home orders, employers and employees turned to
the digital commute for continuity of operations. Removing both professional and administrative
commuters from the regional network dramatically reduced congestion. Essential and service workers
still reported to their places of employment, but traffic congestion was non-existent during the peak of
pandemic. According to American Community Survey data, the number of people teleworking in Leon
County increased from 5.5 percent in 2019 to 19.3 percent in 2021.

Telecommuting is one of many Transportation Demand Management (TDM) strategies aimed at
reducing congestion and reliance on single-occupant vehicle trips. However, TDM historically has
focused on reducing reliance on one-person commuter trips in favor of alternative modes of
transportation, such as public transit, walking, cycling, and ridesharing. This report demonstrates
telecommuting is also an effective tool that advances the goals of a TDM program.

How Do you Solve a Problem Like Peak-Hour Congestion?

Before understanding how to solve the problem of peak-hour congestion, the factors contributing to
the congestion were analyzed. Traveling for employment is an especially heavy contributor to peak-
hour congestion in the Capital Region. Data reveals that 47% of employees commute to or from
surrounding rural counties while the remaining 53% live and commute within Leon County. One insight
from the study is even with an increase in the number of employees telecommuting, typically in a hybrid
combination of in-office and at-home, traffic volumes have rebounded to near pre-pandemic levels.

Literature Review: How Telecommuting Changes a Community?

Although the body of research is still developing, and employer telework programs are still evolving, a
review of the existing literature helps us to understand the benefits, challenges, and paradigm shifts
that come with embracing telecommuting. Telecommuting has benefits for the work place by reducing
turn-over and improving employee retention. This provides an organization with stability and for
employees improves morale as well as life-work balance. In addition, teleworkers report less stress.



Agenda Item 7B — Telecommute Study
FEBRUARY 19, 2024 PAGE 3

On the flip side businesses have increased security protocols and vulnerabilities, which can translate to
additional operating costs. Employers identify concerns with managing remote workers, challenges with
collaboration and limited opportunities for socialization. As demonstrated during the Covid-19
pandemic, telecommuting is a strategic component for continuity of operations. Telecommuting is
critical for businesses and communities in the Capital Region to remain resilient during a natural
disaster.

Lastly, telecommuting benefits a community by reducing congestion; every one percent reduction in
vehicles vyields a three-fold decrease in congestion. Reduced congestion lessens impacts on
infrastructure, extends the lifespan of facilities which translates to savings on repair and maintenance.
While air quality is in attainment in the Capital Region, reduced congestion also translates to reduced
emissions, benefiting the environment.

It is important to note, that while telework might alleviate peak-hour congestion, the relationship to
vehicle miles traveled (VMT) may be more complex. Teleworkers may live further from their offices, so
if they ever do commute, they travel longer distances. Remote workers have also been found to take
more unlinked, discretionary trips during the day, instead of compiling all errands into their return home
commute.

Local and Regional Voices on Telecommuting and TDM?

The Project Team and CRTPA staff met with local and regional stakeholders, and considered the input
from members of the Project Working Group. Interviews were conducted with the Tallahassee-Leon
County Office of Economic Vitality (OEV); Apalachee Regional Planning Council (ARPC) RideOn
commuter services; and Central Florida Commuter Services, reThink Your Commute. In addition,
representatives from Florida Agricultural and Mechanical University (FAMU) Office of Parking &
Transportation and Florida State University (FSU) Transportation and Parking Services, as well the
Human Resource Department, provided input.

Some key takeaways include

e Unemploymentin Leon County hovers around three percent, putting employees and job seekers
in a position of leverage and allowing them to negotiate telecommuting as part of a
compensation package. (OEV)

e Commercial office space and mixed- use vacancy rates have declined post-pandemic in Leon
County. (OEV)

e Parking remains a challenge at FSU, as parking lots served by the circulator bus are underutilized
in favor of driving to and within the campus. (FSU Transportation and Parking Services)

e FAMU allows Freshman to have a vehicle on campus. (FAMU Office of Parking & Transportation)

e Thereis a balance between obligating employees to report in an office and giving them volunteer
opportunities to report. (ARPC-RideOn)

e A significant number of Central Florida businesses have a hybrid policy, allowing employees to
work from home some days of the week, but the current push is to get staff back in the office.
(Central Florida Commuter Services)

e Several stakeholders requested or suggested development of a toolkit that could be provided to
employersto assist with managing remote workers.



Agenda Item 7B — Telecommute Study
FEBRUARY 19, 2024 PAGE 4

Recommendation and Best Practices?

There is a relative stabilization of telework rates since peak-pandemic and data reveals that there are
approximately 40,000 employees are working fully remote or hybrid schedules in the region. Even with
significantly higher rates of remote work adoption than pre-pandemic congestion has returned. Traffic
congestion has economic costs, delays commuters, impacts air quality, and causes mental stress.
Jurisdictions and employers can use TDM strategies to combat these adverse community and personal
impacts, whether through encouraging alternate travel modes, different travel patterns, or reducing
single-occupancy vehicle use.

While the COVID-19 Pandemic necessitated telework, it was implemented in response to a public health
emergency. In the post-pandemic workplace employers have the opportunity to tailor a telework
program that serves the needs of the business and provides employees the tools to be successful
teleworkers. Successful telecommuting programs require structure and resources, including
equipment, childcare, and channels for dialogue between employer and employee. Resources are
provided in the final section of the report and supplemented in Appendix D. This material is included
for employers to facilitate the development of a telecommuting or to enhance a current remote work
program.

NEXT STEPS

The Study will be distributed to stakeholders upon acceptance by the Board.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Option 1: Accept the CRTPA Telecommute Study, A Look Back and A Look Forward.
(Recommended)

Option 2: CRTPA Board Discretion.



ATTACHMENT 1

Capital Region

Telecommute Study
A Look Back & A Look Forward

Capital Regional Transportation Planning Agency
FEBRUARY 2024



Executive Summary

The Capital Region Transportation
Planning Agency (CRTPA)
Telecommute Study explores

how telecommuting can impact
transportation demand and reduce
peak-hour traffic congestion in the
four-county Capital Region.

In 2020, the COVID pandemic caused an
exponential increase in telecommuting both
nationally and locally. Pandemic stay-at-

home orders drastically reduced daily traffic
throughout the Capital region, especially during
peak hours.

In the subseguent years, as communities have
regained a sense of normalcy, area traffic has
also rebounded to pre-COVID levels. Although
working from home is no longer a public
health necessity, telecommuting is now a more
acceptable and implemented practice. The
CRTPA is interested in using the lessons from
life during the COVID-19 pandemic - namely,
that implementing telecommuting programs
can affect area traffic and is an effective
Transportation Demand Management (TDM)
strategy.

Building upon lessons learned about pandemic
travel behavior, as well as input from regional
employers, the study demonstrates that
telecommuting:

» Creates more flexible work opportunities that
attract top talent to the region.

* Reduces peak-hour congestion throughout
the region.

* Supports the region’s economic resilience by
making employers more adaptive.

This report provides the following:

* Relevant TDM and telecommuting research.

« Findings from a review of current, pre-
pandemic, and pandemic commute patterns.

* Key input received through stakeholder
interviews.

» Resources for employers in the Capital
Region for developing a telecommuting
program.

Key outcomes presented in the report include:

* Telecommuting is an effective TDM strategy
to reduce traffic congestion.

e In the post-pandemic workplace
telecommuting is a more established
practice.

e Telecommuting workplace programs and
policies facilitate establishing and managing
a telework program.

« Guidance for employers on managing remote
workers is a key component to supporting
partners in implementation of telecommuting
programs.

* Developing evaluation framework will allow
employers to monitor progress of their
telecommute programs and inform future
decision making.

Cover Photo Sources. Shutterstock

Thank you to the members of the Project Working Group for your participation and

contributions to the Telecommute Study.

Capital Region Telecommuter Study



Staff from the following agencies
assisted with the development of
this document:

Apalachee Regional Planning
Council RideOn

City of Tallahassee-Leon County
Office of Economic Vitality

City of Tallahassee-Leon County
Planning Department

City of Tallahassee StarMetro Transit

Leon County Department of
Development Services

Florida State University
Transportation and Parking Services

Florida Agricultural and Mechanical
University Office of Parking &
Transportation

Florida Department of
Transportation

CAPITAL REGION

TRANSPORTATION PLJ\NF&ING!AGI:NCY
w

st

Contents

Executive Summary.............

How Do you Solve a
Problem Like Peak-Hour
Congestion?.....ccccevveiieen.

Literature Review: How

A4

Telecommuting Changes a

Community .cooeeevviiieenn,

Local and Regional Voices
on Telecommuting
and TDM ..o,

Recommendations ...............

Appendices

Literature Review
Current Conditions
Stakeholder Interviews
Policy Guidance

oNeRub=

KITTELSON
&ASSOCIATES



An effective TDM program can:

* Alleviate traffic congestion.

* Reduce transportation-related
environmental impacts.

» Stimulate economic activity and growth.

Historically, TDM program strategies have
primarily focused on reducing reliance

on single-occupancy vehicles in favor of
alternative modes of transportation, such as
public transit, walking, cycling, ridesharing.

How Do you Solve a
Problem Like Peak-
Hour Congestion?

Nobody likes sitting in traffic. To ensure roadway
users can get to where they need to go efficiently,
transportation authorities have turned to
implementing Transportation Demand Management
(TDM) programs in their jurisdictions.

The advent of the COVID-19 pandemic,
however, demonstrated that telecommuting
is also an effective tool that advances

the goals of a TDM program.

Through this study the CRTPA examined
how telecommuting impacted congestion
during the pandemic and investigated the
feasibility of telecommuting programs

as an effective strategy to address
congestion and reduce demand across

its four-county transportation system.

Source: Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

Capital Region Telecommuter Study



What Creates Traffic
in CRTPA Counties?

Historically, trips to school, work, errands,
or recreation generate vehicle volumes
across the region (Figure 1).

Traveling for employment is an especially heavy
contributor to peak-hour congestion. While
workers can live in very rural areas of a region,
jobs tend to cluster in urban city centers.

The primary job industries in the Capital
Region, including government, education, and
healthcare, are heavily concentrated in the City
of Tallahassee and surrounding Leon County.

An analysis weighed information from the
American Community Survey (ACS), travel
speeds from HERE Technologies, volumes
from Florida Traffic Online, and Longitudinal-
Employer Household Dynamics (LEHD) data
to understand the prevalence of physical
commuting in the region, as well as how these
commutes contribute to congested roadways.

Figure 1. Commuter Trips To, From, and Within Leon County

4== |nbound Flow (61,615 trips) - (=
4=m= Qutbound Flow (25,528 trips)
4== Live & Work in Leon Co. (97,065 trips)

LBa

Gretra

&/

Havana 157

Plasi Rodd
Saie Forest

B
:
ELawhisE BaMGt USGS, FEMA, Tallahaiise-Lesn County GfS, FDER, Esn, HERE. Garrs,

Wakuls Speings SafeGraph, FADL BMETLHASA, USGS EPA, MFS
SEate Park =

How Do you Solve a Problem Like Peak-Hour Congestion?



Figure 2. Commuter Flow Between All Counties in CRTPA Region

b e S by S e e o

Meanwhile, for all three rural counties in the

CRTPA’s planning area—Jefferson, Wakulla, and In Leon County

Gadsden'—more of their residents commute to

Leon County for work than commute within their 53% of employees live and work within
counties for employment leading to longer travel the County.

distances and more congestion (Figure 2).?

47% of employees commute to or from
surrounding Counties.

12019 LEHD Origin-Destination Employment Statistics, Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics, U.S. Census Bureau.
2 LEHD, 2019.

6 Capital Region Telecommuter Study



|

Source: Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

How Do you Solve a Problem Like Peak-Hour Congestion? 7



Literature Review:
How Telecommuting
Changes a
Community

Telecommuting (also known as “remote work”
or “telework™) sees employers and employees
performing work tasks from a location other
than a traditional office space.

Teleworkers may work a mixed or hybrid Telecommuting Benefits

schedule (working sometimes remotely and
sometimes in an office), utilize a remote work Our Work Places By:
hub, or primarily work from home.
1. Improving employee retention:

Physical trips decreased in 2020 and 2021, when Hiring and training new employees is

effect on congestion in the CRTPA region was to team morale, client relationships, and team
most acute during the morning and evening capacity. Strong retention maximizes the
peak hours— the prime commuting period. likelihood of keeping high performers and

innovators, including senior staff who may

Although the body of research on these have otherwise retired early.

questions is still developing, a review of the
existing literature helps us to understand the
benefits, challenges, and paradigm shifts that In one survey, nearly half (46%)
come with embracing telecommuting. of respondents reported that

telecommuting reduced attrition.?

A “remote work hub” refers to a co- 2. Improving access to jobs:

working space where employees Remote work may improve access to certain
from many different companies can jobs or industries for rural workers who
congregate to do work. would otherwise have long commutes.

Remote work hubs provide employees
with the infrastructure and equipment of
an office without requiring them to live
near the office space of their company.
They also provide socialization and
reduce unwanted commute times.

14% of Americans have changed jobs
to shorten their commute.®

3 “Pros and Cons,” Global Workplace Analytics White Paper,
https://globalworkplaceanalytics.com/pros-cons.

4 “Pros and Cons,” https://globalworkplaceanalytics.com/
pros-cons.

8 Capital Region Telecommuter Study



3. Improving employee morale and 5. Reducing overhead:

work-life balance: Businesses that have a larger contingent
Telework increases flexibility and employees’ of fully remote or hybrid workers report
quality of life. One study found that removing reduced real-estate costs. Employers can
a commute saved workers an average of 72 estimate their cost savings using the Global
minutes a day; workers invested at least part Workplace Analytics Telework Workplace
of this time back into their jobs.5 Savings Calculator?®
36% of people in one survey One source reports an average
reported they would choose remote annual real estate savings of $10,000
work over a pay raise.® per full-time teleworker.?
4. Improving employee health and 6. Expanding the talent pool:
reducing employee absences: Remote work improves an employer’s ability
Remote workers report reduced stress and to recruit caregivers, people with mobility

challenges, and other talented staff for

illness, and more time to exercise. Flexible = db :
whom going into an office regularly would be

hours benefit employees and employers by

allowing workers to schedule appointments a barrier.
or run errands during the day without losing
productive hours. Teleworkers return to work One study reported that 37% of

faster following medical absences.’

employees would change jobs for
the opportunity to work remotely at
least one day a week.©

» -
.
-

Source: Soundtrap on Unsplash

5 Cevat Giray Aksoy et al., “Time Savings When Working from Home,” Becker Friedman Institute, University of Chicago,
November 2023, https://bfi.uchicago.edu/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/BFI_WP_2023-03.pdf.

6 “Pros and Cons,” https:/globalworkplaceanalytics.com/pros-cons.
7 “Pros and Cons,” https://globalworkplaceanalytics.com/pros-cons.

8 The U.S. Office of Personnel Management praised the GWA Calculator in a 2016 report to Congress on Federal Telework.
Users must create a free account to access the “lite” version of the tool but can pay for a more comprehensive version.

9 “Pros and Cons,” https:/globalworkplaceanalytics.com/pros-cons.

10 Barrero et al., “The Evolution of Work From Home,” Journal of Economic Perspectives, Vol 37, No. 4 (2023), 23-50,
https://globalworkplaceanalytics.com/telecommuting-statistics.

Literature Review: How Telecommuting Changes a Community 9



Telecommuting Benefits
Our Economy By:

1.

Improving regional resilience:
Where feasible, telework enables
employers and employees to continue
working should an event interrupt onsite
operations, such as a natural disaster.

Increasing productivity time:
Collectively, physical commutes cost
drivers in the Capital Region hundreds
of thousands of productive hours.

The average commuter in
Tallahassee loses 23 hours a
year to work-related travel."

Source: Adobe Stock

Telecommuting Benefits
Our Roadways By:

1. Reducing congestion:
Every one percent reduction in vehicles
yields a three-fold decrease in congestion.”?

2. Lowering stress on transportation

infrastructure:
Lessening demand on transportation
infrastructure will improve its lifespan.

Telecommuting Benefits
Our Environment By:

1. Enhancing air quality and yielding
other climate benefits:
The Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District determined that
pandemic related shelter-in-place restrictions
led to a 28% reduction in particulate matter
pollution. In response the agency committed
to promoting telework—and teleconferences
for public meetings where [California’s]
Brown Act requirements are still met—for its
air quality and climate benefits.”®

1 City Ranking List, INRIX 2022 Global Traffic Scorecard, INRIX Institute, https:/inrix.com/scorecard/#city-ranking-list.
2 “Pros and Cons,” https://globalworkplaceanalytics.com/pros-cons.
13 https:/www.airquality.org/Communications/Documents/AQ-Benefits-Teleworking-Packet-02-28-23. pdf

10

Capital Region Telecommuter Study



Telecommuting Strains
Our Workplaces By:

1.

Limiting opportunities for
socialization:

Work from home can be isolating, particularly
for people who thrive on interpersonal
interaction. Employee loneliness could result
in reduced productivity, health, and retention.

Dispersing data security and IT

needs:

Telework naturally invites more technological
vulnerabilities into company networks,

as staff need to remotely access servers.
Software learning curves (for programs like
Zoom WebEx, and Microsoft Teams) may
result in increased demand on IT resources.

Limiting employer oversight:
Some managers report that oversight is more
challenging when employees are remote.

. Siloing collaborators and team

members:
Work from home may hamper
spontaneous or effective collaboration.

. Increasing distractions during the

workday:

Lack of an appropriate and comfortable
telework office space may expose the
teleworker to outside demands (such as
children or chores), reducing productivity.

Telecommuting
Changes:

1. What “productivity” means:
Perception of worker productivity changes
depending on the survey referenced
and likely by job type, industry, and
the personality and homelife of the
employee* A study by the Miami Dade
Transportation Planning Agency (TPO)
identified lower productivity as a top
reported challenge in 2020 ® Whereas
employees in a San Diego Association of
Governments (SANDAG) study reported
positive impacts to productivity in both
2021 and 2023. It is notable that the
2020 survey was at the height of COVID
with many variables likely impacting
productivity (such as school closures and
fresh acclimation to work from home).

2. What trips occur:
Telework might alleviate peak-hour
congestion, but research suggests that
its ultimate relationship to vehicle miles
traveled (VMT) may be more complex.
Teleworkers may live further from their
offices, so if they ever do commute, they
travel longer distances. Remote workers
have also been found to take more
unlinked, discretionary trips during the day,
instead of compiling all errands into their
physical commute home from work.® "

14 One study of employees at a travel agency in China who were randomly assigned the ability to work from home found
that the teleworkers were 13% more productive than the control group of office workers.
Nicholas Bloom et al., “Does Working from Home Work? Evidence from a Chinese Experiment,” The Quarterly Journal of
Economics, Volume 130, Issue 1 (2015), 165-218, https://doi.org/10.1093/gje/qju032.

5 https:/www.miamidadetpo.org/library/studies/mdtpo-telecommute-study-final-report-2021-O1.pdf

6 Andrew Hook et al., “A systemic review of the energy and climate impacts of teleworking,” 2020 Environ. Res. Lett,,
https://iopscience.iop.org/article/10.1088/1748-9326/ab8a84/pdf.

17 Pengyu Zhu et al.,, “Metropolitan size and the impacts of telecommuting on personal travel,” Transportation 45, 385-414

(2018), https://doi.org/10.1007/s111116-017-9846-3.

Literature Review: How Telecommuting Changes a Community



How Do Commutes Play
Into “Productivity”?

Research in the Journal of Economic
Perspectives suggests that commutes are
the key to understanding the difference
between employer and employee perceptions
of productivity. Employees tend to consider
their commute as time dedicated to work;

an employee whose commute is half an

hour in each direction and who spends eight
hours in the office considers nine hours of
their total day dedicated to work. However,

a manager only sees that the employee has
accomplished their regular workload in their
standard amount of time (eight hours). An
employee that works from home doesn’t lose
the hour of their day to a commute, meaning
that their understanding of their workday
(eight hours) aligns with their employer’s.’®

How Has Telecommuting
Changed the Capital Region?

According to ACS data, the number of
people teleworking in Leon County increased
from 5.5% in 2019 to 19.3% in 2021. Previous
year-over-year increases were minimal,

from 3.5% of the population working

from home in 2017 to 5.3% in 2018.

Figure 3 shows the rate of remote work by
occupation in Leon County as estimated by

ACS data.® The top four occupation groupings
(administrative support, management, sales, and
education) all have around 25% of employees
working at least one day a week from home.
Management, the occupation with the second-
highest number of employees in Leon County,
has approximately 44% of its employees on a full
or hybrid telework schedule.

8 Barrero et al.

Source: Adobe Stock

19 At the time of this analysis, the relevant 2022 ACS dataset was predicted data. This study uses 2021 finalized ACS

numbers to better reflect existing conditions.

12

Capital Region Telecommuter Study



Figure 3. Leon County Remote Work by Industry (2022 Estimates)

Occupation Grouping Number of Works Works

Employees | From Home On-Site
Management 16,675 33.21% 10.89% 55.90%
Business and financial operations 10,998 45.8% 14.27 % 39.93%
Computer and mathematical 7,237 60.17 % 9.76 % 30.07%
Architecture and engineering 1,373 32.25% 12.93% 54.82%
Life, physical, and social science 2,399 26.48 % 16.23% 57.28%
Community and social service 2,776 25.45% 18.82% 55.73%
Legal 4,713 42.33% 15.38% 42.29%
Educational instruction, and library 13,086 17.23% 6.3% 76.47 %
Arts, design, entertainment, sports, and media 3,445 42.39% 8.38% 49.22%
Healthcare practitioners and technical 11,181 9.83% 4.06% 86.11%
Healthcare support 3,462 15.91% N 82.93%
Protective Service 2,985 7.36 % N 88.66 %
Food preparation and serving related 9,237 2.84% N 96.91%
Building and grounds cleaning and maintenance 2,580 6% N 92.64 %
Personal care and service 3,541 14.62 % N 82.44%
Sales and related 16,250 20.23% 4.22% 75.55%
Office and administrative support 22,491 22.46% 4.42% 7312%
Farming, fishing, and forestry 683 N N 88.11%
Construction and extraction 3,327 513% N 93.46 %
Installation, maintenance, and repair 4,051 7.23% N 91.63%
Production 3,244 7.23% N 92.03%
Transportation 3,294 6.22% N 92.72%
Material moving 4,991 3.55% N 96.25%
Total 154,019

Employees by Occupation Grouping (ACS B24060: Occupation by Class of Worker for the Civilian Employed Population
16 Years and Over); Census/Employment/Industry and Occupation.

Literature Review: How Telecommuting Changes a Community 13



Figure 4 shows the rate of telework by county
and by year pulled from Replica.?® Data for
2020 was unavailable due to the volatility of
the year, however we can assume that the rate
of telework was significantly higher in 2020
(likely more than double compared to 2021).
This chart then shows a relative stabilization of
telework rates since peak-pandemic and that
even with significantly higher rates of remote
work adoption than pre-pandemic congestion
has returned.

Professional Services, healthcare,
transportation, manufacturing, and IT
industries to Tallahassee. These industries,
with some exceptions, are largely feasible
for telework.

-Stakeholder Interview with OEV

Figure 5 breaks down the 44,000 jobs in
the CRTPA area that potentially allow for
telecommuting either fully or in a hybrid manner.

Possible metrics that can track telework
readiness, adoption, costs, and benefits
include:

* Average commute times.

* Number of teleworkers in region and average
value of commute-time savings.

* Number of employers by size which have a
telework policy.

« Amount of office vacancies.

Building upon this report, the CRTPA could
consider implementing a regularly distributed
survey within the region to track sentiments
and availability of remote work by employers
and employees. The SANDAG study cited earlier
and highlighted as a case study later in this
report—is a good example of how this might be
implemented.

Figure 4. Percentage of Employees Working from Home (Replica)

Percentage of Employees Working from Home by County and Year

251
B Gadsden
mm  Jefferson
EE leon 20% 20%
20 mmm Wakulla

Percentage
1=
[9)]

=
o

2019

Data Source: Replica Work From Home

22%

21%

19% 19%

Year

20 Replica is a software that incorporates anonymized data from a variety of sources like the US Census Bureau, mobile
location data, land use, economic activity, and others to create a simulation of an area to model how people get around,

where they are going, and when they travel.

14

Capital Region Telecommuter Study



Figure 5. Available Regional Remote Jobs by Industry

Occupation Grouping Full Remote Jobs Hybrid Jobs
Management 5,538 1,816
Business and financial operations 5,037 1,569
Computer and mathematical 4,355 706
Architecture and engineering 443 178
Life, physical, and social science 635 389
Community and social service 706 522
Legal 1,995 725
Educational instruction, and library 2,255 824
Arts, design, entertainment, sports, and media 1,460 289
Healthcare practitioners and technical 1,099 454
Healthcare support 551 0
Protective Service 220 0
Food preparation and serving related 262 0
Building and grounds cleaning and maintenance 155 0]
Personal care and service 518 0
Sales and related 3,287 686
Office and administrative support 5,051 994
Farming, fishing, and forestry 0] 0
Construction and extraction 171 0
Installation, maintenance, and repair 293 0
Production 235 0
Transportation 205 0
Material moving 177 0
Total 34,647 9,153

Source: Employees by Occupation Grouping (ACS B24060: Occupation by Class of Worker for the Civilian Employed
Population 16 Years and Over) x Percent of Employees by Occupation Working from Home (Census/Employment/
Industry and Occupation)

Literature Review: How Telecommuting Changes a Community 15



How Has Congestion
Changed Since the
COVID-19 Pandemic?

Major commuter corridors in Leon County
experienced significant reduction in volumes
and delay in both peak and off-peak hours in
2020, when COVID-19 telecommute practices
were at their height. Although COVID-19 remains
a concern, we are no longer in the acute phase
of the pandemic; as such, traffic has steadily
crept back to pre-COVID conditions. Today in
the region, most major employers have resumed
normal operations, and consequently peak-
hour congestion has also returned, nearing the
highest levels the region has witnessed. 2022
Volumes on [-10, Blountstown Hwy, Meridian Rd,
and Apalachee Pkwy are within seven percent
of 2019 counts, according to data pulled from
Florida Traffic Online.

While COVID-19 is no longer a public health
emergency, the lessons it taught us about work
and telecommuting are likely to stay with us.
Although not all peak-hour trips are commute
related, we know now that strategically reducing
transportation demand by commuters can have
a significant impact on congestion in the four-
county region.

Additionally, although remote work is not at
the peak it was during the pandemic, many
employers are more willing to expand telework
options to employees than they were before
the pandemic. A 2020 statewide survey of
employees and employers found that the
percentage of teleworking employees jumped
from 31% to 60% at the height of the pandemic.
After the pandemic, the number dropped

to 47%.”

The CRTPA, as well as its stakeholders and

local employers, can play a productive role

in improving regional travel and in reducing
congestion. Support for telecommuting, though
diminished, has remained strong since the
pandemic first made it a necessity.

As such, the opportunity to capitalize on
telecommuting’s remaining momentum by
studying its benefits and understanding what
employers in the region find effective and
challenging about implementing remote work
policies.

“Employees who utilize telecommuting
often demand less compensation, leading
to cost savings for employers.”

— Miami-Dade TPO Telecommute Study
(2021

Key Takeaways:

1. The CRTPA can encourage buy-in to a
telework program by communicating
the benefits of telework to employers
and direct them to available resources,
such as RideOn or as provided in the
study.

2. There are approximately 40,000
employees working fully remote or
hybrid schedules in the region.

3. Successful telecommuting programs
require structure and resources,
including equipment, childcare,
and channels for dialogue between
employer and employee.

4. Centering telework in a TDM program
can incentivize employers to prioritize
sustainability, active transportation,
and modal choice in their projects.

To learn more about the benefits of
telecommmuting and existing local, state, and
federal TDM policies see Appendix A: Literature
Review.

21 “Miami-Dade TPO Telecommute Study Final Report,” Miami-Dade Transportation Planning Organization, January 2021,
https:/www.miamidadetpo.org/library/studies/mdtpo-telecommute-study-final-report-2021-01.pdf.

16

Capital Region Telecommuter Study



Source: Kittelson & Associates, Inc.

Literature Review: How Telecommuting Changes a Community 17



Al

Source: Jared Murray on Unsplash

Case Study
San Diego Region and Telework Sentiments 2021 and 2023

The San Diego Association of Governments surveyed businesses and employees in the San Diego
region in 2021?? and 2023%% to understand the changing trends in remote work polices, practices,
and sentiment. While each region’s experience with telework is unigue and nuanced, the SANDAG
findings may provide insights into how telework could affect the CRTPA region.

22 “Remote Work Policies and Practices: Surveys of Businesses and Employees in the San Diego Region,” SANDAG, April
2021, https://www.sandag.org/-/media/SANDAG/Documents/PDF/data-and-research/applied-research-and-performance-
monitoring/surveys/remote-work-policies-and-practices-survey-2021-04-16.pdf.

23 “Remote Work Policies and Practices: Tracking Surveys of Businesses and Employees in the San Diego Region,”
SANDAG, June 2023, https:/www.sandag.org/-/media/SANDAG/Documents/PDF/data-and-research/applied-research-
and-performance-monitoring/surveys/remote-work-tracking-survey-2023-11-06.pdf.

18 Capital Region Telecommuter Study



SANDAG CASE STUDY FINDINGS:

1.

Telecommuting has
remained beyond the
worst of the pandemic.

The percentage of employees
who report being able to work
remotely is higher than pre-
pandemic but lower than in 2021.

Hybrid or mixed telework
schedules are most prevalent.

Roughly one in 10 employees
say they are fully remote.

In 2023, 37% of businesses allowed
their hybrid employees the flexibility
to choose their remote days.

Meanwhile, in 2023, only 15% of
businesses indicated that employees
have set days they work from home.

When it comes to offering remote
work, employer size matters.

Businesses with one to four
employees are less likely to offer
remote work. When they do offer
it, however, they offer it to a larger
share of their employees.

In 2023, 30% of smaller businesses
reported offering telecommute
opportunities to more employees.

Some larger businesses (50
employees or more) are moving
towards bringing employees into the
office. Of the larger employers, 61%
reported making telework available
to fewer employees since 2021.

4. Businesses are acclimating
to telecommuting.

* Nearly half (46%) of businesses
reported feeling better about remote
work now than during the pandemic.

* Roughly the same percent (47%)
reported reducing their square
footage or terminating leases as
a result of telecommuting.

* While businesses reported a variety
of perspectives on the benefits of
telework, they concurred that the
practice improved employee morale,
business overhead, and the ability to
retain good employees. This sentiment
grew from 2021 to 2023. In fact, 24%
of employers reported that inflexible
or stringent remote work policies have
negatively impacted their ability to
hire and retain qualified employees.

5. Challenges remain.

* Employers continue to view remote
work as negatively impacting

teamwork, productivity, communication,

and the ability to identify and
manage poor performers.?*

24 All case study findings come from “Remote Work in the San Diego Region. Transportation Committee

Presentation,” SANDAG, December 1, 2023, Microsoft PowerPoint - Item 6 - Telework 2023.pptx (legistarweb-

production.s3.amazonaws.com); “Infobit: Remote Work in the San Diego Region Post-Pandemic,” SANDAG,
November 2023, https://www.sandag.org/-/media/SANDAG/Documents/PDF/data-and-research/applied-
research-and-performance-monitoring/surveys/infobits-remote-work-2023-11-06.pdf; and “Remote Work
Policies and Practices: Tracking Surveys of Businesses and Employees in the San Diego Region,” SANDAG.

Literature Review: How Telecommuting Changes a Community

19



To get an on-the-ground understanding of
how increased telework would affect the
region, the CRTPA conducted interviews with
stakeholders who have relevant experience
with telecommuting. The stakeholders
include partner agencies and employers.

Partner Agencies

* Tallahassee-Leon County Office
of Economic Vitality (OEV)

« Apalachee Regional Planning
Council (ARPC) RideOn

* Central Florida Commuter Services
reThink Your Commute

Employers

« Florida Agricultural and Mechanical
University (FAMU)

» Florida State University (FSU)

The perspectives from these partner agencies
and local employers offer insight to the
opportunities and challenges unique to
implementing a telecommuting programs in the
Capital Region. This section summarizes key
takeaways from those stakeholder interviews.

20

Local and
Regional Voices
on Telecommuting
and TDM

Data offers crucial insights into the way
telecommuting can shape communities, but it
doesn’t tell the whole story.

Partner Agency Interview
Key Highlights

* One of the Leon County’s biggest private
employers, Danfoss TurboCor, requires
everyone to work in person. (OEV)

 Unemployment in Leon County hovers
around three percent, putting employees
and job seekers in a position of leverage and
allowing them to negotiate telecommuting
as part of a compensation package. (OEV)

« Commercial office space and mixed-
use vacancy rates have declined post-
pandemic in Leon County. (OEV)

« OEV is attempting to attract professional
services, healthcare, transportation,
manufacturing, and IT to Tallahassee.
With a few exceptions, most of these
industries allow for telecommuting. (OEV)

* There is a balance between
obligating employees to report in
an office and giving them volunteer
opportunities to report. (ARPC)

* A significant number of Central Florida
businesses have a hybrid policy, allowing
employees to work from home some
days of the week, but the current
push is to get staff back in the office.
(Central Florida Commuter Services)

Capital Region Telecommuter Study



« Employer engagement on TDM strategies

like vanpooling and ridesharing were
identified as primary approaches in
lessening the number of commuters.
Engagement includes discussing workplace
needs to develop a telecommuting policy
that meets unique employer context
(Central Florida Commuter Services)

Lake Nona was identified as a community
intentionally equipped to allow people

to work from home because of its
significant investment in broadband.
(Central Florida Commuter Services)

Several stakeholders requested or
suggested development of a toolkit
that could be provided to employers to
assist with managing remote workers.

Employer Interview
Key Highlights

FLORIDA A&M UNIVERSITY (FAMU)

« FAMU is evaluating peer strategies

to inform the development of its own
approach to telecommuting.

Many FAMU departments allow
staggered work schedules.

FAMU has no formal policy with regards
to providing teleworkers with internet or
equipment for an in-house office setup.

Local and Regional Voices on Telecommuting and TDM

FLORIDA STATE UNIVERSITY (FSU)

People working for the university, outside
of teaching and hands-on positions, are
afforded opportunities to work from home.

FSU allows employees to opt in to hybrid
work schedules, with positions allocating
three in-office work days and two
telework days per week. This approach
started as a pilot during the pandemic
and is now evolving into policy.

Prior to memorializing this approach to
work scheduling, FSU also researched
what other universities are doing
elsewhere to assess effectiveness.

In order to facilitate work-life balance,
FSU also offers staggered work
schedules or four-tens (working 10-
hour days four days a week).

FSU offers fully remote positions when
recruiting competitive positions or for

positions that struggle to retain employees.

FSU provides equipment (such as a
computer and monitors) and an internet
allowance for people hired into fully
remote positions. These resources are
not provided to employees who opt in
to telework, as the university provides
equipment for these workers on campus.

21



22

Case Study—
Developments in Florida
Telecommuting

Florida Department of Transportation:
The “reThink Your Commute” program
encourages businesses and employees
to collaboratively explore new ways

of arriving to and being at work. The
program offers a range of TDM services
and resources which support commuters
and employers in adopting smart
transportation solutions, including a
telework consulting showcase.

Miami-Dade TPO Telecommute Study: In
2021, the Miami-Dade TPO Telecommute
Study found that 30% of employees in
Miami-Dade County already work flexible
schedules, including telecommuting.

The study summarizes the thoughts of
employers, students, and employees
who were asked about their attitudes
toward telework pre-pandemic, during
the pandemic and anticipated attitude
post-pandemic. The survey also identifies
the top benefits and challenges to
remote work as perceived by community
stakeholders. Benefits included better
work-life balance and higher work
productivity. Challenges included

difficulty with supervising and socializing.

Florida Employee Handbook Policy
2023 Update: The updated 2023 Florida
Employee Handbook Policy states that an
employee’s choice of workplace does not
undermine the employer’s control over
matters such as contracts, termination,
and related issues.

Florida State Employee Telework
Program: State employees can telework
under Florida Statute Chapter 10,
Section 171. The regulations require that
every agency implementing a telework
program must assess all existing
positions and identify those positions
that the agency considers suitable for
telework. Agencies must establish criteria
for assessing performance of remote
workers. The policies protect the equal
rights of teleworkers as compared to non-
teleworking employees, such as eligibility
for advancement and compensation for
overtime and travel reimbursement.

Full literature review can be found in
Appendix A.

Capital Region Telecommuter Study



Looking Ahead:
Modeling Region’s Future
with Telecommuting

Models can help us visualize how different
hypothetical real-world scenarios could impact
travel conditions. Although they can yield

insight into future conditions, models are neither
perfect nor precise, and their findings should be
considered as only one data point of many when
making decisions.

MODELED SCENARIOS:

It is helpful to model different scenarios to
determine a range of potential outcomes. In this
case, three assumed telecommuting saturation
rates were chosen to represent low, medium,
and high rates of telework in the future.

* Low (15% of total regional workforce)?>:
Based on the telework rate for Leon County
in 2022.

* Medium (20% of total regional workforce):
Assumes partial implementation of policy
incentives and support structures enabling/
encouraging a slight increase of telework
adoption.

* High (25% of total regional workforce):
Assumes policy incentives and
telecommuting technology advancing to
support increased telework adoption.

Source: ergonofis on Unsplash

25 As reported by Replica. Differences in the final modeled telework rate and the telework rate in the Replica figure for
Leon County are due to rounding.

Local and Regional Voices on Telecommuting and TDM

23



How Do Different Telework
Adoption Rates Affect
Traffic Volumes Overall

in 2045 By County?

The Northwest Florida Regional Planning Model
developed by FDOT District 3 uses a roadway
network that includes all improvements planned
to be completed by 2045. When considering
traffic on all types of roadway facilities in each
county, Wakulla County is projected to have the
greatest reduction in vehicle volumes for each
scenario, and Gadsden County the least.

Different types of trips are taken on different
roadway types. Minor arterials and collectors
are intended to serve more localized traffic,
while major arterials and divided highways have

higher speeds, serve more vehicles, and are
more appropriate for longer trips. Collectors
are estimated to experience the largest percent
decrease of traffic volumes in Leon County,
whereas divided arterials are estimated to
experience the largest percent decrease in
Wakulla County (Figure 6). Overall volume
reductions by scenario are shown by the blue
bars in Figure 7.

While fewer vehicles on the road can be equated
with less congestion, one of the telling model
outputs is the number of vehicle hours saved
(Figure 8). Leon County, because it's the CRTPA
county with the most vehicles on its roads, is
projected to save the largest number of vehicle
hours in the 25% adoption scenario—roughly
two and a half years’ worth.

Figure 6. Volume Reduction by Facility and Scenario

Vehicle Hours Saved

County
All Facilities Leon Gadsden Jefferson Wakulla Facility Type
@ 15% Service Workers WFH 2.5 . 1.2 . 1.5 - 29 W Al Facility
5
§ 20% Service Workers WFH 3.6 . 1.6 - 21 - 41
(%}
25% Service Workers WFH 4.7 - 2.2 - 2.8 - 5.2
r T T T T 1 r T T T T r T T T T 1 r T T T T 1
Divided Arterials
15% Service Workers WFH 2.1 . 1.4
20% Service Workers WFH 3.0 . 19
25% Service Workers WFH 3.9 - 2.6
I T T T T 1 r T T T T 1
Undivided Arterials
15% Service Workers WFH 25 I 0.6
20% Service Workers WFH 3.6 l 0.9
25% Service Workers WFH 4.6 . 1.2
I T T T T 1 I T T T T 1
Collectors
15% Service Workers WFH 3.9 - 25
20% Service Workers WFH 5.6 - 3.5
25% Service Workers WFH 7.2 - 4.6
r T T T T 1 r T T T T 1
0 2 4 6 8 10 0 2 4 6 8 10 10
% Volume Reduction % Volume Reduction % Volume Reduction % Volume Reduction
24 Capital Region Telecommuter Study



Figure 7. Traffic Volume Reduction by County and Scenario

Traffic Volume Reduction

County

15% Professionals WFH

20% Professionals WFH

25% Professionals WFH

Gadsden

Jefferson

Wakulla

Facility Type
M All Facility

Facility Type
All Facility Scenarios

f T
0 1

% Volume Reduction

% Volume Reduction

Figure 8. Vehicle Hours Saved by County and Scenario

Vehicle Hours Saved

% Volume Reduction

% Volume Reduction

15% Service Workers WFH

20% Service Workers WFH

Scenarios

25% Service Workers WFH

County
Leon Gadsden Jefferson Wakulla
12,492 I 596 I 350 |489
17,505 I 849 I 491 Iese
22,431 . 1,122 I 638 I 887
T T T 1 I T T T 1 I T T T 1 r T T T T 1
0 10,000 20,000 0 10,000 20,000 0 10,000 20,000 0 10,000 20,000

Vehicle Hours Saved

Vehicle Hours Saved

Local and Regional Voices on Telecommuting and TDM

Vehicle Hours Saved

Vehicle Hours Saved

Facility Type
M All Facility

25



Recommendations

Traffic congestion has economic costs,
delays commuters, impacts air quality,
and causes mental stress. Jurisdictions
and employers can use TDM strategies
to combat these adverse community
and personal impacts, whether through
encouraging alternate travel modes,
different travel patterns, or reducing
single-occupancy vehicle use.

The pandemic demonstrated that telecommuting

is another viable, scalable TDM strategy that

productively reduces commuter-related

congestion in the region. Although the 1 Set Your Goals
pandemic built a rapid telework scaffolding for

employers, if an employer chooses to implement . ey
a comprehensive, cohesive telecommuting 2 Add Some Definition to

program in the long term (as opposed to as a Your Vision
stopgap during an emergency), the following
recommendations should provide a baseline

roadmap for implementation. 3 Craft Your Toolkit

4 Set an Evaluation
Framework

5 Shout it From the
Rooftops!

26 Capital Region Telecommuter Study




First Thing’s First:
Set Your Goals

Successful remote work is inherently
dependent upon context. The availability of
broadband, the makeup of major employers

in the region, and the availability of a separate
workspace at home away from distractions are
just a few of the many factors which influence
the feasibility of at-scale telework adoption

in community. Where some regions may use
telework to reduce climate impacts, others may
use the strategy to bring jobs to rural workers or
improve economic competitiveness.

The CRTPA has documented that telework
reduces peak-hour congestion. The purpose
of the report is not only to assess teleworking
impacts on the transportation network, but
also to provide employers with relevant
material on developing, guiding, and refining a
telework program. Clear goals and objectives
with milestones are critical to assessing the
effectiveness of any effort.

Next: Add Some
Definition to Your Vision

To develop and implement a telecommuting
program successfully, know your stakeholders.
Who are the target industries? What are

their resource and communication needs?
What are their limitations? Are there any
underrepresented stakeholders who can
contribute a valuable perspective? Consider
establishing an advisory committee with clearly
defined roles and responsibilities; this committee
will give the program visibility and legitimacy as
well as a space for stakeholders to provide key
perspectives.

Recommendations

Then: Craft Your
Toolkit

The literature review, case studies, and
stakeholder interviews reveal the challenges
facing the adoption of telework. Preparing
employers and stakeholders with “toolkit
essentials” can help simplify the integration of
telework into their workflows.

Set an Evaluation
Framework

Set performance criteria that match the program
goals and objectives. Monitoring outcomes
against milestones ensures that employers can
track trends and provide a measuring stick for
accountability.

Note that it may be valuable to consider the
potential for unintended consequences and how
to proactively spot them. For example, some
studies have shown that telework is associated
with decreased peak-hour congestion but that
it increases discretionary midday trips, which
creates an overall increase in vehicle miles
traveled. In addition, current land uses and
future planning should consider the implications
of a future where nearly one in four people
works from home. Developing smaller office
spaces and increasing mixed land use can
prevent localities from becoming the “ghost
towns” that business districts have become in
the age of popularized telework.

Finally: Shout it From
the Rooftops!

It's not always enough to be a repository of
resources. Proactively educating employers on
the benefits of telework and making resources
available that fit their needs will increase the
likelihood of adoption in the region. Understand
local employer needs and what additional
resources may need to be developed to address
their concerns or overcome their limitations.

27



Toolkit for
Teleworker Success

Equipment: A one-time equipment fund and/
or internet stipend provides equitable access
to needed supplies. Employers may consider
supplying employees with equipment (such
as a laptop, webcam, headset, microphone,
and/or monitor) or providing a list of IT-
approved remote work gear.

Scheduling: Alternative scheduling comes

in many forms, from staggered start times
and four-tens, to hybrid telework with at
least one weekday in-office, to fully remote.
Employees that have the option to telework
and to choose their remote days may have
higher job satisfaction and/or be willing

to accept reduced salary and benefits
compensation. Opting in allows employees to
optimize the effectiveness of telecommuting
by choosing a schedule that works for their
unigue needs.

Training and support: Telework comes with
a learning curve thanks to its unique IT

and task-reporting procedures, reliance on
software and equipment, risk of isolation and
siloing, and home distractions. Companies
should make sure to proactively provide
training and easy tech support to remote
workers.

Open communication and socialization:
Communication is key! Prepare workplace
infrastructure that allows for easy dialogue
between employees and aim to understand
what resources employees need to succeed
in a telework position. Co-working spaces,
which are often nearer to the employee than
their physical office, can reduce isolation.

Toolkit for Employer Success

28

Adopt telework policies: These will guide
how telework will be implemented by the
organization. The policy can include a rubric
to screen employees for potential success as
a teleworker. Telework policies can address
the purpose of the operation, provide
definitions, identify positions eligible for

telework, address equipment and security
needs, and establish requirements and
procedures for teleworker.

Sample employee agreements: Especially
for hybrid, fully remote, and staggered
schedules. Agreements should include
performance measures and regular (quarterly
or annual) renewal clauses (see Figure 9).

Sample workplace arrangements: Especially
for hot desking (a hybrid workplace system
where employees have the ability to use
available desks at different times) and
remote work hub arrangements. Include

a breakdown of the benefits, costs, and
limitations of each arrangement.

Data security: As telework moves work
online and into the cloud, companies grow
more at risk to cybersecurity vulnerabilities.
Data security is routinely identified as

an obstacle for employers considering
telework. Firms should complete an
assessment of their network vulnerabilities
and ability to deploy telework capability
at scale. Employees should receive regular
data security training and cybersecurity
competency assessments.

Guidance for managing remote workers:
A primary apprehension of employers
considering telework is their inability to
monitor an employee’s productivity while
teleworking. Providing guidance on this
guestion can set expectations for routine
check-in meetings to review and discuss
specific work assignments, due dates, and
productivity. Expectations for employee
responsiveness and communication
protocols can also be a part of the guidance.

Broadband access: Access to quality internet
service is crucial to successful telework.
When implementing a telecommute program
it is essential to assess broadband coverage
and level of service for viability of remote
work. Encouraging employees to remote
work in work hubs can combat coverage

gaps.

Capital Region Telecommuter Study



Figure 9. Example Telework Feasibility Supporting Policies

Assessment for Rutgers Employees

Although an effective tool to address peak-hour
congestion, a telework program is not the only

[?\1 ITGERS TDM measure. A comprehensive TDM program
is multifaceted and multipronged, employing
Feasibility Assessment
Telecommuting Policy complementary measures to encourage
Thie documest i+ usd o el the paperisor dtermn he fasblty of  patcla ponio e eplaree alternative modes such as carpooling,
tobe A, n a telecommuting agreement. The document will also assess the emplovee’s and superviser's . . . .
ootk 168 and Seern e Eies ol FUpport MISCHEMANS arvangent e vanpooling, and transit. Educational campaigns
Name of Telecommuter are a great way to supplement efforts to mode
Fosition Title shift, and proactively making alternative modes
Nanie of Superviser . . . . .
. -, more accessible to residents can help incentivize
- their use.
Job Assignments and Duties.
e ot it e i L ot bt b o) M e, Profmioml Supecvsy ox In addition to teleworking, stakeholders,
List the koev duties and percentage of time allecated 1o each duty. emp|0ye|’5, and emD|OyeeS may Choose tO
. . transform regional commute behavior by:
2 * Carpooling: Coordinated employee programs
. which help match staff with viable carpool
— and vanpool partners. Creating preferred /
This saction sill help you deferine f the posifion’s hey dutics lend thermselves fo telecommating priority parking spaces nearest the office
Do key disties pequire sngoing acotss to equipmment, materials, and files that can enly be accessed on Rutgess |n the park|ng |Ot for Carpoo| and Vanpools
propesiyT 2 Yes 9 Ne . .. i .
Do key duties require extensive face-to-face cantact with supervisars, ather employees, clients, or the public on incentivizes ridesharing.
Rutgers property? O Yes o No

Do key dubies sequire extensdve time in mestings or performing work on Rutgess propenty?

* Riding (and subsidizing) transit: Subsidized
transit passes may make transit more
accessible, and commuter express buses
may make transit faster, but neither of these
features alone can encourage ridership if
transit is infrequent or unreliable. Transit
priority infrastructure, such as bus-only
lanes, queue jumps, and bus bulb-outs, are
roadway treatments that help reduce transit
delay and increase reliability. Transit priority
measures can be folded into any project
which reconfigures or repaves a roadway.
Improving the viability of transit increases
the efficiency of a corridor.

A comprehensive TDM program is
multifaceted and multipronged, employing
complementary measures to encourage

alternative modes such as carpooling, )
vanpooling, and transit. * Supporting complementary development:

Incorporating clearly crafted, achievable
TDM into the development process can help
proactively create more livable communities
in Tallahassee and the surrounding area

by ensuring future development will

balance active forms of transportation. If
implemented, the TDM program should
have monitoring and reporting requirements
to track implementation and to gauge the
success of the program.

Recommendations 29



CRTRA-

CAPITAL REGION

NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN
.,
v



Appendix A:
Literature Review



KITTELSON 124 Marriot Dr — Ste 124
& ASSOCIATES (50 7655572

February 12, 2024 Project# 267890.005

To: Suzanne Lex, Programs Manager
Capital Regional Planning Transportation Agency

From: Allison Woodworth, Tyrone Scorsone
CC: Greg Slay, Jack Kostrzewa, Greg Burke

RE: CRTPA Telecommute Study: Literature Review

INTRODUCTION

Tallahassee and the surrounding areas’ vehicle volume is primarily reliant on trips being made for
school, recreation, shopping, and commuting. Through 2020 and 2021 there was a decrease in
these ftrips, as reflected in the volumes on roadways in the region. Hours most impacted by the
changes in trips are the hours with the highest volume, the morning and evening peak hours.
Decreases in volume led to decreases in vehicle delay and congestion levels. With most major
employers resuming normal operations, the volumes returned to levels comparable to prior to 2020
and congestion is nearing the highest levels experienced in the region.

The Capital Region Transportation Planning Agency (CRTPA) is investigating the feasibility of
fransportation demand management (TDM) as an effective tool to reduce peak hour fraffic
congestion within the four county region under its purview. As a Mefropolitan Planning
Organization (MPQ), the CRTPA is positioned to examine TDM policy, practices, and
recommendations to address congestion and reduce demand on the fransportation system. The
CRTPA initiated a study to assess the most viable TDM strategies to address peak hour demand
with a specific interest in tfelecommuting. This memorandum is intfended to serve as a primer on
telecommuting and regional or state TDM programes, it includes an:

Assessment of Transportation Demand Management
Review of Telecommuting Benefits and Challenges
Broad review of Telecommuting Policies and Programs

This literature review will contribute to the development of a resource that empowers employers
and agencies in Florida to implement telecommuting programs, leading to a more sustainable
and efficient transportation system.

TRANSPORTATION DEMAND MANAGMENT

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) plays a crucial role in mitigating traffic congestion,
reducing environmental impacts, and improving overall mobility. TDM encompasses a range of
aims that seek to address transportation challenges, increase mobility options, and promote
sustainable urban development. The primary goal of TDM is to reduce reliance on single-
occupancy vehicles and encourage alternative modes of fransportation, such as public fransit,
walking, cycling, ridesharing, and telecommuting. By achieving mode shift, TDM aims to alleviate
fraffic congestion, reduce emissions, and enhance overall transportation efficiency. Additionally,
TDM seeks to optimize land use and transportation systems through strategic planning and policy

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



February 12, 2024 Page 2
Telecommuting

interventions, ensuring that fransportation networks are integrated with urban development plans.
Other objectives of TDM include improving air quality,

promoting equitable fransportation options, and fostering a culture of sustainable travel behowor
When properly implemented on a mass scale, TDM assists in creating livable, resilient, and
environmentally friendly cities by managing and shaping travel demand in a way that benefits
both individuals and communities.

TDM encompasses various strategies aimed at optimizing transportation systems by managing
travel demand through tfelecommuting and encouraging more sustainable modes of
transportation. TDM guidance and policies encompass a diverse set of strategies fo manage and
shape travel demand in order to achieve sustainable and efficient transportation systems. These
stfrategies focus on reducing private vehicle usage, promoting alternative modes of
transportation, and optimizing existing infrastructure. Examples of TDM strategies include the
development of robust public fransit networks, the implementation of pricing mechanisms such as
congestion charging and road folls, the provision of high-quality bicycle and pedestrian
infrastructure, the promotion of carpooling and ridesharing programs, and the adoption of
telecommuting and flexible work hour policies. TDM policies often involve land-use planning and
zoning regulations that encourage mixed-use developments and promote transit-oriented
development (TOD). Other policies include parking management strategies to discourage
excessive car usage and the provision of incentives, such as subsidies and tax benefits, to
encourage sustainable travel behaviors. These strategies and policies, when implemented in a
coordinated and integrated manner, aim fto reduce traffic congestion, improve air quality,
enhance mobility options, and foster more sustainable and equitable fransportation systemes.

In this literature review, we will specifically focus on telecommuting as a TDM strategy and ifs
significance in addressing travel demand challenges.

TELECOMMUTING

Telecommuting, also known as remote work or teleworking, involves utilizing information and
communication technologies to perform work tasks from a location other than the traditional
office space. By enabling employees to work remotely, tfelecommuting effectively reduces the
need for daily commuting, resulting in fewer vehicles on the road during peak travel times. This
reduction in single-occupancy vehicles can significantly alleviate traffic congestion, particularly
in urban areas where commute times are typically longer. As a result, telecommuting conftributes
to more efficient use of transportation infrastructure and resources.

This practice has gained substantial attentfion in recent years due to the COVID-19 pandemic’s
paradigm shift of where people live and where and how people work. Stay at home orders at the
onset of COVID-19 in 2020 initiated a rapid adoption of temporary telework policies in largely
white-collar sectors. At the same time, the lack of a commute enabled employees to move
further away from job centers.

This accelerated adoption of remote work during the pandemic has challenged traditional
notions of the workplace and has the potential to prove to have permanently reset the status quo
for employers and employees. It is important to note that the dust has yet to be settled on the
“post-COVID" era. While trends have emerged - travel patterns altered, population growth or
exodus observed — it is still too early to determine what is temporal and what is “here to stay™.

Nevertheless, businesses can leverage the lessons learned from this experience, including the
feasibility of remote work, the benefits it offers to both employees and employers in terms of
continuity, employee well-being, retention, financial savings, and productivity.

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



February 12, 2024 Page 3
existing plans and policies

Peak hour congestion: strategically reducing transportation demand by commuters, a group
who broadly traditionally fravel at the same time, can alleviate peak-hour congestion. This
reduction in fraffic congestion also franslates info decreased fuel consumption and
greenhouse gas emissions, confriouting to improved air quality and environmental
sustainability. Time saved by avoiding a commute can be used in other more productive
ways.
Employer advantages: with fewer employees physically present in the office, organizations
can reduce office space requirements, leading fo reduced rent, utility expenses, office
equipment, and overhead costs. Allowing remote work opportunities may also conftribute to
in a job market where employees are increasingly seeking positions that
offer flexibility.!
Employee benefits: Employes have provided surveys suggesting they are equally or more
productive?, Other employee benefits include an improved work life balance, more time
afforded to them because of a lack of commute, and improved mental health.

However, telecommuting also presents certain challenges that need to be addressed for
successfulimplementation. Technological requirements, such as reliable internet connectivity and
appropriate hardware and software tools, are essential for enabling seamless remote work.
Additionally, management concerns regarding monitoring employee performance, maintaining
team collaboration, and ensuring data security need to be carefully managed.

Disclaimer: While research is ongoing, it will likely be several more years before more definitive
conclusions can be derived regarding hotly debated subjects such as remote work’s impact on
employee productivity. However, there are some data streams which provide visibility info how
industries are adapting to demand for remote work opportunities.

In 2022, LinkedIn Economic Graph research published a list of the top ten industries with the largest
share of job postings that offer remote options. Each of the top 5 industries had at least 20% of
their job listings involve remote work.

1. Technology, information, and media
2. Education

3. Administrative and support services
4. Professional services

5. Financial service

6. Consumer services

7. Government administration

8. Manufacturing

9. Arfs and recreation

10. Real estate

EXISTING PLANS AND POLICIES

The ongoing impact of COVID-19 on travel patterns, particularly regarding commuting or lack
thereof, cannot be overstated. However, TDM remains relevant to its overarching goal of

! Unveiling State-wide Patterns and Trends of Telecommuting in Relation to Transportation, Employment,
Land Use, and Emissions in California; Tianjun Lu, Fynnwin Prager: August 2022

2 What have we learned about long term structural change brought about by COVID-19 and working from
home; David Henshera, Matthew.Beckb, John Nelson: December 2022

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



February 12, 2024 Page 4
existing plans and policies

managing transportation demand regardless of tfrip purpose. This section discusses TDM with
emphasis on felecommuting.

Legislation and Policies

Florida has supported telecommuting by improving laws to protect telecommuting workers and
programed funds for telecommuting infrastructure investment. In addition, some Florida state
agencies initiated teleworking programs to support their employees telecommuting. This section
outlines those statutes, policies, and programs formalized by the state of Florida.

Florida Fair Labor Standards Act

The Florida Fair Labor Standards Act extends its protection to remote employees by safeguarding
their payment rights and employment classification. Remote workers may be eligible for
reimbursement when working from their homes. Federal regulations mandate that employers
cover the expenses incurred by employees for conducting business activities at home, which can
include the costs of computers and internet connectivity.

Even though employees may be working remotely, Florida's anti-discrimination laws remain in
effect to shield them from discrimination. Employers are obligated to accommodate remote
employees with disabilities, providing them with the same support as they would for on-site staff.
Moreover, Florida employers are prohibited from discriminating against remote workers based on
factors such as gender, sexual orientation, race, or religion.

It's important fo note that remote workers can also be vulnerable to sexual harassment through
electronic communication or video calls. Florida's anti-discrimination laws extend their protection
to remote workers who may encounter sexual harassment in a virtual work environment.

Florida Employee Handbook Policy (Updated 2023)

The employee's choice of workplace does not undermine the employer's control over matters
such as contracts, termination, and related issues.

Required Florida Employee Handbook Policies for remote workers suggest remote employees
should:

*  Obtain an employee handbook,

+ Receive notifications about federal, state, and local employment laws,
* Adhere to meal and rest break requirements, and

*  Make use of efficient time fracking systems.

State Employee Telework Program in Florida

The state of Florida has defined telework in its statutes. State employees can telework under Florida
Statutes Title X Chapter 110, Section 171. Notably, the regulations necessitate that every agency
implementing a telework program must assess all existing positions and identify those positions that
the agency considers suitable for telework. The State of Florida Department of Revenue posts their
telework plan on their website, providing fransparency for their employees and the public.

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



February 12, 2024 Page 5
existing plans and policies

To ensure the success of the program, the agency is mandated to set forth criteria for assessing
employees' capability to effectively perform in a telework arrangement. Where permanent or
long-term telework is implemented, state agencies must complete a Telework Agreement.
Temporary telework does not require completion of the Telework Agreement unless extended by
the program director.

Additionally, the agency must establish a monitoring system for teleworker productivity,
guaranteeing that work output maintains a satisfactory level and that the duties and
responsibilities of the position continue to be appropriate for a telework arrangement.

In accordance with the Florida Statutes, the Florida Department of Revenue developed policies
to implement a telework program for its employees. The policies require program directors to be
responsible for the annual identification and update of positions that are considered eligible for
telework. In addition, the policies protect equal rights of teleworking employees as compared o
non-teleworking employees, like eligibility for advancement and compensation for overtime and
fravel reimbursement.

Broadband Infrastructure Program

The availability and quality of internet services is important to enable successful teleworking.

In June 2020, Florida Governor Ron DeSantis enacted House Bill 969, officially creating the Florida
Office of Broadband as a subdivision of the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity.
Meanwhile, the Broadband Opportunity Program was created and is governed by section
288.9962, F.S. It is a competitive reimbursement grant program within the Florida Department of
Commerce Office of Broadband (Office), created to expand broadband Internet service to
unserved areas of this state, which will encourage job creation, capital investment, and the
strengthening and diversification of local economies.

In July 2023, Governor Ron DeSantis allocated over $247 million via the Broadband Infrastructure
Program, linking in excess of 59,000 previously disconnected and underserved entities,
encompassing businesses, residences, farms, as well as vital institutions like hospitals and libraries,
to high-speed Internet. The implementation of infrastructure across 63 well-planned projects
spanning 43 counties within Florida guarantees that the state's residents can enjoy dependable
and effective access to workforce, educational, and healthcare monitoring opportunities for
many generations ahead. Additionally, Florida was previously granted a Broadband Opportunity
Grant for over $226 million. These funds were allocated to 53 counties to extend broadband
Internet accessibility fo underserved regions within the state, connecting over 250,000 homes
and businesses.

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



February 12, 2024 Page 6
existing plans and policies

TDM and Telecommuting Plans

Miami-Dade TPO Telecommute Study (2021)

The Miami-Dade TPO Telecommute Study highlights existing telecommuting policies at different
levels, including Miami-Dade County, Florida statewide policies, and nationwide and intfernational
initiatives. One significant finding from the study is that

This indicates a wilingness and
acceptance of telecommuting as a viable work option among the workforce in the region. The
study also emphasizes the benefits of telecommuting for both employees and employers.

. Telecommuting can improve work-life balance, increase job satisfaction, and
promote individual well-being. For employers, the benefits include cost reductions, increased
worker productivity, and access to a wider pool of candidates beyond the local area.

The study also identifies several challenges associated with telecommuting. These challenges
include the need for the necessary network infrastructure to support telecommuting programs,
providing comfortable workplaces and necessary equipment, addressing socializafion and
productivity concerns, managing distractions, childcare arrangements, and the potential for
sitting by a computer all day.

CUTR’s Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Program

The CUTR's Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Program demonstrates an effective and
comprehensive approach fo influencing travel behavior and promoting sustainable
fransportation options. Their balanced portfolio of research, fechnical assistance, and workforce
development activities allows them to meet the diverse needs of travelers and communities. The
program's collaboration with various departments and institutions, such as the USF College of
Public Health and Center for Marketing and Sales Innovation, highlights the importance of
interdisciplinary collaboration in addressing fransportation challenges.

By
generating and disseminating new knowledge, the program ensures that evidence-based
strategies and approaches are applied in their technical assistance efforts. The management of
Best Workplaces for Commuters, Florida TDM Clearinghouse, and TRANSP-TDM listserv showcases
their commitment fo fostering peer-to-peer exchanges, providing resources and information, and
supporting employer-provided transportation services. Another notable aspect is the offering of
fraining programs such as the and

. These initiatives contribute to building capacity and knowledge among
professionals in the field, empowering them tfo implement effective TDM strategies and
campaigns.

Key Takeaway: CUTR’s program is an excellent and renowned resource for TDM policy makers,

program managers, and others seeking technical expertise in the subject such as employers in
the CRTPA region seeking to launch TDM programs in their workplaces.

Re-think Your Commute - Florida Department of Transportation

The re-Think Your Commute program focuses on promoting smart tfransportation solutions and
connecting commuters with alternatives to driving alone. The program emphasizes bringing

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



February 12, 2024 Page 7
existing plans and policies

together businesses and employees to explore shared fransportation benefits. This collaborative
approach fosters engagement and participation from various stakeholders, including employers,
employees, property managers, and municipalities. By involving these key players, the program
addresses fransportation challenges and facilitates the adoption of tfransportation options that
suit the needs of different individuals and organizations.

The program's fop 10 reasons to embrace fransportation options effectively communicate the
benefits of alternative commuting methods to employers and employees. By highlighting
advantages such as attracting and retaining talent, reducing the carbon footprint, and earning
LEED credits, the program emphasizes the positive impact of transportation options on multiple
fronts, including employee satisfaction, environmental sustainability, and community
engagement.

Additionally,

. Theirride-matching service,
reimbursement programs, transit trainings, assistance with last-mile connectivity, and telework
consulfing showcase a comprehensive and failored approach to meeting the needs of different
individuals and organizations. By providing these resources, the program not only helps address
transportation challenges but also encourages behavior change and facilitates the adoption of
sustainable commuting practices.

Key Takeaway: Emphasizing collaboration with employers, employees, and other stakeholders will
help create a supportive environment for telecommuting adoption. Clear communication of the
benefits of telecommuting, such as improved work-life balance, reduced commuting expenses,
and increased productivity, can encourage participation. Providing comprehensive resources
and support, such as matching telecommuters with potential partners, offering reimbursement
programs, and providing telework best practices, can facilitate the successful implementation
and long-term sustainability of telecommuting initiatives.

Transportation Demand Management Study - Broward Metropolitan
Planning Organization (2022)

The Transportafion Demand Management (TDM) Study was conducted by the Broward
Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPQO) in 2022. The stakeholder interviews conducted as part
of the study helped identify existing fransportation services, assess the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on TDM with a focus on teleworking, gauge interest in TDM options, and identify
opportunities and challenges for the future.

The Broward MPQO's mission statement to optimize Broward's transportation network through
collaborative strategies and their vision statement of advancing commuting solutions for an
improved quality of life provide a clear and comprehensive direction for their TDM efforts. These
statements emphasize the importance of collaboration and the pursuit of tfransportation solutions
that benefit the community.

The strategies identified in the study, such as improving connectivity between low- and middle-
income housing and jobs, implementing employee fransportation coordinator programs, and
supporting hospitality, health, and frontline worker industries, provide a framework for effective
TDM initiatives. The study also highlights existing TDM efforts in Broward, such as the South Florida
Commuter Services which provides technical and financial assistance to promote transportation
alternatives to commuters driving alone using TDM strategies such as carpooling, mass transit,
bicycling, walking, park-and-ride facilities, working from home; South Florida Vanpools Program
which aims to connect workers, living in proximity to each other, to a comfortable late-model van

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



February 12, 2024 Page 8
existing plans and policies

or SUV for transportation; bike-share micromobility program by the South Florida Regional Transit
Authority; Express Bus Park-and-Ride Lot Services, and discounts programs.

The study's focus on remote work and telecommuting, as well as its recognition of the long-term
effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, provides valuable insights for our telecommuting project. The
importance of work-from-home policies tailored to the size and needs of the company, the
productivity benefits of telecommuting, and the need for managing remote work effectively are
key lessons learned from the study.

Key takeaway: Challenges identified in the study, such as the need to communicate the benefits
of TDM to businesses, addressing the negative stigma associated with public fransportation,
gaining credibility with the private sector, securing funding, and addressing concerns related to
housing affordability and low wages, are important considerations.

Interregional Transportation Demand Management Action Plan Final
Report (2015)

The San Juaquin Council of Governments (SJCOG) and Sacramento Council of Governments
(SACOQG) initiated a study to address congestion along two backbone freeway corridors running
through their regions which experienced acute congestion during peak hours. The project
initiated a working group with representatives from SJCOG, SACOG, the regions’ transportation
management associations (TMAs), and regional stakeholders; a survey of employees and
employers were distributed; four employers were interviewed to determine existing TDM programs
in use and what barriers employers faced to implementing TDM. The final report laid out a three
year action plan for SACOG and SJCOG to improve upon existing TDM programs and most
effectively target the I-5 and SR 99 corridors. The framework outlined three broad goails:

Develop enhanced rideshare program
Provide first and last mile connections for those travelling to transit
Create cohesive marketing campaign to encourage alternative commute

The Interregional Transportation Demand Management Action Plan is a comprehensive

assessment for leveraging TDM to alleviate congestion on two very specific freeway corridors. It
provides a framework for identifying and prioritizing context sensitive TDM strategies.

City of Boston - Transportation Demand Management Point System

In 2021, the City of Boston reformed its development review process by requiring developers of
large projects (over 50,000 square feet) to complete a demand management tool to increase
access to sustainable tfransportation for their tfenants. The point system allows developers to
choose from a suite of strategies that are proven to have an impact on influencing mode-shift.
The tool provides context for each strategy i.e. land use applicability, upfront costs,
ongoing/maintenance costs, and implementation difficulty.

The TDM Point System Fact Sheets outline the program and each strategy’s details. Program
development and methodology is summarized in this Technical Memo.

Key Takeaway: The development review process is an effective way to proactively create more
livable communities with more transportation options. Many development review processes
incorporate TDM requirements but are hampered by lack of enforcement or the ability of an

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



February 12, 2024 Page ¢
existing plans and policies

applicant to meet the spirit of the requirement by making fringe improvements. Boston's point
system requires applicants to implement applicable baseline strategies as well as select atf least
one “impact strategy” (fransit subsidy, parking reduction, parking pricing) due to their impact on
achieving mode shift and reducing drive alone behavior.

Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) TDM
Strategic Plan (2019)

SCAG recognized that there was little data collection and monitoring tied to the current
abundant TDM programming in the region. The TDM Sirategic Plan developed a long term,
performance-based planning framework for identifying and implementing TDM strategies that
increase the efficiency of the transportation system. The effort reviewed modern TDM technology
and innovation and identified challenges and opportunities relevant to the SCAG region. In
addition to developing final recommendations, the report revised the TDM toolbox of strategies
included in the region’s 2016 Regional Transportation Plan.

TDM recommendations fell into 5 categories:

Knowledge Sharing
Policy

Partnerships
Programming
Measurement

High priority recommendations included:

SCAG TDM website

Deliver training to help municipalities develop and successfully orchestrate TDM policy
Develop a formal regional TDM group

Conduct a study aimed at better understanding the success of TDM incentives and other
TDM strategies in changing travel behavior

Developing a regional clearing-house for TDM related data

Key Takeaways: The SCAG Strategic Plan emphasizes data collection and performance-based
objectives. Although it was completed prior to the pandemic, the 2019 report is set in a
technological backdrop that is sfill relevant to 2023. While SCAG was building on a strong existing
foundation of local TDM programs and knowledge, the report provides the CRTPA with resources
should the agency want to survey future frends.

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



KITTELSON
&ASSOCIATES

Appendix

Title Journal/Source | Year Study Area Conclusion
Published

Impact of Teleworking on ELSEVIER, 2021 Sicily, Italy - Smaller number of trips

Travel Behavior During Transportation - Larger net amount of distance traveled per person (due to the

COVID-19 Research willingness to commute further)

Procedia 60 - More utilization of frains to work during commute for longer distance

- reduced traffic af peak times
- Positive environmental and social impacts (less noise and air pollution,
less stress, ...)
-impacts to congestion on weekends, indicating that ppl WFH had
propensity to increase travel for leisure on weekends more than they
would if commuting (KAI NOTE: Maybe they also had more disposable
income at the fime?)

Using Telecommunications | Victoria 2019 * Ability and frequency of WFH affected by many factors e.g type of

to Substitute for Physical
Travel

Transportation
Policy Institute

job, employer support, tfelecommunications service quality (internet),
employee preference

* WFH reduces commute trips by 40% and may have higher VMT
impact (more likely to WFH if live far away) however these gains are
offset by "rebound effects"

- Employees may choose to live further and increase urban sprawil

- Discretionary tfrips may increase during day (errands) which otherwise
would have been made during commute hour (less impact on peak,
but more throughout day)

- Veh not used for commuting can be used by other HH members

- WFH may use more energy

- Online shopping and telework document delivery increase delivery
veh traffic

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.




February 12, 2024

Page 11
existing plans and policies

Do they work?2 Exploring Travel Behavior | 2022 suburb A small group of participants who lived very close to the NTC made
possible potentials of and Society Stockholm, significant lifestyle changes and adopted more sustainable travel
neighborhood Sweden practices, the overall changes in the sustainability aspects of travel for
Telecommuting centers in most participants were minimal. The majority of the participants merely
supporting sustainable exchanged a day spent working from home for a day at the NTC, as
fravel they were only allowed to be absent from the employer’s office one
day per week. Further, some participants found it difficult to work
remotely due to organizational roles and workplace norms.

Seattle Commute Trip https://www.se The CTR requirements apply to employer sites meeting
Reduction Program (CTR) attle.gov/trans the following criteria:

portation/proje ¢ Employ 100 or more full-time employees whose workdays start

cts-and- between 6 a.m. and 9 a.m. on weekdays

programs/progr ¢ Located in a county with more than 150,000 residents

ams/transportat In 2017, three out of every four commute trips to the Center City were

ion-opfions- by a mode other than driving alone.

program/com

mute-trip-

reduction-

program
SCAG TDM Plan 2019 Southern CA

Association of
Govts

Interregional TDM Action 2015 San Joaquin Report produced to address congestion along I-5 and SR?9 with

Plan Final Report

Council of
Governments
&
Sacramento
Council of
Governments

recommendations to build on existing TDM programs within a 3 year
fimeline.

In list of TDM Strategy prioritization for those expected to impact travel
behavior in the largest scale or magnitude, telecommuting is low priority
(pdf page 45)

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



February 12, 2024

Page 12
existing plans and policies

Statewide TDM Strategic North Carolina 2018 North Lit review of the different TDM programs of major cities in NC
Plan Dept of Carolina
Transportation

Miami Dade TPO 2021 Miami Dade

Telecommute Final Report

Guide to Work in Telework Federal 2021 Federal

and Remote Work in Government Government

Federal Government (USA)

Incorporation of TDM into 2010 DC Aside from policy - Lit Review of é locations with TDM programs

Development Process - Cambridge, MA; Montgomery County , MD; Arlington, VA; Alexandria,
VA; Contra Costa, CA; Seattle, WA
- The more successful TDM programs rely on continuing, enforceable
ordinances.
- Ordinances take on many forms and may fie info zoning, the
building/site approval process or parking requirements
- most successful TDM programs set low thresholds where TDM
requirements are mandatory but broad range of thresholds exist and
may apply to diff types of targets (large employers/developments)
The existence of an agency with enforcement authority appeared to
be a necessary element for TDM to have a significant impact.

Bloomington, IN TDM Plan 2020 Bloomington, | Includes Market Research (SWOT analysis for most relevant TDM

IN strategies in area). ID most prevalent TDM strategies and most relevant

to goal for Bloomington to reduce SOV commutes.

Tips for Implementing South Carolina 2019 South

Successful Telecommute Dept of Carolina

Program Administration State

Government

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.




February 12, 2024

Page 13
existing plans and policies

assessing the energy
impacts of telecommuting
based on time-use data

and Society

Toward a Comprehensive TRB Volume 2015 Modeling *Vehicle miles traveled, congestion reduction

Telecommuting Analysis 2496 *Forms of telecommuting activities (e.g., full time, part time)

Framework ¢ Choice and frequency of telecommuting
¢ Interactions between telecommuting engagement and other daily
activities

Spatial-temporal variations | Cities 2022 Hongkong 1. Overall, statistically significant but moderate reductions of Cl were

of traffic congestion under observed.

work from home 2 The WFH arrangement has a bigger impact on peak hours than

(WFH) arrangements: evening counterpart.

Lessons learned from 3.Without the WFH policy interventions, the morning peak in the CBD

COVID-19 has reoccurred and rebounded to the pre-COVID level (i.e. no change
in Cl),
4. Integrating with other measures such as implementing congestion
charging, further promoting transit-oriented development, and
advocating jobs-housing balance as a policy package to tackle the
urban fraffic congestion is necessary

The Costs and Benefits of ITS UC DAVIS 2000 Primary finding was that few pilot evals contained CBA results.

Telecommuting

Toward a method for Travel Behavior | 2022 Netherlands Substituting car commuting with many common ‘leisure’ and ‘phf care’

activities, ‘sleep’ or ‘eating and drinking’ is likely to reduce direct
energy requirements. While car commuters can realize high energy
savings through TC, for people who usually bike or walk to work, direct
energy savings through reduced commuting are zero.

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.




February 12, 2024

Page 14
existing plans and policies

Examining the potential Transport Policy | 2022 Dublin, Analysis of survey data (514 surveys from users of the RWH co-working

environmental and travel (Caulfield, Ireland space NoCo) to determine emissions and fravel time savings of using a

time saved benefits of Charly) remote work hub (RWH). Found users of RWH drive avg of 60km less per

remote working hubs day and able to depart for work later. 34% would have driven to normal
place of work, 12% drove RHW. Only 9% of respondents worked from
home prior to COVID. 39% of respondents fravel to RWH using non
motorized (where only 8% prior). Majority RWH workers highly educated.
Avg distance travelled to work went from 3é6km to 4.6km. Finding that
large number used to commute into Dublin but now use RWH in outer
counties, indicating support of regeneration of those areas.

Telecommuting as a Transportation Washington Applies model to estimate effects of commuter trip reduction (CTR)

Component of Commute Research State activities in Washington State.

Trip Reduction Program Record 2135 - Employees more likely to transition to WFH at least 1 day every 2 weeks
if employer consistently promote CIR strategies to enhances
awareness. Employees commuting longer distances more likely to
fransition to WFH at least 1 day. Job characteristics and employer
business impact on likeliness to work from home
- Combination of CTR promotions should be used to be most effective
newsletter, email communication, conducting CTR events

Long Term effects of Covid | transportation 2022 USA - WFH**, Travel behavior (mode choice), online shopping, Air travel

on travel behavior: study research part F: '- 30% increase in willingness to WFH compared to the pre-pandemic

on WFH, mode choice, psychology period

online shopping and air and behavior - 9% and 31% less auto and transit commuters in post-pandemic period

fravel - Rise in WFH, online shopping, and decrease in business flights

Broward County TDM Study 2022 Broward It was also noted that the implementation of formal remote work

2022 County policies in Broward is still in a dynamic phase as formal programs are

(MPQ) evolving. The Team found that a few agencies had official remote work

policies including FDOT, Broward Health and Broward County and no
private sector participants interviewed for this study had set formal
policies.

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



February 12, 2024

Page 15
existing plans and policies

Future of Telecommuting
post COVID

ELSEVIER,
Transportation
Research
Interdisciplinary
Perspectives 16

2022

British
Columbia

- Peak hour travel reduced, but speculate to increased off peak trips
due to WFH in suburban area away from restaurants, shopping, etc. If
trips could have been done via foot, bike, or transit in an urban core,
means increased VMT.

-Females less likely to WFH, but increase in likelihood if residing further
from urban core and already working part time

- A higher frequency of work-from-home for those residing farther from
urban centers, part-time female, mid-age workers, full-time workers with
children, full-time workers with longer commutes

- dwellings with lower residential density and high bedroom (ie more
space to WFH) associated with higher incidence of WFH

-less likely to WFH if live in area with alternative fransportation
infrastructure

Spatial Implications of
Telecommuting in US

National Center
for Sustainable
Transportation

2023

4502 US
Locations

- permanent increase in attractiveness of WFH = rich non-monotonic
pattern of reallocations within and across cities

- reduced inequality across residential locations because increased
access to jobs (access to WFH = increased well being)

- changes in residents and housing prices

- no “end to big cities.” as commuters trend away from densest
locations and toward smaller cities

Hillsborough County TDM
Plan Study for Bay Area
Commuter Services

Florida

Purpose of study was to estimate impact of TDM on reducing traffic and
emissions in area. Identified key measures, reviewed the Hillsborough
TDM plan and plans from similar communities, identified strategies for
analysis at county level, activity center level, and employer level.
FINDINGS - Preferred TDM Program Scenario

- Employer Outreach

- Transit services

- Compressed workweek & WFH outreach program

- Vanpool management and promotions

- Matching program for employer provided discounts for fransit,
vanpool, other commute benefits

- Preferential parking for carpool/vanpool

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



February 12, 2024

Page 16
existing plans and policies

Loo & Huang, 2022

2022

- Significant drop in Morning peak congestion in CBD, city cores, and
new town areas

South Florida Commuter
Services (FDOT PROGRAM)

https://1800234r
ide.com/workin
g-from-home/

South Florida

Has example Telework Agreement template and Flexible and Remote
Quick Start Guide

SANDAG TDM

https://www.ico
mmutesd.com/
planners/TDM-
overview

San Diego,
CA

https://www.icommutesd.com/telework/telework-default

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.



Appendix B:
Current Conditions



KITTELSON
&ASSOCIATES

11/29/2023 Project# 267890.005

To: Suzanne Lex, Programs Manager
Capital Regional Planning Transportation Agency

From: Tyrone Scorsone, Jia Fang
CC: Greg Slay, Greg Burke

RE: CRTPA Telecommute Study: Current Conditions Report

INTRODUCTION

This document is a summary of the current commute conditions in Leon County. It consists of three
sections. The first section provides data that informs the current commute pattern like figures
illustrating where workers live and work, tables identifying jolb occupations, and maps showing the
direction of commute flow. The second section describes the factors enabling felecommuting.
The third section is a trend analysis of the traffic conditions along major commuter corridors.
Analyses provided within this report evaluate the impact of pandemic caused work from home
(WFH) arrangements on commuter travel. Both those persons who entirely work from home as well
as those with hybrid schedules allowing them to work from home for 2 days or more a week are
the subject. The results reveal a picture of how WFH policies could reduce fravel demand and
commuter related congestion in Leon County.

Vehicle trips serve many purposes one of which is commuting to and from work. Commuter fraffic
is responsible for the majority of volume in the peak hours. The need to physically be at a work
location increases travel demand on roadways in Leon, Jefferson, Gadsden, and Wakulla
Counties. Understanding commuter tfravel demand trends and their underlying influencing factors
could lead to a better understanding of future infrastructure needs.

In addition to an assessment of current conditions, future WFH scenarios will be modeled. These
scenarios will reflect differing thresholds of homebased commuter trips. In fravel demand forecast
models, homebase work trips reflect the commuters going from home to a workplace. The 2022
Northwest Florida Regional Planning Model 3.1.4 has been calibrated to reflect 2045 commute
patterns. That validated model will serve as the basis for modeling future work from home
scenarios with decreased ftrip generation and attraction rates. This analysis and respective
documentation will be provided separate from this report.




KITTELSON
&ASSOCIATES

COMMUTE PATTERNS

In this section, commuting-related data from two sources: American Community Census (ACS)
and Longitudinal Employer-Household Dynamics (LEHD) were used. The LEHD data is a
combination of ACS data, unemployment data, Job-to-Job Flows, and the Quarterly Census of
Employment Wages.

Commute Patterns

Figure 1 demonstrates the inbound and outbound flows of all jobs in Leon County. While 97,065
workers (52.7%) both live and work within the county, 87,143 workers (47.3%) travel across the
county boundary for work. This includes workers going to counties immediately bordering Leon,
counties in other parts of the panhandle and big bend, as well as workers coming and going to
other states. Among them, 61,615 workers live outside of the county and work in the county, while
only 25,528 workers live in the county and work outside the county. Hence, Leon County provides
a significant amount of job opportunities for workers living outside of the county.

g } N
¢== |nbound Flow (61,615 trips) - =3 A )
4= (Qutbound Flow (25,528 tripsf—
¢== Live & Work in Leon Co. (97,065 trips) -.'
[&5]
| Haxeana ?Eﬂ
D,
—
[ a2l
4151
5 [58]
: State Forest
/\'._‘_ Wn-ndmlle
= |
5 :'i:é.",ﬁ] 3 ? .x:":.-__ 1:} BUes ERcWeiE BANGA. USGS, FEMA, Tallahassee-Leon County GIS, FDEP, Esri, HERE r,,m‘f(...
| e e Wakulla Springs SafeGraph, FAD, METI/NASA, USGS, EFA, NPS
State Park =

Figure 1 Inflow, Outflow, and Within flow of All Jobs in Leon County




KITTELSON
&ASSOCIATES

Table 1 and Figure 2 show the workflows within the CRTPA boundaries. There is an greater
number of commuters coming from counties, other than the 3 surrounding Leon County, to work
in Leon County. Gadsden County to Leon Couty is the largest commute flow between the
CRTPA counties. Jefferson, Wakulla, and Gadsden counties all have more commuters coming to
Leon County than commuters going to jobs within their own respective counties.

Home Workplace Work Trips
Gadsden Gadsden 5,455
Jefferson Gadsden 72

Leon Gadsden 3,318
Wakulla Gadsden 262
Gadsden Jefferson 61
Jefferson Jefferson 984

Leon Jefferson 359
Wakulla Jefferson 44
Gadsden Leon 8,009
Jefferson Leon 2,624

Leon Leon 97,065
Wakulla Leon 7,116
Gadsden Wakulla 194
Jefferson Wakulla 62

Leon Wakulla 1,314
Wakulla Wakulla 2,953

Table 1 Workflows between and within the four counties in the CRTPA




KITTELSON
&ASSOCIATES

Figure 2 Job Flow between and within Leon County and the other three counties

Home and Work Location Analysis for Leon County

Figure 16 (click here) and Figure 17 (click here) show where workers live in Leon County and
Tallahassee, respectively, in 2019. A predominance of worker's home locations are located
outside the downtown area closer to Capital Circle and radiate outward from there. Figure 18
(click here) and Figure 19 (click here) show where workers work in Leon County and Tallahassee,
respectively. While worker’s home locations are distributed more sparsely throughout the country,
the locations of jobs are concentrated in multiple clusters and distributed closer to the city center.
The major job clusters are listed below:

=  Downtown area (Government)

= Florida State University (Education)

= Tallahassee Community College (Education)

Capital Circle NE (Healthcare)

Apalachee Parkway within Capital Circle (Miscellaneous, business service, food service)
N Monroe St (Miscellaneous, i.e., business service, food service)

Capital Circle NW & I-10 (Business service)

Within the major job cluster locations, the primary job industries are government, education, and
healthcare.

Table 2 shows that the percentage of employees working from home in Leon County from 2017
through 2021 (ACS 2020 1-year estimate is not available). As expected, there was a significant
increase in people working from home from 2019 to 2021. It is very likely that more than 50% of
workers adapted to a work WFH model during 2020, the height of the pandemic.

2017 1-year 2018 1-year 2019 1-year 2021 1-year
estimate estimate estimate estimate
Total workers 144,672 145,031 145,853 151,750
Workers working from 5154 7807 8,090 29,291
home
Percentage of working 3.5% 539 55% 19.3%
from home

Table 2 Percentage of People Working from Home (Source: American Community Survey)

Figure 20 (click here) displays the percentage of commuters working from home by their home
Census Group. It shows that most areas with a high rate of WFH commuters are within Capital
Circle. It is expected that the block group with the highest rate is in the university because students
live and study in the same region. Persons living in these areas are more likely employed in an
industry that provides flexibility to WFH.

Figure 21 (click here) shows clusters of commuters departing for their jobs in the morning peak
hours from their residential locations. The residential locations of workers departing in the A.M.
peak are clustered near Capital Circle. Outside of Capital Circle, the densest areas are the
southeast, northeast, and northwest portions of the county, and commuters from those areas are




KITTELSON
&ASSOCIATES

more likely to use N Monroe St, Thomasville Rd, Mahan Dr, and Apalachee Pkwy to travel to and
from the downtown area.

FACTORS ENABLING WORK FROM HOME

There are three main barriers to an extensive adoption of telecommuting: job type, employer
telecommuting policies, and residential broadband access.

Job Type

Table 3 is a summary of fop employers in Tallahassee. It is worth notfing that the top ? employers in
Tallahassee fall into these three industries: education, government, and healthcare. This is
consistent with findings presented in the previous section identifying clusters of job industries.
Telecommuting strategies are feasible for people employed in education and government but
limited for those in healthcare and industries such as agriculture, food service, retail, or
construction jobs.




KITTELSON
&ASSOCIATES

SIZE EMPLOYER INDUSTRY
Florida State University Education
5,000+ State of Florida Government
Tallahassee Memorial Healthcare, Inc. Healthcare
City of Tallahassee Government
2,000-4,999 Florida A&M University Education
Leon County Schools Education
Capital Regional Medical Center Healthcare
Leon County Government
1,000 to 1,999
Tallahassee Community College Education
Trulieve Agriculture
Apalachee Center, Inc. Healthcare

Capital City Bank Group

Finance & Insurance

Capital Health Plan

Healthcare

Citizens Property Insurance Corporation

Business Services

Coastal Forest Resources Company

Manufacturing

Georgia Pacific

Manufacturing

30010999 Goodwill Industries - Big Bend Social Services
Mainline Information Systems Technology
Sodexo Food Services
5t. Marks Powder Manufacturing
The Florida Bar Associations & Organizations
WA Qutpatient Clinic Healthcare
Cone Distributing Transportation
Danfoss Turbocor Manufacturing
Envision Credit Union Finance & Insurance
General Dynamics Land Systems Manufacturing
McKenzie Tank Lines Transportation
Preferred Managing Agency Finance & Insurance

200-299 Radiology Associates Healthcare

Residential Elevators Manufacturing
Seven Hills Health & Rehabilitaticn Center Healthcare
Tallahassee Orthopedic Clinic Healthcare
Tallahassee Primary Care Associates Healthcare
Tri-Eagle Sales Transportation
Westminster Oaks Healthcare

Table 3 Major Employers in the Region

Employer Telecommuting Policies

During the pandemic, many employers and educators had to quickly adopt broad teleworking
policies. Some have kept those policies in place. Others are requiring their workers or students to
come back into the workplace full-fime or under an in-person/remote hybrid schedule. The Florida
Department of Transportation uses a hybrid schedule for many of their offices, workers must come
in-person 3 days a week and are permitted to work from home the other 2 days. Florida State
University (FSU) has a similar hybrid approach to telecommuting. Like FDOT, workers are required
to come in 3 days a week and permitted to work from home the other 2 days. With both agencies
the work schedules are not formally memorialized, however FSU plans to formally adopt this hylbrid
work schedule for applicable employees in 2024.




KITTELSON
&ASSOCIATES

Broadband Access

The primary logistical hurdle to felecommuting revolves around residential access to broadband
internet, which forms the infrastructure critical for successful telecommuting. Legislators and
industry experts recommend broadband speeds of at least 100/10 megabits per second (Mbps)
download/upload speeds to support teleworking or remote learning. Figure 22 (Click here) depicts
where workers live, who have jobs conducive fo felecommuting, and the availability of
broadband internet access (af least 100/10 Mbps).

Broadband data was acquired from the FCC. The data shows where providers say broadband is
a capability and is not entirely representative of where broadband exists. Even though broadband
coverage and levels of service are not comprehensive in the region, broadband coverage is
primarily available in the areas where most workers live with jobs conducive to telecommuting.

A note about FCC data: twice a year service providers report to the FCC via Form 477 a list of census blocks
in which they can or do offer service in at least one address. A limiation of this method is that it is possible
that certain areas within that census block do not currently have access to broadband but are shown on a
map as having service capability.




KITTELSON
&ASSOCIATES

MOBILITY PERFORMANCE FROM PRE-COVID TO

POST-COVID

Traffic Volume Trend

Traffic volume data was collected for selected corridors in Leon County used by commuters. The
volume data comes from FDOT's permanent traffic monitoring sites and portable sites. The
permanent sites offer consistent fraffic volume data every day throughout the year, whereas
portable sites provide data for only one or two days per year. Volumes expectedly dipped in 2020.
The year 2020 is identified as the peak Covid-19 pandemic period when working from home (WFH)
was mandatory for many employees. Figure 3 displays the location of the sites.

sites

° Permanent Manitoring
Sites

® Portable Monitoring
Sites

— 10

Natural Bridge
Battlefield
Historic State
IS=EDEP, Esri, HERE. Garmih, SafeGriphk METI/NASA,
s 4 NP5, USDA Esn, NASA, NGA, USGS

0 125 25 5 Miles
| T |

L |

Figure 3 Traffic Monitoring Sites




KITTELSON
&ASSOCIATES

Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) Results

Figure 4 shows the AADT frend from 2018 to 2022. For all six study corridors, there is a decrease in
daily volumes during the pandemic. The 2022 vehicle volumes have bounced back to the pre-
pandemic levels.

2018 - 2022 AADT

45000

40000

20000

15000 __"'“--..______
—————

10000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Thomasville Rd

Apalachee Parkway - Blountstown Hwy Woodville Hwy e Capital Circle SW

Figure 4 2018-2022 AADT for the Major Commute Corridors

Hourly Volume Results from Permanent Traffic Monitoring Sites

Figure 5 and Figure 7 show the annual average hourly traffic volume from 2018 — 2022 for
Apalachee Pkwy and Blountstown Hwy, respectively. It is observed that 2020 peak traffic volume
during the pandemic was lower than in the pre- and post-Covid periods, especially during the
morning peak hours. Additionally, post-pandemic peak traffic volumes in 2021 and 2022 did not
rebound fo the pre-pandemic levels in 2018 and 2019 in both the AM and PM peaks. Figure 6 and
Figure 8 show the AM peak (7AM - 9AM) total traffic volume by day of week from 2018 — 2022 for
Apalachee Pkwy and Blountstown Hwy, respectively. A similar pattern can be observed across
different days of week that 2020 experienced the lowest AM peak volume. Besides, Tuesday to
Thursday experienced more volume than Monday and Friday, consistent across different years. It
might be because people tend to work from home on days closer to the weekend. Overall, the
four figures convey the consistent travel patterns from pre-pandemic to post-pandemic.

This practice has gained substantial attention in recent years due to the COVID-19 pandemic’s
paradigm shift of where people live and where and how people work. Stay at home orders at the
onset of COVID-19 in 2020 initiated a rapid adoption of temporary telework policies in largely
white-collar sectors. Af the same time, the lack of a commute enabled employees to move further
away from job centers.




I@ KITTELSON
N/ &ASSOCIATES

3500

3000

2500

2000

1500

1000

500

5000

4500

4000

3500

3000

2500

2000

Apalachee Pkwy (east of Suwannee St. )

FEP PP SPPS %@q@o@ é’ @ S @ é" @»@ @ @ é’ @ e.“ Ry

2018 2019 == 22020 2021

2022

Figure 5 Annual Average Hourly Traffic Volume on Apalachee Parkway from 2018 to 2022

Apalachee Pkwy (east of Suwannee St. )
AM Peak Volume by Day of Week

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Figure 6 AM Peak Volume on Apalachee Parkway by Day of Week from 2018 to 2022




I% KITTELSON
N/ &ASSOCIATES

Blountstown Hwy (west of Coe Landing)

700
600
500

400

300
200

100

NN @@@%@b@,\@%@@@@@@@@@@@@@@é"@

QT N AT oy 97 W87 BT a2 AR Ay

2018 2019 == =32020

Figure 7 Annual Average Hourly Traffic Volume on Blountstown Hwy from 2018 to 2022

Blountstown Hwy (west of Coe Landing)
AM Peak Volume by Day of Week

1250
1200

e /
1100 //

1050 /\\

1000

950
900

i /\ —

800

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday

— ()18 —201G —2020 —202] —2022

Figure 8 AM Peak Volume on Blounistown Hwy by Day of Week from 2018 to 2022




KITTELSON
&ASSOCIATES

Hourly Volume Results from Portable Traffic Monitoring Sites

As previously explained, portable monitoring sites provide data for one or two days out of the year.
Figure 9 - Figure 12 show the hourly volumes from 2018 to 2022 for some Tallahassee’s commuter
corridors. If 2020 volume data is collected prior fo March 2020, the representative dates for WFH
condifions are from 2021. Therefore, in Figure 11 and Figure 12, the dashed yellow 2021 line
represents the fraffic volume impacted by the WFH arrangements in comparison to the rest of
dates.

For Crawfordville Hwy (Figure 9), the peak hour fraffic volume during the 2020 pandemic period is
similar to early 2021. However, the volume in 2020-2021 period was slightly lower than in other
periods.

For Capital Circle SW (Figure 10), the peak hour fraffic volume collected during the pandemic
period (November 2020) was lower than in March 2021, especially during the morning peak hours.
Meanwhile, the volumes in 2020-2021 period were significantly lower than in other periods.
Additionally, the March 2021 peak periods show a distinct shift to earlier hours compared to the
other years. This phenomenon may be reflective of conditions specific to the day the data was
captured (i.e., March 1, 2021).

Crawfordville Hwy (south of Wakulla Springs Rd)

1800

1600

1400

1200

1000

800

600

400

200

O 0 O 0 O 8 O 8 O O O O O O O O O O O O O O & O
ST O OO 0o 0O, 0,0 0 OO0 O OO0 O 0.0 00 O O O .0 9090
ST AT AT AT T 6T 60 AT @7 67 $7 T 9T 0T BT 07 a0 K T 0 S Y A

e ]/8/2018 e 2/25/2019 11/9/2020 2/22/2021

1/11/2022

Figure 9 Hourly Volume on Crawfordville Hwy from 2018 to 2022




VQ KITTELSON
N/ &ASSOCIATES

Captial Circle SW (east of Springhill Rd)

1800
1600
1400
1200
1000
800
600
400
200
0
0‘-00 \}00 ,1;90 %_90 &90 690 690 /\90 %90 05.00\, .00090\, .00\’ 90\,&90\, 90&90\, 90\, 90\990’990&90@90{590
e 1/31/2018 e 2/27/2019  @m»  ©11/10/2020 3/1/2021 1/11/2022
Figure 10 Hourly Volume on Capital Circle SW from 2018 to 2022
Along Thomasville Rd (Figure 11), the morning peak volume during the pandemic (early 2021) is

roughly 1,000 vehicles less than pre-pandemic volumes. A similar pattern is not observed for the
evening peak hours. This is because the PM peak hour volume is a confluence of varying trip
purposes and does not have similar proportions of commuters as the AM peak.

For Woodlville Hwy (Figure 12), only a slight difference was observed for the peak fraffic volumes
in the pre-pandemic, pandemic, or post-pandemic periods.




K

KITTELSON
&ASSOCIATES

4000

3500

3000

2500

2000

1500

1000

500

e 11/13/2018 e 3/4/2019

1800
1600
1400
1200
1000
800
600
400
200

Q
S

0:00

N

P P P PP PP L PP PP LSOO ®
SO L LLP L, LS PSS

Thomasville Rd (south of Bannerman Rd)

1:00
2:00
3:00
4:00
5:00
6:00
7:00
8:00
9:00
10:00
11:00
12:00
13:00
14:00
15:00
16:00
17:00
18:00
19:00

Figure 11 Hourly Volume on Thomasville Rd from 2018 to 2022

Woodville Hwy (south of Capital Cir.)

T N 6T 6T AT BT 97 ST T TR AT 0T AT QYT AR AT AD

1/16/2018 3/12/2019 2/18/2020 e== ©4/14/2021

Figure 12 Hourly Volume on Woodyville Hwy from 2018 to 2022

S P

20:00
21:00
22:00
23:00

1/22/2020 e=» ©3/30/202] e—11/2/2022

Q O
SIS
WAy A

10/25/2022




VQ KITTELSON
N/ &ASSOCIATES

Daily Vehicle Hours of Delay

Delay data are collected from the segment-level results of FDOT's Source Book. Speed and

volume data were collected for six major commuter corridors in Leon County. Figure 13 displays
the location of these segments.

Gibson
Bradfogdvi
%
2
8
o
159 I3ha!
Lake 3L
- Jackson g
T Klapp-Phipps Rober el
Lake Jitkson Park Aired 8 N [3a5}
2 Maclay Gardens
T State Park
\ —\
stags T
Beilwood (4] El Destinad
es
A -}
s &
g 4 Gargin
-.[ Miccosuk
Cano| oad
erway
%) ’/
—
Ochlotkonee ///
—— ' 9“"
Lo}, el ll o ; .
lerkins
Upper
lake
Lafoyetre
1 see : Lafayotte
Heritage Trail
Park
RGBEIE A pn
Fil —— ==
N

et Chair
A | - n

e rvestigated Sites 05

olnits iwmmu Galf 2
ntemational %,
hirport = *
rpor = %,
(1] 0. 1. 3 es |, 8 Esn NAQJ\_“ ISGS. FEMA, Tallahassee Leon County GIS, FOEP, Fan, HI'-. -\.I'Ir‘-ll SaleGraph
o
i e e S \‘,;.l\"" Lakhgide "f' GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA. NPS, USDA
oV ir —_—
¢ ) o

Figure 13 Locations of the Sites with Delay Calculation




KITTELSON
&ASSOCIATES

Figure 14 and Figure 15 show the daily and peak-hour vehicle hours of delay, respectively. It is
reasonable fo see that travelers experienced less delay during the pandemic periods for most
corridors. However, Mahan Dr was less heavily congested post-pandemic than pre-pandemic for
the daily results while the peak hour delay increased since the pandemic. Apalachee Parkway,
near Capital Circle, has witnessed decreased vehicle delays on an annual basis from 2018 through
202, likely from updates to signal timing at major intersections along the corridor.

Daily Vehicle Delay
300
250

200

150

100 —

50 . \

0 M
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
— Apalachee Pkwy = Mahan Dr{west of Capital Cir) - MNorth Monroe 5treet (south of I-10)
Tennessee Street (east of Monroe 5t.) =—=Tennessee Street (west of Monroe St.)=——Thomasville Rd

Figure 14 Daily Vehicle Hours of Delay on the Major Commute Corridors




K

KITTELSON
&ASSOCIATES

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

Peak Hour Vehicle Delay

\

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
——Apalachee Pkwy ——Mahan Dr(west of Capital Cir)
——North Monroe Street (south of I-10) ——Tennessee Street (east of Monroe 5t.)

——Tennessee Street (west of Monroe St.)——Thomasville Rd

Figure 15 Peak-Hour Vehicle Hours of Delay on the Major Commute Corridors




KITTELSON
&ASSOCIATES

KEY TAKEAWAYS

1.

The maijority of the workers, 53%, employed in Leon County both live and work within Leon
County. A third (33%) of Leon County's workers live outside of the county and commute in,
compared to 13% of workers that live in Leon County and commute outside of the county.
There are five major job clusters in Tallahassee. Most of these jobs fall into the county’s top
three job industries: education, government, and healthcare.

Upon primary scan, Leon County has good coverage of broadband internet access to
support telecommuting. The surrounding counties have sparser coverage.

The major commuter corridors in Leon County have shown a significant reduction in traffic
volume and delay in both peak and non-peak hours in 2020 during the Covid-19
pandemic when many WFH arrangements were in place.

On any given weekday WFH has a greater impact on morning peak fraffic congestion. As
for the evening peak, the impact of WFH was modest. The results are in line with the
literature (Loo & Huang, 2022) noting that WFH has a more significant impact on morning
peak congestion than its evening counterpart. In the morning peak, trips primarily revolve
around work-related tasks, resulting in a higher concentration of activities both in terms of
location and time (He, 2013; Szeto et al., 2017). On the contrary, during the evening peak,
trips are more varied. In addition to commuting ftrips, individuals may engage in
discretionary activities before heading back home (Yu et al., 2019).

Without the mandatory or voluntary WFH arrangements during the pandemic, the morning
peak post-Covid (2021-2022) has rebounded to the pre-Covid levels (2018-2019) for most
corridors analyzed.

The impact of WFH arrangements during the pandemic on peak hour fraffic volume and
traffic congestion is different across the study corridors. One possible reason is that the
commute volume varies by job occupation. Traffic volume would be significantly reduced
if it consisted of flexible job occupations (like professional services, IT, and government)
compared to construction and healthcare.




KITTELSON
&ASSOCIATES

REFERENCE:

He, S. Y. (2013). Does flextime affect choice of departure time for morning home-based commuting tripsé Evidence from

two regions in California. Transport Policy, 25, 210-221. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tranpol.2012.11.003

Loo, B. P. Y., Huang, Z, (2022), Spatio-temporal variations of fraffic congestion under work from home (WFH) arrangements:
Lessons learned from COVID-19, Cities, 124, https://doi.org/10.1016/].cities.2022.103610

Szeto, W. Y., Yang, L., Wong, R. C. P., Li, Y. C., & Wong, S. C. (2017). Spatio-temporal travel characteristics of the elderly in
an ageing society. Travel Behavior and Society, 9, 10-20. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tbs.2017.07.005

Yu, W., Bai, H.a., Chen, J., & Yan, X. (2019). Analysis of space-time variation of passenger flow and commuting

characteristics of residents using smart card data of Nanjing metro. Sustainability, 11(18), 4989.




IZ KITTELSON
N & ASSOCIATES

APPENDIX:

Number of Jobs by Home :
Census Block 20]59" v =
wn-20 o
=31-100 : :
=101 - 200 Y
w201 - 500 .
| wm501 - 937

SR

Figure 16 Job Distribution by Home Census Block in Leon County (back to main text)




K

KITTELSON
&ASSOCIATES

Number of Jobs by
Home Census Block
2019

—0-20

w21 - 100

== 101 - 200

== 201 - 500

== 501 - 937

0 05 1 2Miles

Figure 17 Job Distribution by Home Census Block in Tallahassee (back to main text)

21



K

KITTELSON
&ASSOCIATES

Number of Jobs by Work
‘Census Block 2019 3
Spmo ]

| 21-100 -

17101 - 200
- 201 - 500

W >500

1.5

[t

6Miles

Figure 18 Number of Jobs by Work Census Block in Leon County (back to main text)

22



\{

KITTELSON
&ASSOCIATES

05 1

Number of Jobs by
Work Census Block
2019

Cooo

—0-20
21-100

=101 - 200

== 201 - 500

- =500

2Miles

Figure 19 Number of Jobs by Work Census Block in Tallahassee (back to main text)

23



IV<4 KITTELSON
N/ &ASSOCIATES

o< |

« v SIS e

Figure 20 Percentage of WFH employees by Home Census Group (Source: 2017-2021 American Community Survey) (back to main text)

24



I% KITTELSON
N/ &ASSOCIATES

[ ity e :
;ae Number of %m =
| Departing in ngk Hours
i i 0-148

w149 -;29(?
| =391 - 452

=453 - 701
=702 - 1041

i
mr

‘ C el gy 6Miles
£ b s - A

.....

Figure 21 Number of Workers Departing in Morning Peak Hours (Source: 2017-2021 American Community Survey) (back to main text)

25



K

KITTELSON
&ASSOCIATES

Legend
Number of Jobs in Top Telecommuting Industries at Home Census Block
1Dot =15

High Speed (100/10 Mbps) Internet Access

L
+
L

4 ) 16Miles No High Speed Internect Access

High Speed Internect Access

Figure 22 Broadband Coverage (Source: FCC National Broadband Map) (back to main text)

26



Appendix C:
Stakeholder
Interviews



i ) i ECONOMIC
Best Practices from Agencies Promoting Travel Demand Management VIALTYes

Leon County/City of Tallahassee Office of Economic Vitality

The Office of Economic Vitaly (OEV) coordinates the activities of a team of economic development
professionals focused on developing programs and initiatives that advances the community as a hub for
economic competitiveness while simultaneously leveraging ideas, innovations, and intellectual capital
through the continuous coordination of the community’s economic development partners.

In a meeting with the Office of Economic Vitality, the Director questioned if in-office work schedules will
return to pre-Covid normal. In the Spring of 2023, the online OEV Data Center shows the Unemployment
Rate in Leon County was approximately 2.5 percent. At the time of this interview, July 2023, the rate was
hovering around 3 percent. A low unemployment rate puts the employees in the driver’s seat, allowing
employees to negotiate telecommuting as part of a compensation package. Working from home is an
incentive to entice the best and the brightest. The OEV is attempting to attract professional services,
healthcare, transportation, manufacturing, and IT to Tallahassee. With a few exceptions, most of these
industries have positions suitable for telecommuting.

Although employers prefer to have their employees back in the office, the OEV acknowledged that
employers will reduce their overhead cost by allowing employees to work from home. Suggesting on the
flip side some employees are tired of virtual meetings and have experienced Teams and Zoom fatigue.

In the OEV December 2023 Newsletter, the Director notes a key take-away from a recent Economic
Conference with regard to office vacancy rates. Namely, Post-COVID, there is a noticeable comeback in
the demand for office spaces, indicating a shift towards a more hybrid work model. Staff at the OEV
identified that a toolkit that could be provided to employers to assist with managing remote workers would
be very helpful, and asked if one could be provided as a part of this study.

One of the area’s biggest private employers, Danfoss TurboCor, requires everyone to work in person.
Current employer space needs are for warehouse and site suitable research and manufacturing locations,
to accommodate businesses similar to TurboCor.

Meeting attendees acknowledged that the availability of free parking affects individual trips. A comment
was made that lessening the amount of parking required for new commercial office and mixed-use
development may encourage telecommuting. Other factors affecting commuter trip generation include:

e Available and affordable daycare
e Access to a car pool program
e Staggered work schedules

For more information on the Office of Economic Vitality please see their website
https://oevforbusiness.org/.



https://oevforbusiness.org/

Best Practices from Agencies Promoting Travel Demand Management

Florida State University (FSU) Transportation & Parking Services

FSU is confronted with internal traffic issues; one reason is that students are driving between garages
between classes. There seems a reliance on single occupancy auto use even when traveling within the
campus. FSU has technology that monitors the number of unoccupied parking spaces to track parking
utilization. The garages are mostly full, but the surface lots have some capacity. Employees pay $10.42 per
paycheck for parking and levels within the garage are reserved for them. Students are afforded free
parking. In 2023 FSU started a program that offers students reserved parking at a fee of $415 a year. It
sold out in one-day. The program may be expanded.

StarMetro provides two circulators for FSU students, staff, and faculty. Students pay a transportation
access fee to have free bus services, which includes the circulator bus service as well as access to Starmetro
on all of its routes. FSU offers park-and-ride lots on the periphery of campus, they are served by the
university’s circulators, and are not at capacity. Demand is less than prior to the pandemic — there are a
number of employees who only work on campus three-days a week. The university receives reports that
show the ridership. FSU Transportation Department staff suggested that students need to be better
educated about the circulator.

Online classes are offered, but on-campus students numbers are similar to the pre-pandemic levels.
Overall enrollment is highest it has ever been. Other options for decreasing vehicle congestion during
commute hours are:

¢ No longer allow freshmen to bring cars.
e Make premier parking a fee and parking further away free
e Do not start classes at 8 AM

For more information on the FSU Transportation Services please see their website https://transportation.fsu.edu/.



https://www.fsu.edu./
https://www.fsu.edu./

Best Practices from Agencies Promoting Travel Demand Management

Florida Agriculture & Mechanical University (FAMU) Office of Parking & Transportation
Through a meeting on July 11 with Deputy Parking Director Todd Kemp the CRTPA was able to further
understand drivers of trip generation in and around Florida A&M’s campus. FAMU has in-office
requirements for some positions and the vast majority of teaching staff/faculty are expected to work in-
person. Some departments were predominantly teleworking at the time of the interview. FAMU has an
adopted Telecommuting Policy, UP-03-01, which govern remote work for employees.

Prior to the interview, FAMU had begun researching what other employers were doing elsewhere to gauge
the magnitude of effectiveness of a telework program. The university has flexible work schedules with
shifts from 7 AM to 4 PM, 8 AM to 5 PM, 9 AM to 6 PM, and 10 AM to 8 PM. The university does provide
at home equipment for teleworking in some cases and also an internet allowance.

Students are mostly required to come to class. Online classes that existed prior to the pandemic are still
being offered in an online format. Classes that presented in-person lectures and went online because of
the pandemic, are now back to an in-person format. The university did not allow Freshmen to bring
vehicles to campus up until the pandemic. After the pandemic that policy changed and freshmen are now
permitted to bring vehicles.

Data on parking, including parking space count and how many parking spaces are used, is kept by the
university. Students and faculty do not pay for parking, a transportation fee is included in tuition that
covers the provision of parking. Through the interview it was established that parking is not a scarcity but
premium parking access can be afforded through the purchase of a parking permit.

Part of the transportation fee included in tuition is for StarMetro services. FAMU has contracted with
StarMetro so that university students can ride the bus for free. Venom Express is a transit bus that was
previously operated by StarMetro and now is operated by FAMU. The route travels within campus, off
campus, and goes to the engineering school. It is a fixed route, with headways every 30 minutes.



Best Practices from Agencies Promoting Travel Demand Management o e

FDOT District 3—Regional Commuter Assistance Program

The Apalachee Regional Planning Council (ARPC) staffs RideOn Commuter Services, which covers the
Capital Region. RideOn promotes the use of TDM strategies that improve mobility, while reducing vehicle
miles traveled. RideOn works with local governments, employers, and stakeholder partners like
CareerSource, which provides comprehensive employment services for the region. RideOn recommends
universal adoption of TDM strategies such as compressed work weeks or flexible scheduling (set core
hours, with customized start and end times), which can also significantly reduce peak hour congestion. In
order to increase vehicle occupancy, RideOn provides free carpool matching for individuals, and assists
with establishing vanpools for long-distance commuters. RideOn also offers a free Emergency Ride Home
Program for those who regularly log trips to work or school using fuel-efficient modes. See Appendix D for
additional information.

The greatest need for additional transportation options is in the rural counties, where transit service is
limited, if available at all. The Florida Department of Transportation currently partners with Enterprise
Commute to provide a commuter van and monthly fuel, at a 50 percent subsidy (for more information on
the FDOT Rural Van Pool program please see the handout in Appendix D). Stronger support for remote
work would also significantly reduce travel demand from these rural communities.

Additionally, feedback from citizens indicates strong interest in re-establishing a City bikeshare program,
preferably, with a fleet that includes bikes with electric assist. Sustainable Tallahassee is also advocating
for low-interest loans and/or subsidies for residents who need assistance in purchasing an e-bike as a
commuter vehicle.

RideOn staff strongly recommends development of a remote work training program which could be
offered to Tallahassee’s largest employers. Clear best practices have emerged from lessons learned during
the pandemic. The wide variations in both productivity and financial success demonstrate that far more is
needed than a template or toolkit. The curriculum needs to provide the specific management skills that
have been proven necessary to effectively lead a remote or hybrid workforce. In the past, such a
certification program was offered on-line by the Center for Urban Transportation Research at University of
South Florida.

For more information on FDOT’s Regional Commuter Assistance Program, please visit RideOnTogether.org.



Think

Best Practices from Agencies Promoting Travel Demand Management | Yourcommute

Central Florida Commuter Services

Like the FDOT D3 RideOn program, reThink Your Commute provides commuter services to Central Florida
FDOT District 5. Staff from Central Florida Commuter Services noted that the State of Florida permits state
agencies to allow for telework pursuant to § 110.171, Florida Statutes (F.S.). This section requires state
agencies to “review all established positions and designate those positions that the agency deems eligible
for telework. The agency shall ensure that this information is current and available to its employees and
managers.” This statute permits state agencies to allow telework for appropriate positions. Individual
state agencies determine implementation of their telework program. One example discussed was the State
of Florida Department of Revenue’s (DOR) telework program. The DOR webpage provides the agency’s
policy, procedure, agreement, and guidelines implementing telework. In addition, see Appendix D for
information on telework at DOR, as well as the ReThink Draft Guidebook on TDM, which discusses
developing and implementing a Telecommute program.

Employer engagement was identified as a primary TDM strategy in lessening the number of commuters.
Central Florida Commuter Services discusses workplace needs with employers to help them develop a
telecommuting policy. Employers are provided with information on work from home procedures, including
what needs to be in place to successfully telecommute, should a company or agency allow for telework. A
significant number of Central Florida businesses have a hybrid policy, allowing employees to work from
home some days of the week, but there is a push is to get staff back in the office. Central Florida Commuter
Services has a relationship with their local Society of Human Resource Managers (SHRM) chapter,
providing another avenue to inform and encourage the use of travel demand management (TDM)
strategies.

In addition, at places of business the Central Florida Commuter Services provides presentations to new
hires on the benefits of TDM. Two of the selling points presented are the environmental and fiscal benefits
of TDM. Central Florida Commuter Services provides marketing materials on why TDM strategies (transit,
van and carpools, telecommuting) are good for the environment by reducing single occupancy vehicle
trips. Financial incentives may be offered to employees to encourage them not to drive to work. For
example, one solution identified is to make parking expensive. The City of Orlando pays money to
employees who opt out of sponsored parking.

Other factors identified by Central Florida Commuter Services in removing vehicles from their roadways:

e Expansion of broadband, Lake Nona was identified as a community intentionally equipped to allow
people to work from home because of a significant investment in broadband

e Universities in the area offering online courses

e Vanpooling and the lesser expensive traditional option of carpooling

For more information on the reThink Your Commute program please see their website
https://www.rethinkyourcommute.com/.



https://www.rethinkyourcommute.com/

Lessons Learned from Employers

Florida State University (FSU) Office of Human Resources

Florida State University employs roughly 12,000 employees. FSU’s Associate Vice President for Human
Resources indicated that t on any given day about 70 percent of staff are on campus, compared to prior to
the pandemic when over 95 percent of staff worked in person. Service positions, such as maintenance
workers and food servers, have to report to campus. People working for the university, outside of teaching
and hands-on positions, are afforded opportunities to work from in alternate work locations

FSU permits various hybrid work schedules. Employees can opt into this hybrid work schedule, with
supervisory approval, or choose to report to the workplace five-days a week. This approach started as a
pilot during the pandemic and continues currently. For more information on the FSU Alternate Work
Location Arrangement please see the reference guide as part of Appendix D.

FSU was intentional about returning employees to campus at the same time the students returned.
Flexible schedules were offered to ease employees back into an in-person work environment. Supervisors
have flexibility to stagger schedules or allow for four ten-hour days if business needs can still be met. One
of the primary reasons the flexibility is offered is to facilitate increased retention.. For positions where
retaining employees is a challenge, full time remote work may be permitted

For those persons employed in a full-time remote position, FSU provides resources including physical office
setup (i.e., computer and monitors) and an internet allowance. These same resources are not provided for
employees who opt for a hybrid work schedule. These types of resources are provided on campus and it
would double costs if the same equipment and internet is purchased for someone’s home.

For more information on employment with FSU and their Alternate Work Location Arrangement please see
their website https://hr.fsu.edu/.



https://hr.fsu.edu/
https://hr.fsu.edu/

Appendix D:
Policy Guidance



The following sections of this appendix provide language employers could use in crafting their
own telecommuting policies.

Purpose/need

The (employer) supports Hybrid Telework when appropriate and recognizes that, when properly
implemented, Hybrid Telework may improve performance, assist in recruitment and retention of critical
employees, reduce employee turnover, and result in a cost savings through a reduction in leased office
space and office energy use.

This Pilot Hybrid Telework is designed to enable the (employer) to evaluate the desirability of a
permanent Telework Policy and will expire no later than (insert date). Prior to or upon expiration of this
Pilot Hybrid Telework Policy, the (employer) will review productivity and performance of Telework
Employees for the period this Pilot Hybrid Telework Program remains in effect. Pending the outcome of
such review, the (employer) may begin offering Telework on a permanent basis.

Definitions

A. Telework: An arrangement that allows an employee to conduct all or some of his or her work away
from the official worksite during all or a portion of the employee’s established work hours on a regular
basis.

B. Hybrid Telework: A work arrangement that allows a Telework-Eligible Employee to Telework one to
two days per week and requires the Telework-Eligible Employee to work a predetermined number of
days in the (employer)’s provided office.

C. Telework: A work arrangement that allows a Telework-Eligible Employee to conduct some duties and
responsibilities away from their assigned (employer)-issued workspace during a portion of the Telework-
Eligible Employee’s established work hours on a regular basis. The term Telework is considered to be
synonymous with Hybrid Telework.

D. Telework Agreement: A document that establishes the rules and responsibilities associated with a
Telework-Eligible Employee’s ability to Telework.

F. Teleworker: A Telework-Eligible Employee who has been approved for Telework and has an executed
Telework Agreement in effect.

Identify all positions eligible for telework

The (employer) recognizes that the job duties and responsibilities of certain positions do not lend
themselves to a Telework option. Provide the framework to determine whether a position is appropriate
and eligible for Telework.

In identifying positions appropriate for telework, some basic considerations are:



A. Whether the job requirements accommodate working away from the official worksite on a
recurring basis;

B. Whether required contact with other employees and customers is predictable (and therefore,
manageable);

C. Whether there are identifiable portions of the job which can be done away from the official
worksite; and
Whether the work output for this position is specific and measurable;
Whether the position handles sensitive or confidential information;
Whether the job requirements accommodate working away from the normal work site on a
regularly scheduled basis;

G. Whether there are identifiable portions of the job which can effectively be performed away from
the normal work site;

H. Whether the job duties can be accomplished at a comparable level at an alternate work site; and

I.  Whether the Division or Office is able to monitor job performance and successful completion of
job duties.

Select categories of employees may request and be considered for participation in the Employee
Telework Program with a minimum of two (2) full workdays in the office per workweek. A full workday is
eight (8) or more hours.

The determination of a position’s eligibility for Telework will require a Division Director (or equivalent) to
provide their respective Deputy Chief Financial Officer (DCFO) (or equivalent) with a supporting proposal
for review and approval by the DCFO (or equivalent).

Private Firm Considerations
A. Benefits to the work unit or (employer)’s productivity

B. Office workload

C. Office space reduction or multi-use

D. Equipmentreduction or multi-use

E. Financial impact reduction through increased returns or yields

F. Impact on other employees (ability to interact with teleworker and morale)
G. Impact on customers

H. Environmental conditions

Requirements and procedures for Teleworkers

Teleworkers are subject to the same rules regarding conduct, attendance, leave, performance standards,
and discipline as other employees. Teleworkers must obtain supervisory approval before taking leave.
Accurate time sheets must be submitted by the employee.

The teleworker agrees to work at the assigned office or approved telework location and not from any
other unapproved site. Failure to comply with this provision may result in termination of the Telework
Agreement and/or other appropriate disciplinary action.



The teleworker is prohibited from conducting face-to-face business at his or her established telework
location. Failure to comply with this provision may result in termination of the Telework Agreement
and/or other appropriate disciplinary action.

Teleworkers are required to maintain normal working hours.

Employees must be able to work the minimum number of full workdays in the office as outlined in
(Telework Policy), to be deemed eligible for consideration to participate in the Employee Telework
Program. Any exceptions must be approved by the (management).

An employee shall not telework if on approved leave.

Telework may only be performed on a Hybrid basis. Employees may perform Hybrid Telework one to two
days per week. Participation in the (employer’s) Telework Policy is voluntary.

Employees who have been approved to work a flexible work schedule are ineligible to participate in
hybrid telework.

Employees on a Performance Improvement Plan (PIP) are not eligible for the Employee Telework
Program.

Positions at a Bureau Chief (or equivalent) level, or higher, are not eligible for Telework.

Establish Telework Agreement

Prior to beginning Telework, the Telework-Eligible Employee and supervisor must complete a Telework
Agreement. This form must be provided to the (human resources), which is responsible for the overall
coordination and maintenance of correspondence and documents associated with Telework. The
Telework Agreement, which will be maintained in the Telework-Eligible Employee’s official personnel file,
must include at a minimum:

A. The established workdays and normal work hours;

B. An explanation as to how supervision will be provided;

C. A requirement that the Telework-Eligible Employee check-in with their immediate supervisor at
least once on each day they work remotely;
An explanation as to how work products and outputs will be monitored and reviewed;
An explanation as to how attendance and leave records will be maintained and processed;
A maximum response time for the Telework-Eligible Employee to report to their in-office
workspace if requested by a supervisor;

G. Details (physical address, phone number, point of contact) related to the Telework- Eligible
Employee’s Telework location;

H. An acknowledgement by the Telework-Eligible Employee that their productivity and performance
during established work hours will be monitored, using all resources available to the (employer);

I. An acknowledgment that approved secondary employment cannot be performed during work
hours or using employer resources;

J. A specific description of how technology requirements will be met at the Telework location.

K. Telework agreements will be reviewed in conjunction with the Teleworker’s annual performance
evaluations



A telework agreement is not required, for:

Performance of required work duties away from the official worksite and outside of established work
hours on an occasional basis and sporadically working away from the official worksite during all or some
portion of the established work hours. These arrangements may be used by the supervisor or manager
to accommodate extenuating circumstances by allowing an employee to maintain productivity away
from the official worksite;

1. Performance of required work duties on an occasional basis, and which are away from the (employer)-
issued workspace or outside of established work hours.

2. Duties and responsibilities that, by their nature, are routinely performed in the field, away from the
employee’s (employer)-issued workspace.

Temporary intermittent adjustments to the base work hours due to extenuating circumstances and/or
to meet the needs of the (employer), are permitted provided the changes are agreed upon between the
immediate supervisor or manager and the employee. Significant or long-term changes to the agreed
upon telework schedule must be documented with an updated Telework Agreement which must be
signed, approved, and processed in the same manner as an original request in order to comply with
statutory, procedural, and annual reporting requirements.

Screening Employees for telework success

Telework does not suit everyone or every job. The following guidelines are offered for use by
supervisors and managers when considering whether telework is an available option for an
employee. The following criteria must be met before an employee can be screened for telework.

An employee of the (employer) who has been employed with the (employer) for at least six (6) months,
and is not on a Performance Improvement Plan, and does not have an evaluation score below an
aggregate score of less than 3.0 on the most recent performance evaluation. Employees who have been
disciplined (i.e., received a written reprimand, suspension, or performance-related demotion) within the
past 12 months are not eligible to Telework.

In assessing an employee’s eligibility for Telework, first, the (employer) will consider whether the
employee meets the definition of Telework-Eligible Employee. Next, the (employer) will consider the
employee’s knowledge, skills, and abilities (including any performance weaknesses) to evaluate whether
they can effectively perform their job duties while Teleworking. Factors that will be considered are:

A. Accessto a employer-issued computer;

Ability to work independently;

Comfort level with required technology;

Past performance levels;

Ability to communicate successfully with other parties;

Reliable internet connectivity and telephone service at Telework location;
Dependability and trustworthiness; and

Level of self-motivation and self-direction.

IomMmMmoOUO®

Employee Considerations
A. Performance and disciplinary history

B. Employee workload

C. Degree of self-motivation and need for supervision



D. Dependability and trustworthiness
E. Organization and time management skills

F. Home workstation: It is essential that employees find a home office space that is free of
distractions and provides the needed privacy.

G. Level of job skills

H. Extenuating circumstances

Equipment and security needs

The (employer) may, but is not required to, provide equipment for Telework. The (employer) will not
cover the cost of repair or maintenance of the Teleworker’s personal equipment. The Teleworker is
required to use an (employer) issued computer for all work performed off site.

The supervisor and Teleworker must agree upon the equipment to be used in Telework prior to approval.
Subject to the supervisor’s approval, state-owned equipment may be used for Teleworking if:

A. The Teleworker’s present equipment is not needed at the office and can easily be moved;
B. The Teleworker’s present equipment is portable and can easily be moved; or

C. The (employer) has additional equipment, suitable for Telework, and available for use by a
Teleworker.

The (employer) and the Teleworker will follow security controls as outlined in (Cyber Security Policy No.
). The Teleworker must apply all approved safeguards to protect employer owned equipment and
supplies. All official state records, files, and documents must be protected from unauthorized
disclosure or damage and returned safely to the office once the Telework Agreement is no longer in
effect.

Teleworkers must maintain a home internet service with sufficient upload and download speeds
capable of supporting all required job duties and responsibilities. Teleworkers will be responsible for
using personal leave in the event of a service interruption, power outage, or if there is no remote work
available. The (employer) will not provide or reimburse the cost of any equipment, installation fees, or
monthly service charges for Teleworkers to have the required internet connectivity.

The (employer) is not responsible for operating costs or any other costs associated with setting up or
maintaining the telework location such as furnishings, maintenance, repairs, utilities, etc. The teleworker
may be reimbursed for authorized expenses incurred while conducting official business for the
(employer).

The teleworker and the supervisor shall discuss and impose mandatory safeguards that shall be taken by
the teleworker to ensure protection of (employer) documents and records from unauthorized disclosure
or damage. All records, papers and correspondence must be safeguarded and immediately returned to
the work unit by the teleworker upon request, upon termination of the Telework Agreement, if the
employee changes positions, or separates from the (employer).

The teleworker’s manager(s) and the IT Services Manager must approve the use of any teleworking
equipment. The use of a teleworker’s personal equipment for teleworking requires a written request
from the teleworker and approval from the upper management, which could include the Chief Executive



Offices or their designee. Equipment provided by the teleworker shall be at no cost to the (employer)
and will be maintained by the teleworker. Use of (employer) owned computer equipment and
peripherals is subject to Cost Center Manager approval and the availability of equipment and funding.

Teleworkers must maintain a home internet service with sufficient upload and download speeds capable
of supporting all required work activities. Employees will be expected to use personal leave time in the
event of service interruption, power outage, or if there is no work available. Employees have the option
of reporting to their designated office location to mitigate use of personal leave. Communication should
be made to ensure the outage is not impacting the designated office location prior to reporting. If the
outage is on the part of the (employer), reporting to the designated office location will be determined
based upon the needs of the (employer). The (employer) will not provide or reimburse the cost for any
equipment, installation fees or monthly service charges for teleworkers to have the required Internet
connectivity. (Employer) owned computer equipment and peripherals must be protected against damage
and unauthorized use.

When IT support is needed and cannot be accomplished remotely, teleworkers must bring their
(employer) owned equipment to their designated office for support. Teleworkers may not use
(employer) owned equipment, or software for personal activities. Approved (employer) owned
equipment must be listed on the Telework Agreement and returned to the (employer) within two (2)
working days if the Telework Agreement is terminated, the employee changes positions, or separates
from the (employer).

The teleworker and their immediate supervisor or manager shall discuss and impose mandatory
safeguards that shall be taken by the teleworker to ensure protection of (employer) documents and
records from unauthorized disclosure or damage. All records, papers and correspondence must be
safeguarded and immediately returned to the work unit by the teleworker upon request, upon
termination of the Telework Agreement, if the employee changes positions, or separates from the
(employer).

Guidance to manage staff remotely and processes for remote managers
Immediate supervisors or managers are to meet daily with the teleworker on each telework
workday. This is required to be a Teams call or a phone call, and the supervisor is expected to discuss
specific work assignments, due dates, productivity expectations, and to review completed work, etc.
[An email is not acceptable.] Employees who are in telework status are expected to take and return
calls as required. Immediate supervisors or managers may assign new work tasks or review progress
status by email, telephone, or other means as needed. Immediate supervisors or managers are
expected to monitor work performance and productivity just as they would in a traditional work
environment.

The Telework Plan section of the Telework Agreement must be completed to document the
employee’s general work duties and to develop monitoring and supervision plans.

Employee participation in the Telework Program is voluntary and may be terminated in writing at any
time by the employee.



Employee participation in the Employee Telework Program is discretionary based on the approval of the
(employer) and the employee’s immediate supervisor or manager and is in no way to be considered an
entitlement. Participation may be terminated by the employee or (employer) via email at any time.

The upper management is responsible for ensuring that adequate in-office staffing levels are in place at
all times to maintain productivity.

These arrangements may be approved by the supervisor or manager to accommodate extenuating
circumstances by allowing an employee to maintain productivity away from their (employer)-issued
workspace. Such off-site work should not be performed on a routine basis and should not exceed more
than a few hours.

Participation will not adversely affect the employee's eligibility for advancement or any other
employment rights or benefits.

Teleworkers are subject to the same rules regarding conduct, attendance, leave, performance standards,
and discipline as other employees. Teleworkers must obtain supervisory approval before taking leave
and submit accurate timesheets.

Teleworkers agree to allow theirimmediate supervisor, manager, or other (employer) designated staff to
inspect the telework site during the teleworker’s established telework hours after receiving a 24-hour
written or verbal notice. Teleworkers may waive the required notification time if they choose. In the
event of a job-related accident while teleworking, the teleworker agrees to allow immediate and follow-
up inspection(s) at the telework site as needed.

A teleworker may be called into their official work location by the employee’s immediate supervisor or
manager at any time, in order to meet work unit or (employer) needs. When called in after the workday
has begun, traveling to the official work location during telework hours is considered work time and the
teleworker is not considered to be “in travel status” during this time.

A teleworker whose schedule includes time in the office location and time at the telework location
within the same workday shall consider travel time to and from the two locations as personal time and
shall not record the time as work time.

Teleworkers are expected to meet or exceed performance and productivity standards while participating
in the Employee Telework Program. Failure to do so shall result in revocation of the teleworker’s
participation in the Employee Telework Program.



Florida Dept. of Revenue - Telework

/S
'DEPARTMENT OF %

The Department of Revenue's Telework Program and Policies web page provides an

example of how one State of Florida Agency has established a framework for teleworkers
as well as for the managers.

This information provided is an example of how the State Employee Telework Program is
implemented pursuant to §110.171, 2023 Florida Statutes (including Special Session C).

Click here to access: Department of Revenue Telework Program

https://floridarevenue.com/Pages/telework.aspx

1/3


https://floridarevenue.com/
https://floridarevenue.com/
https://floridarevenue.com/Pages/telework.aspx

2/9/24 Florida Dept. of Revenue - Telework

Telework at the Florida Department of Revenue

Telework Policy

The Department's Telework Policy provides procedures and step-by-step guidance to
supervisors, teleworkers, and employees who are interested in telework. You can view the Department's
Telework Policy and supporting documents below.

m Telework Policy — The policy framework for telework at the Department of Revenue.
= Telework Procedures — Detailed telework procedures for Department employees and supervisors.

= Telework Agreement — An agreement between the Department and teleworkers that establishes the terms
and conditions of a telework arrangement.

m Alternative Worksite Safety Checklist — Checklist for assessing whether an alternative worksite is free of fire
and safety hazards.

= Guidelines for Developing Alternative Work Strategies — Guidelines for Department managers to make an
efficient work site plan by utilizing telework and flexible work schedules.

Eligibility for telework

The Department of Revenue identifies positions that are suitable for telework based on the job duties of each

position. In addition to the position requirements, individual employees must have the ability to work
independently and successfully communicate with customers, coworkers and their supervisor. You can view
the guidelines the Department uses to determine eligibility below.

®  Guidelines for Evaluating Position Eligibility — a tool managers use to determine whether the job duties of
a position are suitable for telework.

» Employee Individual Self-Assessment — a tool to help employees decide if they have suitable characteristics
for telework.

Some factors affecting employee eligibility for telework

The Department will consider several factors when making final decisions regarding telework. While
the agency may consider a position suitable and an employee eligible, opportunities for telework are
limited. Below are some of the factors the Department considers when making final telework decisions.

= The ability to perform duties outside of the usual place of work.
= The benefit to the agency.
= The employee’s performance record, knowledge, skills, abilities, and work habits.

= The availability of resources to provide on-going secure network access, communications, or other
required equipment.

= The work unit's ability to provide essential services to customers.

= The impact on work flow and other work unit employees.

https://floridarevenue.com/Pages/telework.aspx

2/3


https://floridarevenue.com/Documents/telework/Virtual%20Office%20Policy%20for%20Internet.pdf
https://floridarevenue.com/Documents/telework/Virtual%20Office%20Policy%20Procedures%20for%20Participation%20for%20Internet.pdf
https://floridarevenue.com/Documents/telework/Virtual%20Office%20Agreement%20for%20Internet.pdf
https://floridarevenue.com/Documents/telework/Alternative%20Work%20Site%20Safety%20Checklist%20for%20Internet.pdf
https://floridarevenue.com/Documents/telework/Virtual%20Office%20Policy%20Procedures%20for%20Administration%20for%20Internet.pdf
https://floridarevenue.com/Documents/telework/Guidelines%20for%20Evaluating%20Position%20Eligibility%20for%20Internet.pdf
https://floridarevenue.com/Documents/telework/Employee%20Individual%20Self%20Assessment%20for%20Internet.pdf

2/9/24 Florida Dept. of Revenue - Telework

Positions currently suitable for telework

The Department generally considers a position suitable for telework, unless the physical absence of the
position would have an adverse impact on the work unit's productivity, reduce the service provided to
customers, or unnecessarily raise the cost to taxpayers. The Department will continue to review this list

and make updates as necessary. To view the positions the Department considers suitable for telework,
review the Positions Eligible for Telework list.

MY
BUSINESS

Florida Department of Revenue
5050 West Tennessee Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399

https://floridarevenue.com/Pages/telework.aspx 3/3


https://floridarevenue.com/Documents/telework/telework_position_eligible.pdf
http://openmyfloridabusiness.gov/
http://openmyfloridabusiness.gov/

reThink Your

Office

A Guide on Telecommute
Programs for Employers

reThink Your Commute, A Program of the
Florida Department of Transportation




Table of Contents

Chapter 1: Telecommuting L01........ccceuuiiiiieiiiriieeierrreseerreneseeerennsssseensssssennsssssenssssssenssssssenssssssnnsssssenssssssenssssssensssssennes 3
OVEIVIBW .ttt e ettt ettt et et e e s bb ettt e e e e e s aaba b et e e e e e e s aab b e e e eeee e e s aasb e e e e eeeeeesnns b e e e e eeeese s ansbeeeeaeeesasannsbeeaeeeeesannnsrneaaeas 3
LY g R I Ao 1=Tole Yo Y ' 1V [ Y-SR 3

L LT T L OO OO OO PRSP PPPRROPPPRPPRIOt 3
WHO'S TRIECOMMUEING? ...ttt e e ettt e e e ettt e e e ateeeeeeataeeeeaasaeee e atseee s ssaaaessssssesanssseasanssseesasssasesanssesesanssneanan 4
What are my local resources in Central FIOrda? ......c.uiii ittt e err e e e e e e saaa e e e ssaaa e e e entaeeesnnnaeeeeas 5

(o =T =T g Al 1T T {1 £ 6

SNAPShOt Of SAVINGS & INCENTIVES ....evveiiieiiiee ettt e et e e e et e e e e et e e e e sbeeeeeaabaeeeeenbteeesanbaeeesansaseeeanseeeeesnseneesans 6
(oY o a1l o a'o] Lo V7T USSR 6
oo g o a TN =0T o] 1o 1YY U 6
(oY d o T=l @e T2V 2 0 TV o1 Y USPPRR 6

Tell me more about these benefits ... Is it only the employee who benefits?..........ccoviiiiiiii i, 6

[ (o3 VYo Fo T =T Y o] LoR V=Y Gl o= oVl 1 o RSP PRTR 7

HOW dO €MPIOYEES DENETIE? ...oeiiiieie e e e e s et e e e e st b e e e esabteeeesaseeeeesssteeeeassaeeeesnnsaeesnnsens 7

How does the COMMUNITY DENEFIL? ...c....eiiieee et e e e e e e ettt e e e et e e e e e abeeeeesasteeeeesbeeeeeansreeeeansens 8

Who's doing it? How have they DENEFITEEA? .........oo it e e et e e e e eeat e e e e eeatae e e seateeeesenraeeeeans 9

Chapter 3: CONSIAEIrAtIONS ......c.cceuiiiiieiiiiiiceerteieerteaeeerernseererasessenssseseensssssesnsssssesasssssennsssssensssssesnssnssesnsssssennsassnenn 11
MaNAZINE TEIECOMMUEETS .....eiiiiiiiiee et e ettt ecte e e e ecte e e e ette e e e eetteeeeebteeeeebtaeeeenseeaesanstsaesanseaeeeansseseeastsseeansseeesanseeeeennsens 11
BUAEEting fOr the TEIECOMMULET ...oiiiieiiie et e e e st e e e et e e e s e bte e e s e abeeeeesabeeeeesabteeeesaseeeeesnseeeesnasens 13
=] o 11 11 Y 2P 13

WOIKErs' COMPENSATION .. .uiiieiiciiee et ettt e e ettt e e e e ettt e e e eeataeeeeeataeeesaateeeesssaseesastasaeaassaseesassasaeeassaeeeaassaseesansanaesnns 13
o[0T o 0 aT=] o} OO PP PPP O PPTOPPPP 13
(011 o T=T g @] o] dTo] -3 SP SR 14

Y=L o{ UL VA £ U= PSSP PPPPPPPPPP 14

LI G PP T PO PRSP PP O PP P PPPPPOPPPPPPRPPPRPRPRPRt 15
B0 1] o] L= I D 1 4 o S 15
TAX INCENTIVES. ...ttt ettt e et e e e bbbttt e e e e e e a s b e e te e e e e e e e ann b e et e e e e e e e nbbbeeteeeeeaaannssaeeeeeeeeaannreneeeeeesanann 16

L T (SI [ o I o (e TUT o @] o Yo L= o ol ISP PSPPI 16

Chapter 4: IMplementation ........cccciiiiiiiiiiiiiie e resasestesssssstessssstesssssssesssssssesssssssensssssssnsssssensssssses 18
Step One — Identify a Telecommuting Coordinator and the Telecommute COMMIttee ........cccevvevciiieeiiciiee e, 18
Step TWO — Perform a Cost/BeNEfitS ANGIYSIS.....c.iicuieiieeeeceee ettt eetee et e e eteeeette e et e e eaaeeeteeeeteeeenbeeeesseesntesenseeesareean 18

POLENTIAl DIirECt BENETILS c..uviiiiiiiiee ettt ettt st e s be e s bt e e sabe e sbaeesabeesabaesabeesabeesabaeenataesasaeesanes 18
Potential INAIr€Ct BENEFILS ...couiiiiie ittt sttt e e st e e sttt e sabeesabaessabeesabeesbbeesabaesnsneesanes 18
(oY (=T o A |l DT =T or A 6o 1 PP 18

Step Three — Draft PoliCies @nNd PrOCEAUIES.........ciiiiiiie ittt ettt e ettt e e st e e e st e e e e etbaeessasaeesassseeessnsseeeesnsaeeans 19

Step Four — Identify Potential Telecommute Positions and EMPlOYEES........cccuviiiiiiiiiiciiie et 20

Step Five — Outline the Daily Operations Plan ...........uiiiiiiii ettt e e e e e et e e e e e e e e s nnseee e e e e e eesnnsrnneeens 21

Step Six — Create a Checklist of SUPPlies & EQUIPMENT .....eiiiiiiiiiiiiee et e e s e e e sab e e s s eaeeeesnraeeean 22

Step Seven —Train & Prepare YOUr Management TEAM c.iiiivccuriiiieeiie ittt e e e s ssiereeee e s s s ssaairaeeeeesssssaabsnaeeeesssssnssenneeeas 22

Step Eight — Select and Transition Employees into Telecommuting Arrangement ........ccoovecciiieeeee e, 23

Step NINE — LAUNCH YOUF PrOZIam! ... .o iiiei ettt ettt e ettt e sttt e e et e e e s satte e e satbeeesansbeeesansseeeeansseeesansseeesanssneennn 23

Page 1



A=Y R EY R AV [V F I o T ad o = [ o RSP 23

Appendices
Y oY1= o To [ PRSP 24
Telecommuting Resources in Central FIOrida .......ueeee oo e e e e s e e e e e e e s e enntreeeeeaeeeas 24
Yo 01T 0o | = TS UUPRRE 25
Sample EMployee Self-ASS@SSMENT FOMM .....iiiiiiiiii ettt ettt e e s etre e e setr e e e esabaeeessataeeesansaeeesansaneesansanessnnes 25
AN o 01T o | SRR 26
Sample Home Office/Environment Self-ASSESSMENT FOIMM ......cccuiiiciiieeiee ettt et eetee e et e eeteeeeaeeeeteeeeabesereeen 26
Yo7 o 1=Y o Yo | USSP 27
Sample TelecomMmuULe APPICAtION ....uuiiiiie e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e b aeeeeeeeeeeesnnsrseeneeaeeaan 27
Yo7 1= o Yo |1t 0 ST SPR 29
Sample TeleCOMMULEE AGIEEMENT ......vviii ittt e e e et e e e et e e e e sbteeeeebteeeeabteeessseaeessseaeesanseeeesanseneessnes 29

Page 2



Chapter 1: Telecommuting 101

Overview
When deciding if a Telecommute Program is right for your business, you may be asking whether the company
will fundamentally benefit from telecommuting.

This manual is designed to help determine if the company has positions or whole departments that are
potential candidates for telecommuting. This manual also includes the benefits of telecommuting, the
potential concerns to address in advance of launching a Telecommuting Program, and a list of ten steps to
implement a program at your company.

Starting a Telecommute Program at your place of work may seem overwhelming at first. There are just so
many things to consider! But you’re in luck. This manual will take
you step by step through the process and if you have any questions | ,, i :
or need assistance along the way, the reThink team is there to Work is somethmg gou dO,

guide you. not somewhere you go.”

If you decide to implement a Telecommute Program, it could be one of the best decisions you make for your
company.

What is telecommuting?

Telecommuting is a work option that allows employees to perform work duties from a location other than
their principal worksite. This includes working from home, on the road, or at other satellite locations
conducive to working.

Also known as teleworking, telecommuting has gained attention over the last 40 years because of the
potential benefits to the employee and the employer. The trend actually started in the 1960s with Jack Niles, a
consultant rocket scientist to the U.S. Air Force. Niles is known as “The Father of Telecommuting” and later
focused his research efforts specifically on telecommuting, launching a pilot telecommute program within the
private sector.!

Since the launch of the first telecenter in Marne-la-Valle, France in 1980, some of the largest companies in the
world have implemented Telecommute Programs, reaping the benefits for both their employees and their
bottom-line.' Telecommuting is expected to become the most common mode of work for American workers.
Currently, an average of 5% of Central Floridians work from home.?

Tele-What?

If you are not familiar with Telecommute Programs, you may see a few words throughout this manual that you
may not recognize. Below is a list of “Telecommuting Vocabulary” that will assist you in the formation of your
program.

e Coworking
Working independently but alongside others that are typically in the same field; coworkers could meet up
through computer networks or at locations other than your primary worksite

1 Dr. Wendell Joice, “History of Telework (1972-1998),” Telework America Online Curriculum, Workshop 1: Getting Educated, 1998:
1-3. http://www.teleworknetwork.com/pdfs/63.pdf
2 US Census Bureau, American Community Survey, http://factfinder2.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/index.xhtml

Page 3


http://www.teleworknetwork.com/pdfs/63.pdf

e Jelly Coworking
Casual coworking that occurs on a short-term basis; jelly coworking often takes place at coffee shops,
homes, or at an office

o Jelly Site
A location where casual coworking can take place, such as a coffee shop or library; jelly sites are best
categorized as temporary locations for telecommuters

e Satellite Offices
Workspaces that are outside of the home and away from the conventional workplace, yet easily accessible
to the employee?

e Telecommuter
An employee of a company that permits them to perform work duties from a location other than the
principal worksite; also known as teleworkers, mobile worker, web commuter, e-worker, agile worker,
virtual worker, or nomad worker?*

e Telecommuting Coordinator
Designated employee (management level) who oversees the development and execution of a
Telecommute Program

e Telework Center
Offers workstations and provides office facilities and services to individuals working outside of their
primary worksite; fees are typically associated with telework centers®

e Virtual Office
Individuals located at different locations, working together, using the same computer network*

Who’s Telecommuting?
From small businesses to corporate giants, many companies now allow their employees to work from home.

According to CNN Money’s report of the “100 Best Companies to Work For,” 82 of the top 100 best companies
offered telecommuting as a perk. These companies allow their employees to work at home at least 20% of the
time. Top companies like Cisco and Intel have at least 80% of their workforce working from home on a regular
basis and is a heavy factor contributing to overall worker satisfaction.®

Telecommuting has also been successfully implemented in city governments, such as San Antonio, Texas; St.
Paul, Minnesota; Foster City, California; and many others. State and federal agencies are also employing
telecommuting as an effective strategy in their own organizational frameworks.

3 N.B. Kurland and D.E. Bailey, “Telework: The advantages and challenges of working here, there, anywhere, and anytime,”
Organizational Dynamics, Autumn (1999): 54.
http://wfnetwork.bc.edu/glossary_entry.php?term=Satellite%200ffices,%20Definition(s)%200f
4 http://workingfromanywhere.org/
5 GSA U.S. General Services Administration, “Alternative Workplace Solutions.” (2012). http://www.gov/portal/content/102702#3
5 http://workingfromanywhere.org/

Page 4


http://wfnetwork.bc.edu/glossary_entry.php?term=Satellite%20Offices,%20Definition(s)%20of

What are my local resources in Central Florida?
The great news is that you do not have to go it alone! As a Central Florida employer, you have many resources
available to you to help you establish and implement your Telecommute Program.

Your first call should be to reThink, FDOT’s District 5 Regional Commuter Assistance Program at 1-866-610-
RIDE (7433). We provide free consulting services to walk you through this manual and the process to set up a
Telecommute Program for your company.

Additional resources, such as virtual office locations and sample agreements, are included in appendices to
this manual.

Page 5



Chapter 2 — Benefits

Snapshot of Savings & Incentives

For the Employer’

e Elevated profits due to increased productivity

e Ability to continue operations in the face of a natural disaster, pandemic, or influenza outbreak
e Increased employee retention which reduces training and recruitment costs

e Reduced absenteeism

e Reduced or eliminated real estate costs

e Decreased electricity and water bills

e Reduced relocation costs by allowing new hires to maintain household in other areas

For the Employee

e Less wear and tear on personal vehicle, saving people money on vehicle maintenance costs
e Reduced gas consumption due to fewer trips to the worksite

e Save an average of $4,300 a year in transportation costs®

e Increase in personal time

e Smaller carbon footprint

e Increase in disposable income

e Reduced costs for dry-cleaning

e Less exposure to office sicknesses, leading to fewer visits to the doctor
e Reduced stress levels, leading to reduced health costs

e Overall improved quality of life with a focus on work-life balance

For the Community3

e Reduction in carbon emissions due to fewer vehicle miles traveled (VMT)

e Improved air quality thanks to reduced VMT

e Conservation of natural resources due to fewer car trips to work

e Reduction in traffic congestion

e Decreased wear and tear of roads and highways

e Increased stability in local economy due to companies being able to continue operations in the face of a
natural disaster, pandemic, or influenza outbreak

e Lower prices for goods and services

e Improved overall health of a community

Tell me more about these benefits ... Is it only the employee who benefits?
Everyone benefits! Not only do the employer and their employees benefit, so does the community.

By allowing employees to work from home, or from locations closer to their home, people will drive fewer
miles each day. Fewer cars on the road means fewer emissions released into the air we breathe. Fewer trips to
work mean fewer trips to the gas station. Less money spent on car repairs means more money available for
the things you and your family really need.

7 GSA U.S., General Services Administration & Telework Exchange, Eliminating Gridlock, “The Benefits of Telework,” 9-11.

http://archive.teleworkexchange.com/pdfs/The-Benefits-of-Telework.pdf

8 Calculated based on an average 15-mile one-way commuting distance and AAA’s 2011 “Your Driving Costs” rate of $0.585/mile
Page 6



http://archive.teleworkexchange.com/pdfs/The-Benefits-of-Telework.pdf

How do employers benefit?

Telecommuters increase their productivity by as much as 10-20%
Employees who are allowed to work from home and have flexible work schedules can be more productive
because of fewer distractions and less interruptions.3

Ensure continuity of operations

In the event of a natural disaster, pandemic, or influenza outbreak that prevents your workforce from
traveling to the worksite, you will be prepared. Having the capability to set up your workforce at home will
allow your company to get back to “business as usual” faster than other companies.? Your workforce will
also be less likely to catch or spread disease because they won’t be exposed to potential contagions at the
worksite.

Improve employee recruitment & retention

Offering the option of telecommuting increases the pool of potential employees from which your company
could hire. From persons with disabilities to people across state lines, offering potential employees the
option to work from home could transform your workforce. 3

Allowing existing employees the option to work from home can also be a tool to retain great employees. If
faced with the need to relocate, an employee that does not have to be in the office every day may be able
to keep their position instead of resigning.

Reduce lateness and absenteeism

According to the U.S. Census Bureau in 2009, the average commute to work was 25 minutes, adding up to
50 minutes a day in time spent traveling.’ By allowing employees to work from home, the time that was
normally spent commuting to work can instead be used for essential activities like dropping kids off at
school, going to the doctor for preventative care, preparing meals, or exercising. This means fewer sick
days and fewer instances of tardiness.

Does your workforce tend to pass around the office flu? Telecommuting reduces exposure to contagious
illness, which in turn reduces absenteeism.3

Reduce office overhead

Developing a robust Telecommute Program for your company can lead to incredible cost savings, starting
with reducing or eliminating the costs associated with maintaining office space. This reduction in real
estate will also lead to less water and electricity consumption, leading to even more savings throughout
the year.

Office overhead will also be reduced if telecommuting allows your company to retain quality employees.
By not having to replace key workers, your office will not have to cover the overhead expense of training
new employees. 1°

How do employees benefit?

Immediate cost savings (give yourself a raise!)

% Brian McKenzie and Melanie Rapino, “Commuting in the United States: 2009,” U.S. Census Bureau, American Survey Reports, no.
15, (2011). http://www.census.gov/prod/2011pubs/acs-15.pdf

10 Janet Caldow, “Working Outside the Box: A Study of the Growing Momentum in Telework,” Institute for Electronic Government,
IBM Corporation, 2009: 12. http://www.ol.ibm.com/industries/government/ieg/pdf/working outside the box.pdf

Page 7


http://www.census.gov/prod/2011pubs/acs-15.pdf
http://www.ol.ibm.com/industries/government/ieg/pdf/working_outside_the_box.pdf

Working from home can save your employees money by reducing the number of trips they make to the
worksite. Driving less means less wear and tear on a personal vehicle, which means less maintenance costs
and fewer trips to the gas station. Considering that commuters spend an average of $4,300 a year just to
get to work, not having to put that money towards transportation could translate into a nice raise —
without negotiating with your boss!®

Improved morale and job satisfaction

Flexible work schedules lead to employees that are less stressed, more productive, and happier with their
job.3

Expanded work opportunities
Through telecommuting, individuals are no longer limited to job opportunities within a certain geographic
area.

Reduced commute time

With an average commute time of 50 minutes every day, working from home frees up the time that is
usually spent in a vehicle. Employees can use that time for activities like exercise, preparing meals, or
other important needs.

Improved quality of life: achieving a work-life balance

Telecommuters often cite a better work-life balance due to the ability to structure their workdays for
ultimate efficiency. Not to mention, not having to fight rush hour traffic can reduce the amount of stress
your employees experience each day as well. All of this combined improves the quality of life for
participating employees.

How does the community benefit?

Telecommuting contributes to a greener environment

Transportation is the second largest source of greenhouse gas emissions.!! Reducing the number of cars
on the road not only affects traffic congestion, but also the quality of the air we breathe. Telecommuting
also helps conserve natural resources; not driving to work every day means workers use fewer gallons of
gas.

Improves quality of life

Telecommuters contribute to the overall improvement of the quality of life for everyone in their
community. Reducing the number of cars on the road reduces emissions, which means the air we breathe
is safer. This can reduce the amount and severity of illnesses related to air quality. Plus, fewer traffic snarls
and cleaner air lead to happier people. By avoiding the rush hour commute, individuals avoid the stress
associated with fighting traffic. Happier, healthier people add up to an improved quality of life.

Lower prices for goods and services

In 2010, traffic congestion cost the United States $101 billion dollars for the 4.8 billion hours people were
stuck in traffic, wasting 1.9 billion gallons of fuel.!? Introducing Telecommute Programs can decrease this
waste by reducing the number of cars on the road, which can translate to less delay for business deliveries

11 US Environmental Protection Agency.”U.S. Greenhouse Gas Inventory,” http://www.epa.gov/climatechange/emissions/
usgginventory.html
12 David Schrank, Tim Lomax and Bill Eisele, “2011 Urban Mobility Report,” Texas Transportation Institute, September 2011: 5.

Page 8



and services. Decreasing the amount of time spent in traffic can decrease the cost of goods and services
once they hit the market.

e Economic stability

If a natural disaster, terrorist attack, pandemic influenza, or other major emergency occurred, there could
be significant down-time before people return to work, which could result in lost wages. By equipping your
company and your employees to work from home in advance of a major emergency, members of your
community would not find themselves in potential economic distress.> Having businesses in your
community shut down operations due to a major emergency for a short or extended period can affect your
local economy. Businesses in a community that can be up and running due to Telecommute Programs
during a disaster will greatly contribute to the economic stability of a town. Allowing people to earn wages
and purchase goods and services will keep a community afloat during tough times.

Who’s doing it? How have they benefitted?

e IBM

Forty percent of its 386,000 employees do not have an “official” office

An additional tens of thousands of workers telecommute at least some of the time

Since 1995, office space was reduced by 78 million square feet

58 million square feet were sold at a profit of $1.9 billion

In 2005, total savings from energy management was $22.9 million 4

In 2007, in the U.S. alone, IBM’s telework program saved more than five million gallons of gas and
reduced CO; emissions by 450,000 tons

O O O O O O

e Dow Chemical

Reduced its field support operations from twenty-one offices in 1990 to eight in 1995
Administrative costs have dropped by fifty percent annually

Fifteen percent attributed to commercial real estate costs

Productivity increased by thirty-two percent

Ten percent through decreased absenteeism

Sixteen percent by working at home

Six and one-half percent by avoiding commute time 13

O O O 0O O O O

e Sun Microsystems
o For over a decade has utilized a Telecommute Program called “Open Work”
o In 2008, almost 19,000 employees were telecommuting
o Fifty-six percent of Sun’s population work from home or in a flexible office
o Between 2002 and 2008, Sun has saved $387 million in reduced office space and utility costs

o AT&T
o In August 2010, more than 11,000 employees telecommute

13 Jeff Zbar, “Slimming down with telework — Dow Chemical sheds a slew of offices by turning its sales into a virtual team,” Network
World, 2002. http://www.networkworld.com/net.worker/columnists/2002/1209zbar.html

14 Ann Bednarz, “Sun’s ‘Open Work’ program sheds light on telecommute savings,” Computer World, 2008.
http://www.computerworld.com/s/article/9105218/Sun s open work program sheds light on telecommute savings

Page 9


http://www.networkworld.com/net.worker/columnists/2002/1209zbar.html
http://www.computerworld.com/s/article/9105218/Sun_s_open_work_program_sheds_light_on_telecommute_savings

o Ninety-two percent reported in a survey that telecommuting helps them achieve a healthy work/life

balance
o Sixty-three percent report they are able to work a flexible schedule on their telecommute days
o The telecommuters eliminated 175 million commute miles per year
o Annual fuel savings of approximately eight million gallons with a net annual reduction of 76,273 metric

tons of COz equivalents *°

15 “Telecommuting,” People and Community, AT&T. http://www.att.com/gen/corporate-citizenship?pid=17892
Page 10



Chapter 3: Considerations
While there are some issues to address in advance of launching your Telecommute Program, careful planning
and coordination within your company can address these issues before they ever emerge.

Addressing topics like managing your teleworkers, setting up internet security protocols, outlining potential
expenses to establish the program, and addressing potential liability issues is an important first step in setting
up your program.!® The following section will outline these and other major areas of concern.

Managing Telecommuters
Are your employees really working when they are out of your sight? Or are they playing Farmville all day?

Shifting to an off-site workforce can cause heartburn in some managers. It is typical for managers to fear the
loss of control, worrying that the result can be a decrease in productivity, potential security issues, or a loss of
teamwork within the company. How these issues are dealt with largely comes down to policy and training.

Taking the time to address the concerns of your management team and offering them assistance in making
the shift will be an essential first step in launching your Telecommute Program. The section below outlines
potential pitfalls of managing a teleworkforce and how to avert them.

e Clearly Communicate Expectations
Good communication between managers and their employees regarding expectations is the key to making
a telecommuting arrangement successful. But the same is true for your current work arrangement. Your
management team has probably already outlined expectations for their team, from meeting deadlines to
appropriate workplace behavior.

Shifting to a mobile workforce will require stricter adherence to these guidelines. To make sure
expectations have been clearly communicated to your workforce, it is suggested that these expectations
be documented in a written policy. Outlining expectations regarding when work should begin every day,
expectations for timeliness in responding to emails and returning phone calls, differentiating between
work-time and break-time, and other areas can help address concerns before they even arise. You may
want to require all teleworkers to “sign off” on this outline of expectations before being allowed to work
from home. Make sure to circulate the list of expectations to the employees that are not going to be
working from home, so it is clear their co-workers working from home are not just getting a free pass.

e Structure Work Assignments As Specific Tasks with Specific Deadlines
Allowing people to work from home is an opportunity for managers to sharpen essential management
skills.?” Managers will need to focus on measuring work performance based on results, as opposed to just
witnessing their employees sitting at their desks.

Your managers can start the transition to this type of management style by structuring work assignments
as specific tasks with specific deadlines. Breaking up work assignments in this way may mean more work

16 United States Governmental Accounting Agency, Statement of Robert E. Robertson, Director, Education, Workforce, and Income
Security Issues, “Telecommuting: Overview of Challenges Facing Federal Agencies,” GAO-01-1116T (Washington, D.C., 2001), 1.

177D Net. “Tips for Effectively Managing Teleworkers,” http://www.zdnet.com.au/tips-for-effectively-managing-teleworkers-
120281062.htm

Page 11



for your managers; however, doing so will ensure positive results from your employees and can contribute
to an increase in productivity thanks to clearly outlined expectations.

As your managers and their team adjust to the new work arrangement, they may choose to not rely on the
specific task-by-task assignment structure. As long as the work is getting done to your satisfaction, it may
be best to let them loosen tight requirements and make adjustments that work for their department.

Building the “Virtual” Team
Encouraging team work in the office can sometimes be a challenge; trying to achieve the same thing
without your employees being physically in the same room may seem impossible!

But it does not have to be that way. Make it clear that you expect your employees to rely upon each other
for their areas of expertise even when they are not sharing office space. Outline acceptable ways for your
team to collaborate, from instant messaging to conference calls. Employees can access and work on the
same document if off-site workers are connected to your company’s server through a virtual private
network (VPN). This ability will help co-workers continue to work together on projects.

Use Face-Time Efficiently

Occasionally, your telecommuters may need to report to the office to attend meetings. When these
occasions arise, make good use of the time. It can be easy to get caught up in “catching up” and meetings
can quickly dissolve into social hours. While encouraging rapport can boost morale, do not allow a visit
from a telecommuter to disrupt the office environment. This can mainly be addressed by a proactive
manager that structures meetings effectively.

Become Familiar with Basic IT Issues

Managers of telecommuters should be able to provide basic IT assistance to their workforce. Being able to
address issues, such as adding network printers or offering guidance on editing a document, without
having to contact IT every time can be a big time saver. But do not try to rewire the mainframe on your
own! Always rely upon the professionals when it comes to security issues, downloading and installing new
programs, and major computer updates.

Provide Feedback and Opportunities to Grow

Your employees want to be successful — even if it does not seem like it all of the time. If you are unhappy
with their work performance or if you are uncomfortable with the amount of time it takes them to
complete tasks from home, make sure you address these concerns with the employee early on in the
telecommuting agreement. A Telecommute Program can quickly be derailed by one bad experience; make
sure the program is successful by not letting any nagging concerns grow into major problems.

Some employees do not want to work from home due to concerns their absence will mean fewer
opportunities to advance within the company. By structuring work assignments, setting clear goals, and
outlining a plan for an employee’s advancement, high-quality employees will be attracted to telecommute
positions. Having a company-wide Telecommuting policy will also ensure that managers from other
departments understand contributions from a telecommuter are just as vital to the company’s bottom line
as those from a worker based out of the office.

Page 12



Budgeting for the Telecommuter

Many businesses are moving away from stationary equipment, such as the desktop computer and desk
phones, and moving towards laptops and mobile phones for their employees. As such, you may already be
providing your employees the equipment needed to telecommute.

Accommodating a mobile workforce may require a special budget, especially if your workers are not already
equipped with laptops and cell phones. If your employees will be working from a telework center, your
company may need to cover the expense of renting satellite office space.

These expenses could be offset by the decreased costs of overhead and conventional office space
requirements. Work with your Finance or Procurement department to identify the most cost-efficient sources
for the mobile equipment needed and compare the potential savings if you can decrease the square footage
on your office space lease. If your business needs to supply new equipment for each of your teleworkers, this
fact is a significant consideration as to whether a Telecommute Program is feasible for the company. The
financial commitments may determine whether you continue developing the program.

Liability

Employers may be concerned about liability questions and how workers’ compensation applies to
telecommuters. Injuries occurring during or due to the performance of work duties are generally covered
under workers’ compensation regulation.

Workers’ Compensation

The employer must provide coverage to employees if injuries occur during and/or because of the performance
of work duties. How does this apply to your future telecommuters? Most workers’ compensation policies will
cover an employee for accidents occurring at home while the employee is working on behalf of their
employer. This allowance is consistent with court precedent applying workers’ compensation coverage to
employees incurring accidents while performing errands out of the office for employers and during on-call
time.

In addition to maintaining adequate workers’ compensation coverage, you should also require your
employees to maintain a hazard-free environment at their home office to reduce the risk of injury consistent
with the federal Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA). Does this mean the manager will have to inspect
the home office of every potential telecommuting employee to ensure they are working in a safe
environment? A 2000 OSHA policy directive says no; however, you may wish to require that your managers
make some effort to ensure their team members’ home offices are properly equipped. To further cover the
company, establish an agreement between the company and the employee to clearly define how the
employee can ensure their own safety at home while working and have them certify their home workspace is
free of hazards. Appendix C includes a Sample Home Office/Environment Self-Assessment Form as a resource.

Equipment

Slips and falls are not the only area of liability relevant to an employer. Liability for the maintenance of
company equipment, as well as the employee’s personal equipment, utilized in the performance of their work
duties could also be a concern. With proper planning, these issues can be dealt with early and not be a
concern later.

Most businesses are required to have adequate insurance covering the replacement of office equipment and
furniture in case they are damaged or stolen. Commonly, employer property insurance policies provide
limited coverage for office equipment temporarily away from the insured premises or while traveling, but

Page 13



does not extend to equipment that is permanently stationed in a home office. Due to the typical limitation in
coverage, arranging for liability coverage on equipment utilized by telecommuters may require other
measures. Some options include but are not limited to the following:

e Extending the company’s Commercial General Liability (CGL) insurance to cover off-site locations from
which your employees may be working. Extending this coverage is generally not cost-prohibitive. A
telecommuting center or “jelly” site may provide this additional liability coverage.

e The employee takes out home business insurance. The cost of this type of coverage is generally not cost-
prohibitive to the employee, averaging from $35-$150 annually.

e The employee takes out a rider on their home insurance policy with the employer paying for the added
insurance coverage.

e You have an agreement with the employee that releases the company from liability for any damages
occurring to that equipment assigned to that employee for off-site use.

Other Options

You may be happy to hear that, other than the standard Workers’ Compensation coverage, employers are not
required to maintain additional insurance on telecommuters. If an accident should occur at home that is not
covered under an indemnified work-related activity, the telecommuters can look to their homeowner’s
insurance for coverage, just as they would during non-telecommuting situations. Individuals that work from
home should investigate the coverage provided through their homeowner’s insurance provider.

In addition to some of the strategies noted above, you as the employer could base some of your Telecommute
Program policies on the State of Florida’s State Employee Telecommute Program, as outlined in Florida Statute
110.171. This statute establishes provisions for the Florida State Employee’s Telecommute Program that void
liability for the maintenance of an employee’s home equipment even in use for state business.'® A provision is
also in place to require the manager of the telecommuting employee to ensure the employee has the proper
equipment required to conduct their job duties.'® Liability for injuries occurring at telework sites is also
covered, providing that employees are covered under Workers’ Compensation regulation, as provided for in
Chapter 440, F.S., even when working off-site.?? Also, the state statute requires that the employee provide a
written agreement to the State attesting that their off-site work space meets state requirements and further
limiting the State’s liability for injuries that may occur in that work space.?!

Security Issues

Will your company’s information be secure if your employees work on vital documents from home? One of
the biggest concerns that most businesses have is how to secure and protect proprietary files. Does your
company already have employees that work from a laptop while traveling? Are these employees able to
access the company’s network from that laptop? If this is the case, you may already have security measures in
place that could also apply to your telecommuting employees. If not, security should be addressed before
initiating your Telecommute Program.

18 State of Florida, Title X Public Officers, Employees, and Records, Chapter 110 State Employment, Part |, General State Provisions,
“State Telecommute Program,” Chapter 110.171(3)(g), F.S., Tallahassee, FL, 1999.
19 State of Florida, Title X Public Officers, Employees, and Records, Chapter 110 State Employment, Part |, General State Provisions,
“State Telecommute Program,” Chapter 110.171(3)(h), F.S., Tallahassee, FL, 1999.
20 state of Florida, Title X Public Officers, Employees, and Records, Chapter 110 State Employment, Part |, General State Provisions,
“State Telecommute Program,” Chapter 110.171(3)(j), F.S., Tallahassee, FL, 1999.
21 State of Florida, Title X Public Officers, Employees, and Records, Chapter 110 State Employment, Part |, General State Provisions,
“State Telecommute Program,” Chapter 110.171(3)(l), F.S., Tallahassee, FL, 1999.

Page 14



Any device that accesses your network from a remote location is an extension of that network. An unsecured
telecommuting device, like a personal computer, could create additional risk to your network, as well as
jeopardize the security of your information systems. To minimize security risk, many employers require that
the telecommuter use only company-maintained remote devices that are centrally managed and monitored.
There are many options available to employers for providing remote access, including virtual private networks
(VPN), remote systems controls, and individual application access.

Most organizations are surprisingly capable of implementing telecommuting with little additional technology
or security protocol. If your workplace utilizes smart phones, laptops, has web-based email systems, or uses
web-based time collection, then you already have the systems needed in place.

An example of what one organization is doing is the Treasury Inspector General Tax Administration’s (TIGTA)
three-pronged approach to securing remote access. The first part of TIGTA’s strategy is to use a VPN with
encrypted data flowing between a remote device and the internal network. Then, TIGTA only allows company
equipment (i.e. laptops and desktop computers) with pre-loaded anti-virus, anti-spyware, and firewall
software to access the network. The third part of TIGTA’s strategy is training to increase security awareness in
their workforce — for both teleworkers and non-teleworkers.??

Taxes

Tax law can be a daunting topic for even the most seasoned business person. The best advice is to consult
with a tax attorney, as tax laws vary between states. If you do consult a tax specialist, make sure you come
prepared with a list of your questions and concerns, such as double taxation, unemployment benefits, and
available tax incentives.

Double Taxation

Most employees pay taxes in the state where the work is performed. In most telecommuting scenarios, the
home office and the satellite work location will be in the same state. But what if your telecommuters will be
working from a different state? In that instance, you may have a situation where the employee could be taxed
doubly, which may outweigh the benefits of telecommuting.

The question to ask your tax professional is whether the state your employees telecommute from utilizes the
“at the convenience of the employer” test. If the state your employee works from uses this standard, that
state could seek to tax the employee’s income in addition to income taxes they may already be assessed from
the state in which your business resides.

New York State taxes the full income of a telecommuting employee performing work for an employer located
within the state, even if the employee performs the work from another state. This even applies if the worker
telecommutes only part-time.?® If your company is based in a state with such requirements, your
telecommuters may be negatively affected due to the potential for double taxation.

e Unemployment Benefits
In the unforeseen chance a telecommuting employee should need to collect unemployment benefits, the
employee that has been doubly taxed may face challenges recouping funds paid through income tax.
Unemployment benefits are generally only available from the state in which the employee physically
resides and are most likely to be looking for new employment. One way for the employer to address this

22 Florida Department of Transportation, Teleworking Information, prepared by Jacobs Carter Burgess (Orlando, FL, 2008), 3.
23 WorkingMother.com, “Telecommuter Tax Fairness,” Working Mother Media, http://www.workingmother.com/taxes-
policy/2010/09/telecommuter-tax-fairness

Page 15



concern is to provide telecommuting employees a tax credit for the amount they are taxed by their state
of residence.

e Telecommuter Tax Act

A version of the “Telecommuter Tax Act” (H.R. 2600) has been proposed in multiple years (2005, 2007, and

2010) to address the issue of double taxation, but the bill has not yet been passed. In the meantime, some

guestions to ask your tax professional include the following:

o Does the state the employee is working in utilize the “convenience of the employer” rule?

o If the “convenience of the employer” rule is in effect in the employee’s state of residence or
predominant teleworking site, then how will the work scenario be scrutinized to determine if they will
be doubly-taxed?

o Are there any thresholds to consider, such as taxation being triggered by the number of days an
employee works from a site in their state?

o Does the nature of work performed trigger taxation by the state from which they work?

Tax Incentives

What about tax incentives? Unfortunately, there are currently no federal tax incentives available to
employers who offer telework. While only a handful of states offer tax incentives to employers, there is a
trend to encourage telecommuting through state tax benefits.

For example, the State of Georgia offers The Georgia Telework Tax Credit, which allows a one-time tax credit
of up to $20,000 to offset expenses incurred to expand or launch a Telecommute Program (this tax credit is
available through The Clean Air Campaign). The Georgia Telework Tax Credit also offers annual credits of up to
$1,200 per new teleworker. Colorado and Washington also offer tax incentives.?* Florida does not currently
offer any tax credits or incentives to businesses which offer Telecommute Programs to employees.?

In certain cases, the employee may be able to deduct home office equipment, supplies, and/or transportation
costs from their taxes. Under IRS regulations, if the telecommuting work arrangement is considered “at the
convenience of the employer,” which is determined through rigorous IRS requirements, the employee is
excluded from deducting expenses related to telecommuting. To qualify for deductions for supplies,
equipment, and travel expenses related to telecommuting, the home office must be used as the principal
place of business or the location where the employee meets and serves customers, patients, and/or clients. If
telecommuting is at the discretion of the employee on an infrequent basis and secondary to the main business
location, then the employee would not be able to deduct office supplies from their taxes.2®

To be certain of the applicable tax codes and filing requirements, an employee considering telecommuting
should consult a tax professional to obtain details on whether they qualify for deductions under the applicable
state tax codes.’

Wage and Hour Compliance
A happy employee is a productive employee! And possibly an employee that is prone to work more than they
may record on their timesheet. Without a time-collection and monitoring procedure in place that is tailored

24 Center for Urban Transportation Research, “States Citing Telecommuting by Purpose,” University of South Florida National TDM
and Telework Clearinghouse, http://www.nctr.usf.edu/clearinghouse/statestatutes.htm
25 WorkingMother.com, “Telecommuter Tax Fairness,” Working Mother Media, http://www.workingmother.com/taxes-
policy/2010/09/telecommuter-tax-fairness
26 Greenstein, Rogoff, Olsen, & Co., LLP, CPA’s, “Tax Benefits Give Added Incentives to Telecommuting”, GROCO Reading Room,
http://www.groco.com/readingroom/tax_telecommuting.aspx

Page 16



for telecommuting, there is the potential that your telecommuters may work more hours than they actually
report. Under the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), also known as the Wages and Hours Bill, unless an
employee is classified as exempt, all time worked must be accurately documented and overtime must be paid
to the employee at time-and-a-half compensation rates. Positions considered exempt are executive,
administrative, and professional staff. If your telecommuters do not fall within these categories, then any
overtime must be paid for at time-and-a-half rates.

Make sure you protect your company from inadvertently violating the law by putting in place a time collection
policy that encourages your telecommuters to accurately account for the time they work. As part of the time
collection protocol, you should clearly define all work duties to be performed from home and the expectation
that all hours worked are to be documented. When outlining these expectations, you can also address how
telecommuters will mark the “beginning” and “end” of the work day, as well as the process to request
overtime hours.

Page 17



Chapter 4: Implementation
This next section will outline the essential steps to implement a Telecommute Program for your company.

Step One - Identify a Telecommuting Coordinator and the Telecommute Committee

Your Telecommuting Coordinator will oversee the development and execution of your company’s
Telecommute Program. This person will lead the cost/benefit analysis and the telecommute committee;
develop your company’s policies and procedures; train and assist managers to implement telecommuting
within their respective departments or divisions; and address telecommuting issues within respective
departments (management, HR, legal, etc.). Your Telecommute Committee will guide the development of
policies and procedures for the program. It is essential that you have representatives from key departments
on the committee. Important departments to include, but are not limited to, the following:

e Executive Office

e Human Resources

e Information Technology (IT)

e Communications

e Financial/accounting

e Legal

e Green team (Your company may not have one in place, but if it does, you should include a member.)

Step Two — Perform a Cost/Benefits Analysis

You will likely need to tap many resources within your business to outline the full breadth of potential costs
and benefits of implementing a Telecommute Program. Keep in mind that there are both direct and indirect
costs and benefits.

Potential Direct Benefits

e Energy Savings — Perform an energy audit for facilities that may be closed due to employees moving to
home offices

e Facilities — Determine if square footage could be downsized by moving your workforce to home offices

e Parking — Determine the potential savings by reducing parking needs, particularly if your company pays for
parking

e Productivity — Estimate the potential increase in productivity from fewer instances of absenteeism

Potential Indirect Benefits

e Worker Retention — Retain quality employees by allowing them to telecommute; maintaining your current
work force means you won’t have to bear the heavy cost of replacing and training new employees

e Organizational Effectiveness — Estimate the potential increase in organizational effectiveness

Potential Direct Costs

e Taxes — Will your company or your employees be affected by increased taxes related to telecommuting?

e Liability Insurance — Will you have to extend your liability insurance to cover home-based employees?

e Workers’ Compensation — Is your current workers’ compensation sufficient to cover employees working at
home?

e Equipment — Determine who will be providing the equipment to be used: the employer or the employee.
If the equipment is to be provided by the employer, will this be an additional expense above and beyond

Page 18



the cost of current equipment? Will equipment located in the teleworker’s home be serviced by the
company, and will this increase the cost of support services?

Software — Will the teleworker require additional software licenses? If so, can this cost be offset by the
reduction in licenses that may not be required at the main place of business?

Security — Will you need to provide the teleworker with remote access to your server and network? If so,
will you need to set-up a virtual private network (VPN) system?

There are online calculators available to assist you in performing this cost/benefit analysis. The following two
online resources are offered as a starting point and may be of use to your organization:

Sample Cost-Benefit Analysis for Off-Site Telecommuting —
http://panel.telecommutect.com/eval/index.php/calc

Telecommuting360 Commuting Cost Calculator — www.telecommuting360.com/commuting-cost-
calculator

Step Three — Draft Policies and Procedures
You will want to create solid policies and procedures for many, if not all, of the following areas:

Telecommute Program Policy

Draft a policy that outlines your company’s full stance on telecommuting, including a mission statement, a
complete definition of what qualifies as “telecommuting” for your company, the goals of the program, and
all pertinent rules and procedures that telecommuters must follow.

Key Telecommute Program Personnel & Support Systems

Outline the responsibilities of all individuals involved in facilitating the Telecommute Program. Be sure to
include an organizational map to represent the hierarchy of decision-making in regards to this program.
Also include procedures for requesting technical support (e.g. IT issues) and ordering supplies for home.
Identify a Human Resources representative that is the point person for issues specific to telecommuters.

Telecommuting Application & Procedure to Identify Potential Telecommuters and Telecommuting
Positions

Define eligibility and how to apply to participate in the Telecommute Program. Outline the eligible
positions and duties that can be performed from home. See “Step Four” for more direction on this
element.

Telecommuting Agreement

Outline the participant’s responsibilities as a telecommuter. This agreement should include the rules and
guidelines of the Program as they relate to the individual telecommuter, including but not limited to the
following:

o Expectations for communicating with management from home

Expectations for how to submit work for review

Expectations regarding collaborating with co-workers

Time collection guidelines

Policy regarding sick leave and vacation time as regards telecommuters

Framework for performance evaluations, including how telecommuters can continue to grow within
the company

o Procedure to terminate the telecommuting arrangement, should that be required

O O O O O

Page 19



Emergency Operations Procedure
Outline the responsibilities of all telecommuters in the case of a natural disaster, emergency, pandemic, or
terrorist attack.

Liability Policy
Define all potential liabilities of the Telecommute Program, from taxes to workers’ compensation, and
outline the company’s position and requirements relating to these areas.

Step Four - Identify Potential Telecommute Positions and Employees

In this step, you will identify which positions could transition to work-from-home arrangements, as well as
identify which employees would be effective telecommuters. You will need input from your pool of potential
telecommuters to complete this step, so now may be a good time to communicate to your staff that your
company is beginning this process and looking for their feedback. Relay this information to your workers
through email messages, posters, fliers, announcements at staff meetings, and any other means of
communication that your worksite has available.

Determine job duties that could be performed from home

To begin this step, it may be easiest to determine which job duties could not be performed from home. For
example, activities that require heavy equipment to complete (like manufacturing or food preparation) are
likely inappropriate for telecommuting. Likely, this elimination process will leave you with a list of positions
that require activities like report writing, computer programming, or research.

Outline qualities and work habits expected of your telecommuters

Even though a job could be performed at home, that doesn’t mean that each one of your workers would
be successful working from home. Make a list of the qualities and work habits you expect of your
telecommuters, such as the ability to stay on task, consistently meeting deadlines, and asking for guidance
and input on their work products. These criteria will help your management team fairly assess the
potential for each interested employee to enter into a telecommuting agreement.

Create an Employee Self-Assessment Form

Provide a survey to each employee in a position that has been identified as a potential work-from-home
job class. The self-assessment survey should include a list of the qualities you require in your
telecommuters, as well as expectations and evaluation criteria specific to telecommuting. Allowing
employees to determine whether or not they would be successful telecommuters is an important step in
gathering the most effective telecommuters possible.

Create an Employee Home Environment Self-Assessment Form

Once employees have been identified as potential telecommuters, they should evaluate whether their
home environment is free of hazards and adheres to the company’s safety standard. You may require that
the employee’s manager perform an inspection of the home office in question to certify the assessment.
This certification should be part of the employee’s Telecommuting Agreement. Some basic points to
include in this assessment are the following?’:

o Is the space reasonably quiet and free of distractions?

27 Department of Management Services, State of Florida, “Telecommuting for the Home Office” (2011),
http://www.dms.myflorida.com/media/hrm_files/state_employee_telecommuting_program/telecommuting_checklist_for_the_ho
me_office

Page 20



O O O O O

O O O O O O

O O O O

Does the space seem adequately ventilated?

Are any stairs with four or more steps equipped with handrails?

Are all circuit breakers and/or fuses in the electrical panel correctly labeled?

Do circuit breakers clearly indicate if they are in the open or closed position?

Is all electrical equipment free of recognized hazards that could cause physical harm (e.g. frayed wires,
bare conductors, loose wires, flexible wires running through walls, exposed wires fixed to the ceiling)?
Are electrical outlets three-pronged (grounded)?

Is the computer equipment connected to a surge protector?

Are aisles, doorways, and corners free of obstructions to permit movement?

Are file cabinets and storage closets arranged so drawers and doors do not open into walkways?

Is the space crowded with furniture?

Are the phone lines, electrical cords, and extension wires secured under a desk or alongside the
baseboards?

Are floor surfaces clean, dry, level, and free of worn or frayed seams?

Are carpets well secured to the floor, and free of frayed or worn seams?

Is there a fire extinguisher in the home that is easily accessible from the office space?

Is a well-functioning smoke detector in close proximity to the work space?

Step Five — Outline the Daily Operations Plan

Before you launch your Telecommute Program, create a plan on how the program will be managed day-to-
day. This plan should describe how the employee-to-manager relationship will function. It should also describe
how the employee will receive and submit work, as well as the process for evaluations and feedback. Though
this should be included in the overall Telecommute Program Policy, it is good to have this as a stand-alone
document for day-to-day reference.

While the list of topics will be expanded based upon your company’s unique policies, the Operations Plan
should address topics such as:

@)
@)
@)

Chain of Command
Time Collection
Scheduling
Communication
Work Flow

Obtaining work
Submitting work
Document/data storage and availability for co-workers

Equipment — employee/employer responsibilities

@)
@)

Maintaining and servicing equipment
Downtime if malfunctioning equipment is being serviced

Progress reporting

Sick and vacation leave
Safety
Conflict management

Emergency events/continuation of operations plan

Page 21



Step Six — Create a Checklist of Supplies & Equipment
List the supplies and equipment that your telecommuters will need. A list of basic supplies includes the
following:

Laptop (with secure VPN capabilities)
Printer/copier/scanner all-in-one

Paper

Phone

Air Card or WiFi hot-spot enabled cell phone
Writing utensils

Stapler & staples

Tape and dispenser

Other supplies pertinent to the position

Determine whether equipment and supplies will be provided by the employer or the employee. You will also
want to outline a plan for asset management, the provision of virtual equipment, and the process to service
equipment.

Asset Management
Supplies and equipment provided by the employer should be inventoried and tagged as assets of the
business for tracking purposes.

Virtual Equipment
Will a Virtual Private Network (VPN) or other security protocol be required by your employees to conduct
their job duties? If so, the equipment and software requirements should be outlined and provided.

Servicing Equipment

Outline the plan for servicing equipment located in the employee’s home, as well as addressing any
technology issues (e.g. virtual security features). Will your current service contract cover equipment in
other locations? Will equipment, such as laptops, have to be sent to the servicing company; if so, what
procedure should the employee follow for shipping and time without the equipment? Can virtual security
issues be addressed directly between the employee and the respective servicing company? Or will the
employee be required to go through the employer to have equipment serviced and receive technical
support on virtual security issues?

Step Seven — Train & Prepare Your Management Team

Your telecommuting coordinator will oversee the implementation of your company’s Telecommute Program,
but your team of managers will maintain operations on a daily basis. Ensure success by addressing the
concerns of your managers in advance and provide adequate resources prior to the launch of the program.
Managers of telecommuters will want to focus on the following:

Clearly communicating expectations

Assigning specific tasks with specific deadlines

Encouraging teamwork despite co-workers not being in the same place at the same time
Efficiently using meetings and face-to-face time

Addressing basic IT issues

Providing feedback and opportunities for growth

Page 22



Step Eight — Select and Transition Employees into Telecommuting Arrangement

e Selection of Employees
With the employee self-assessments in hand, you can select the employees to transition to telecommuting
arrangements. Be sure that each future telecommuter completes and submits the Telecommuting
Agreement, as outlined in Step Three. A sample self-assessment form is included in Appendix C.

e Transition Plan
Outline a plan for transitioning employees from a traditional work arrangement to a telecommuting
arrangement. Allow time for your telecommuters to set up their home office, as well as time to work with
IT to establish security protocols and getting server connections in place.

Step Nine — Launch Your Program!
Now that you have the details in place, it is time to officially launch the program. With the assistance of
reThink and the procedures you’ve followed to get to this point, your program launch should go easily.

Step Ten — Evaluate the Program

To ensure the effectiveness of the Telecommute Program within your company, it is imperative that the
Telecommuting Coordinator conduct frequent evaluations and address any issues as soon as they arise,
especially in the first few months of the program’s launch. If the overall cost of the program is exceeding the
benefits, or if productivity has experienced a dramatic decrease, these issues may require further training of
management or other strategies to improve the viability of the Telecommute Program.

Page 23



Appendix A
Telecommuting Resources in Central Florida

reThink, FDOT District 5 Regional Commuter Assistance Program - - o

Offers free consulting advice and assistance on the set-up of your || (= h I n k

Telecommute Program - your Comifl l] te
®

719 S. Woodland Boulevard, Deland, FL 32720
866.610.RIDE (7433)
www.reThinkYourCommute.com
info@reThinkYourCommute.com

Orlando Public Library

Third floor office space available featuring two tables, 12 chairs, a white

board, wi-fi access and an LCD TV monitor. The space is available for 520

for four consecutive hours and renters can invite up to 11 others. You must I!BRARY
have an Orange County library card with no unpaid fines to reserve the

space.

101 East Central Boulevard
Orlando, FL 32801

(407) 835-7481
www.ocls.com

Urban ReThink r‘
Telecommuting center; meeting rooms; copier/scanner/fax; secure Wi-Fi U R B A N ,

and server space; onsite café; monthly rates start at $105; daily/weekly F\) ET H | NK \
rates also available creative - collsborative - iransformative &)

625 East Central Boulevard
Orlando, FL 32801

(407) 704-6895
urbanrethink.com
mail@urbanrethink.com

Page 24



Appendix B
Sample Employee Self-Assessment Form

[COMPANY NAME] Telecommute Program - Employee Self-Assessment Form

Employee Name:

Department & Supervisor/Manager:

Position/Title:

1. Please provide a brief outline of your job duties below. Make sure to include duties that you feel could be
performed from home, as well as the amount of time each takes.

2. Please describe your work habits and your approach to completing assignments.

3. Do your work duties require the use of large equipment currently only available at the worksite? If yes, please
describe the specific duties and equipment.

4. How much/often do you require the assistance of co-workers to complete assighments? How much/often do
you require the assistance of your supervisor/manager to complete assignments?

5. If you have children at home, are you able to arrange/maintain your current dependent care plan to allow
yourself to work from home on your current schedule?

6. Do you have access to transportation so that you could visit the worksite on-demand if requested?

7. Do you have an appropriate, well-equipped space in your home that could be designated as work space? If yes,
would you be willing to allow your supervisor/manager to inspect and certify your home office set-up?

Signature Date

Manager’s Signature Date of Receipt

Page 25



Appendix C
Sample Home Office/Environment Self-Assessment Form

[COMPANY NAME] Telecommute Program — Home Office Self-Assessment Form

Employee Name:
Department & Supervisor/Manager:

Position/Title:

Please complete the questionnaire below.

NO

YES

1. Is the space reasonably quiet and free of distractions?

2. Does the space seem adequately ventilated?

3. Are any stairs with four or more steps equipped with handrails?

4. Are all circuit breakers and/or fuses in the electrical panel correctly labeled?

5. Do circuit breakers clearly indicate if they are in the open or closed position?

6. Is all electrical equipment free of recognized hazards that could cause physical harm
(e.g. frayed wires, bare conductors, loose wires, flexible wires running through walls,
exposed wires fixed to the ceiling)?

7. Are electrical outlets three-pronged (grounded)?

8. Is the computer equipment connected to a surge protector?

9. Are aisles, doorways, and corners free of obstructions to permit movement?

10. Are file cabinets and storage closets arranged so drawers and doors do not open into
walkways?

11. Is the space crowded with furniture?

12. Are the phone lines, electrical cords, and extension wires secured under a desk or
alongside the baseboards?

13. Are floor surfaces clean, dry, level, and free of worn or frayed seams?

14. Are carpets well secured to the floor, and free of frayed or worn seams?

15. Is there a fire extinguisher in the home that is easily accessible from the office space?

16. Is a well-functioning smoke detector in close proximity to the work space?

Signature Date

Manager’s Signature Date of Receipt

Page 26



Appendix C
Sample Telecommute Application

[COMPANY NAME] Telecommute Program — Telecommute Application

Employee Name
Department
Supervisor/Manager
Position/Title

Current Worksite

Proposed Home or Satellite
Office Address

Describe your current job duties and which of these duties could be performed from a home or satellite office.

Do you think there are any potential security issues in regards to company data and working from home? If yes,

please provide more information.

How often would you like to telecommute? For example, once a week or every other day?

Please describe the off-site work space you intend to use while telecommuting.

Please list the equipment you would need provided to you in order to effectively telecommute.

Please explain any potential distractions or obligations during the day that may present challenges to you working

from home (e.g. childcare, etc.).

What is your plan to address the issues outlined above?

Any additional information your supervisor/manager should know?

Page 27



Telecommute Application - Continued

To be completed by the Employee’s Supervisor/Manager YES NO

Is the company able to supply the necessary equipment to perform these job functions? --
Is the employee’s off-site work location conducive to telecommuting? --

Approved for reassignment as a telecommuter? --

Signature Date

Manager’s Signature Date of Receipt

Page 28



Appendix D
Sample Telecommute Agreement

[COMPANY NAME] Telecommute Program — Telecommute Agreement

Employee Name
Department
Supervisor/Manager
Position/Title

Telecommute Coordinator

Home or Satellite Office
Address

Contact Information While
Telecommuting

Telecommute Work
Schedule

Inventory of Equipment
Provided by the Company

Inventory of Equipment
Provided by Employee

General Job Duties to be
performed while
Telecommuting

Is this Telecommuting
Agreement a part of a
Continuity of Operations
Planning (COOP)?

Home Office Self-
Assessment Form on file?

Acknowledgement of
Security and Protected Data
Protocol on file?

Signature Date

Manager’s Signature Date of Receipt

Page 29



éﬁ UNIVERSITY OF
Il CENTRAL FLORIDA

Remote Working Arrangement
Program Manual

Office of Human Resources

3280 Progress Drive, Suite 100
Orlando, Florida 32826-2912
LOAandWorkComp@ucf.edu

Phone: 407.823.2771
Secure eFax: 407.882.9023

Updated 05/17/2021


mailto:LOAandWorkComp@ucf.edu

Table of Contents

INErOAUCTION ceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeereieererreeeeeeeeeee et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseesassesssssssssssssssssssssns 3
Purpose
Definition
Intention
Benefits & Disadvantages

Program OVEIVIEW.....ccuuieeeiiiieeiiecnitiecitecettccte et e s aas s nae e e 4
Remote Work Agreement
Expectations for Participation
Salary, Benefits, and Onsite Meetings
Tax Implications
Supervisor Responsibilities
Confidentiality
Work Space and Work Site Inspection
Remote Work Equipment
Travel and Home Expenses
Accidents and Injuries
University’s Right to End Remote Agreement
Insurance

Conditions & Terms of Remote WorkK......cocueevueeviiiniiiniicnnniiniicniccnnecnnecnane 8
Performance Evaluation
Management Controls
Sick Days, Vacation, Floating Holidays and Leaves of Absence
Privacy
Amendments
Program Amendment

The Remote Working Arrangement Program at the University of Central Florida offers a flexible work
schedule and the ability to work offsite at an approved home office location, given the employee meets and
adheres to the requirements described in this manual.

The University of Central Florida retains the right to terminate this program at any time at its sole discretion.
If it is terminated, employees working remotely will be asked to return to their jobs within the university
office setting. Also, if an employee’s work performance or behavior is not acceptable, the supervisor may
pursue the disciplinary process and/or require the employee to return to work onsite at the university. If the
employee does not return on the agreed upon date, this will be deemed a voluntary resignation and will be
treated as such per university policies and procedures.

Employees who request to utilize this program do so based on having been provided information about the
program and the pros and cons of working remotely.



Introduction

Purpose
The purpose of the Remote Working Arrangement Program Manual is to provide guidelines for both
managers and employees interested in remote work.

Definition

A Remote work arrangement in which an employee performs their regular work at a Remote Workplace, for
a specified portion of the workweek, or the entire workweek. The program may be utilized at the
departmental managers’ discretion and is not an employee benefit or right.

The Remote work program should not be viewed as a substitute for dependent care. The university expects
that remote employees will arrange for dependent care. It is the employees’ responsibility to ensure that
they are fully able to complete their work assignments and to interact with university personnel over the
phone or internet meeting in a professional environment.

In limited circumstances, remote work could involve special projects or work for another department.
Temporary arrangements for a nonrecurring remote work schedule of two months or less may be handled
informally by the department. A formal Remote Work Agreement is required in Human Resources for a
recurring schedule of over two months. For emergency preparedness, remote work agreements must be
kept on file with the Continuity of Operations Plan (COOP) in the college or department.

Intention
Remote work is intended to create flexible conditions that will enhance the capability of both the employee
and the university to meet/exceed the stated goals and objectives more effectively.

Benefits & Disadvantages

The Remote Working Arrangement Program is not designed for every employee. The lure of household
chores and family distractions can easily undermine performance. However, when implemented successfully,
employees can experience increased productivity, savings on commuting costs, a better work/life balance
and enhanced morale.



Program Overview

Remote Work Agreement

Employees interested in participating in the UCF Remote Working Arrangement Program must complete the
UCF Remote Working Arrangement Request and submit it to their supervisor for approval processing. New
hires approved for remote work are required to complete the UCF Remote Working Arrangement Request
with their new hire paperwork. Vice President or Provost approval is required for an exception to the
requirement for six months service at the Central Workplace.

Expectations for Participation

Eligibility to participate in a Remote Work Arrangement is conditional upon agreement from the employee

that he or she will be able to establish a proper working environment and have the skills necessary to perform

their tasks assigned independently. Some important items to consider include:

¢ The Remote Working Arrangement Program is not to be used as a substitute for childcare or other
personal responsibilities. It is important to ensure that dependent care obligations or other family
obligations do not interfere with work.

e It is expected that employees who work remotely will devote all of their effort to university business
while working at the alternative workplace. Disruptions such as personal visitors during work hours are
not acceptable, and personal telephone calls should be kept to a minimum.

e The supervisor or designee will need to approve annual and sick leave in advance when being taken
during times scheduled to work at home.

¢ Allremote employees are required to obtain their supervisor’s approval prior to working overtime.

e The supervisor must approve any changes to the employee’s work schedule in advance.

¢ University equipment and files will be required to be returned to the university if work from home is
terminated by either the employee or the university.

The employee:

e Must have the ability to perform all essential functions of the position from the Remote Workplace.

e Must have the ability to provide an appropriate work environment at home, which meets university
standards such as setting up an ergonomically correct workstation.

e Must possess productive and organized work habits.

e Must have both strong verbal and written communication skills.

e Must be able to adhere to assigned work hours.

e Must comply fully with the university’s attendance and time recording procedures and will accurately
report and record all working hours.

e Must maintain a performance appraisal of at least "Satisfactory" or “Effective”.

e Must be reliable, maintain confidentiality and work well independently.

e Must adhere to all university policies, procedures, and guidelines.

e Must attend mandatory and other requested meetings on campus, including training sessions,
workshops, etc.

e Must possess independent problem-solving abilities.

e Must maintain an appropriate level of professional demeanor and represent the university with respect
and dignity.

Salary, Benefits and Onsite Meetings

Remote Working Arrangement Program employees’ salary, job responsibilities and benefits will be identical
to those of employees not working remotely. In addition, employees approved for the program agree to
comply with all existing position requirements of their regular onsite office setting as well as any newly
established requirements in the future. There may be times employees will be asked to come to the office
on a day when they were scheduled to work from home. Some of these instances include departmental staff
meetings, training sessions, etc. Employees are required to attend these events on the university campus.



Tax Implications

It will be the employee’s responsibility to determine any income tax implications of maintaining a home office
area, traveling, and maintaining residence in Florida. The university will not provide tax guidance, nor will the
university assume any additional tax liabilities on an employee’s behalf. Employees are encouraged to consult
with a qualified tax professional to discuss these matters in greater depth.

Supervisor Responsibilities

e The supervisor must advise employee of final determination (approval or denial) of the remote work
request based upon the decision of the Dean, Director, or Department Head (DDDH) or designee.

e The supervisor will decide tasks to be assigned to the employee. Work assignments for the Remote
Workplace will be handled in the same manner as they are for the Central Workplace.

e The supervisor will be responsible for assigning specific work hours to each employee working remotely.
The number of working hours will be monitored regularly.

e  Work hours determined by the supervisor will be communicated to team members, clients, and co-
workers.

e The supervisor will be tasked to clearly define performance requirements and standards that are
measurable and results oriented.

e The supervisor will regularly monitor and communicate regarding the employee’s performance in
accordance with departmental and university policy.

e If an employee’s behavior or performance is not satisfactory, the supervisor has the right to terminate
the program and/or recommend disciplinary actions as appropriate in accordance with university policy.

Confidentiality

Sensitive university information should not be removed from university facilities without explicit written
authorization by appropriate university management. Such information includes, but is not limited to files,
employment and financial records.

Sensitive information is governed by various State and Federal laws and regulations as well as university
policies such as policy 4-008 Data Classification and Protection, and includes any and all information that, if
released, could cause harm to the university by virtue of such release. Therefore, university employees,
without exception, must adhere to such policies and regulations and maintain confidentiality of such
information at all times.

Therefore, individuals working remotely are required to understand and abide by all university’s policies and
procedures.

Workspace and Work Site Inspection
The employee must ensure that the home office is a separate space set aside to allow the employee to work
efficiently. For additional information and/or assistance in identifying risk factors present at your workstation
as well as specific recommendations on how to address them, contact Environmental Health and Safety or
visit http://www.ehs.ucf.edu/ergonomics.

The university has the right to visit the employee’s home to ensure that the designated work location meets
safety, ventilation and ergonomic standards. Such visits will not be scheduled without giving the employee
a 24-hour prior notice and will be conducted during normal business hours.

The university does not pay for costs associated with working at home, such as electrical, heating, A/C, etc.
(with possible exception of a voice/data line).


http://www.ehs.ucf.edu/ergonomics

Remote Work Equipment

The university may provide equipment such as computers, laptops, tablets, printers, communication devices,
and software needed to perform the employees’ work assignments. The equipment must be protected
against damage and unauthorized use. Equipment must be used for official UCF business, be managed and
supported by University IT, and its use must comply with the University Information Technology & Security
policies and standards. For more information you may visit https://policies.ucf.edu/ or https://infosec.ucf.edu.

University provided items remain the property of the University of Central Florida and must be returned to
the university upon request. In case of extended illness, resignation, or termination; or if the program ends,
it is the employee’s responsibility to personally return all university equipment.

The university may reimburse the employees for the cost of installation and monthly service of
telephone/High Speed Internet line(s) during the length of the Remote Work Agreement. This is considered
to be for the university’s purposes only, and not for personal use.

The following safeguards must be followed:

¢ Maintain appropriate physical security for computers and computing devices storing or transmitting
confidential, highly restricted, or restricted information. This is especially important for all storage
devices, such as laptops and tablets as well as portable USB drives, CDs, memory cards, cloud storage
systems, etc. to follow university policies 4-007 and 4-008 to protect university data.

e In compliance with University Security Policies and Standards, university data must reside on university
equipment or UCF sanctioned Internet cloud data storage systems (e.g., OneDrive) and not on personal
devices or in personal cloud storage systems.

¢ Enable full disk/device encryption using current industry standards, such as BitLocker or FileVault.

e Ensure that no one else has access to the universityequipment.

e Connect to the University of Central Florida internal network through the university’s virtual private
network (VPN) prior to performing job responsibilities on your officially assigned computer, or through
the use of personal device to gain access to university networks (e.g., office desktop or virtual machine).

e Keep the operating system and malware protection current by installing the latest security patches and
updates.

Additional minimum recommendations if a home wireless network is being used:

e Change the default administrator password for the wireless router. The password should be difficult to
guess and aligns with the UCF Password Standards.

e Turn on the highest level of encryption supported by your wireless router and the devices connecting to
it (e.g., WPA2/AES, etc.). The encryption keys should be long and difficult to guess.

¢ Change the default SSID and associated password.

¢ Thewireless router’s built-in firewall should be enabled.

e Regularly update your wireless router software through the manufacturer.

The university, as needed, will provide remote employees with office supplies. Employees’ out-of- pocket
expenses for other supplies will not be reimbursed unless prior written approval of the manager has been
received. The university will repair and replace damaged university equipment unless it is lost, damaged or
stolen through the employee’s negligence or abuse.

Employees must inform their departmental security coordinator, the UCF Police, and their departmental
property management personnel if a computing or storage device is lost or stolen. In addition, employees
must contact the UCF Information Security Office’s Security Incident Response Team (SIRT) at sirt@ucf.edu
immediately if the missing device contains or is suspected to contain highly restricted or restricted data.

University IT staff are responsible for managing and supporting authorized software applications under the
University’s control. University IT staff are responsible for reviewing and revising these security controls and
access as necessary (e.g., when employees have been transferred or terminated).


https://policies.ucf.edu/
https://infosec.ucf.edu/
mailto:sirt@ucf.edu

Travel and Home Expenses
Travel and mileage between home and office will not be reimbursed.

UCF will not be responsible for operating costs, home maintenance, or any other incidental cost (e.g.,
utilities) associated with working remotely from the employee's residence. For example, home-related
expenses such as construction, renovations, heating/air conditioning, lighting, or electricity are not
reimbursable. The university will also not be responsible for the maintenance and/or repair of personally
owned equipment utilized for Remote work arrangement.

The employee may be entitled to reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred while conducting
business for UCF, as provided for by applicable policies and regulations.

Accidents and Injuries

The university will be responsible for any work-related injuries under Florida workers’ compensation laws,
but this liability is limited to injuries resulting directly from work and only if the injury occurs in the designated
work area during the assigned work hours. Any claims will be handled according to the normal university
procedure for Workers’ Compensation claims.

As stated in the workers’ compensation laws, the university will be responsible for injuries at the work home
site, if the site is ergonomically maintained. The employee is responsible for any injuries and liabilities arising
from his/her own negligence.

Any time an accident or an injury occurs, whether or not the employee wishes to seek medical care, it must
be reported to AmeriSys. This should be done by the supervisor and employee, if available, as soon as
possible. For additional information regarding the reporting process, visit the Workers’ Compensation page
on the HR website (https://hr.ucf.edu).

University’s Right to End a Remote Work Arrangement

The university or department manager has the right to end arrangements for working remotely at their sole
discretion with a fourteen (14) day prior written notification. If the employee chooses not to return to their
campus work location on the expected date, failure to do so will be considered a voluntary resignation and
will be treated as such under university standard policies and procedures.

Insurance

The employee agrees to carry a sufficient amount of homeowner’s or renter’s insurance to cover loss or
damage to the equipment provided by the university, in the event that the university deems such a loss or
damage is the employee’s responsibility. Employees who work remotely from their home should consult with
their insurance company or broker to purchase a business pursuits type rider on their homeowner’s or
renter’s insurance policies. Current policies may be null and void without these riders or endorsements as a
result of the workers’ compensation coverage that is provided by the university for work related injury while
on work time.


https://hr.ucf.edu/

Conditions & Terms of Remote Work

Conditions and terms of employment will not change for an employee participating in a Remote Work
Arrangement. Salary, benefits, vacation, leaves, and other rights and responsibilities will be equal to those
of an employee working onsite.

Remote employees are subject to and must abide by all university and departmental policies and procedures.
University policies governing the use of university equipment, facilities, including but not limited to,
software, support services, internet, telephones, vehicle, etc. shall apply at the home work site.

Performance Evaluation

The employee will participate in and be subject to the university performance evaluation process of goal
setting, review and evaluation as do the Central Workplace employees. As part of the on-going supervisory
and management activities, the employee will discuss with their supervisor the specific work assignments,
time expectations for completion of such assignments, and will review these goals and objectives as
necessary. The employee’s assigned work will be completed according to procedures agreed upon by the
supervisor in accordance with guidelines and standards set forth in the employee’s performance evaluation
document, and in accordance with departmental and university policies and procedures. Work performance
expectations will remain the same as for those employees who work at the Central Workplace.

Management Controls
The employee will comply with established management directives, which will include, but are not limited to:
¢ In person meetings with management as requested and/orrequired.
e Regular ongoing communication with supervisor.
e Participation in staff meetings (via phone or inperson).
e Submittal of periodic written activity/status reports, as required by the supervisor.

Sick Days, Vacation, Floating Holidays, and Leaves of Absence

Any use of sick days, vacation time (annual leave), or personal business must be approved by the supervisor.
The employee must obtain prior approval for leave usage, in accordance with established university
procedures. All leave must be reported as per policy.

If you are seeking aremote work arrangement to manage a health or caregiving-related situation for yourself
or a family member, you should contact the Human Resources Leave Section to determine if your situation
would be more appropriately considered under the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) or the Office of
Institutional Equity if it should be explored as a reasonable accommodation under the Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA).

Privacy

The employee acknowledges that the university-provided electronic mail, all forms of electronic data
communication systems, voice message systems, electronic storage systems, and computer systems utilized
for university business are not private and may be monitored, reviewed, or searched by the university.

Amendments

The remote assignment may be amended, modified or supplemented by the department or university, as
necessary, to conform to the department’s needs or desires in connection with the remote employee’s
alternate workplace arrangements, to conform to changes in the policy or procedure, or as otherwise
necessary to address business needs or to comply with laws, rules, or regulations.

Program Agreement
Nothing in this agreement shall be deemed to create any right, interest, or expectancy of continued
employment.



CRFRA-

CAPITAL REGION

RANSPORTATION PL ﬂN\H\Hi!AH\ NCY

February 19, 2024

AGENDA ITEM 10A

FUTURE MEETINGS

TyPE oF ITEM: CRTPA Information

Meeting Date

Meeting Type

Location

March 18 (Monday)

Board Meeting

Tallahassee City Hall, Commission Chambers,
2nd Floor, 1:30 pm — 4:00 pm

April 16 (Tuesday)

Board Meeting

Tallahassee City Hall, Commission Chambers,
2nd Floor, 1:30 pm — 4:00 pm

May 21 (Tuesday)

Board Meeting

Tallahassee City Hall, Commission Chambers,
2nd Floor, 1:30 pm — 4:00 pm

June 17 (Monday)

Board Meeting

Tallahassee City Hall, Commission Chambers,
2nd Floor, 1:30 pm — 4:00 pm

September 17 (Tuesday)

Board Meeting

Tallahassee City Hall, Commission Chambers,
2nd Floor, 1:30 pm — 4:00 pm

October 15 (Tuesday)

Board Meeting

Tallahassee City Hall, Commission Chambers,
2nd Floor, 1:30 pm —4:00 pm

November 25 (Monday)

Board Meeting

Tallahassee City Hall, Commission Chambers,
2nd Floor, 1:30 pm — 4:00 pm

December 17 (Tuesday)

Board Meeting

Tallahassee City Hall, Commission Chambers,
2nd Floor, 1:30 pm — 4:00 pm




February 19, 2024

i X |
CRTRA-
CAPITAL REGION

TRANSPORTATION PLANNINGAGENCY

AGENDA ITEM 10B

COMMITTEE ACTIONS

(TecHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE & CITIZENS MULTIMODAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE)

TypPe of ITEM: CRTPA Information

STATEMENT OF ISSUE

This item provides information on the activities of the CRTPA’s Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)

and the Citizens Multimodal Advisory Committee (CMAC).

TAC and CMAC: The committees each met on February 6, 2024, and took action on the following:

Minutes of the November 7, 2023, Committee Meetings

e TAC Action: Approved.
e CMAC Action: Approved.

CRTPA Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)
e TAC Action: Approved.
e CMAC Action: Approved.

CRTPA Safety Targets
e TAC Action: Recommended Adoption.

e CMAC Action: Recommended Adoption.

Telecommute Study
e TAC Action: Recommended Adoption.

e CMAC Action: Recommended Adoption.




February 19, 2024

-
CRTRA-

CAPITAL REGION

TRANSPORTATION PLANNINGJAGENCY
Q,,
’

R

AGENDA ITEM 10C

UTILIZATION REPORT Q5 FY 24 REPORTS

TYPE OF ITEM: Information

With the beginning of the second year of the UPWP contract, any remaining funds from the previous year are
rolled into the current year budget. Therefore, the utilization of some line items may reflect a decrease from
the previous report.

A status report on the Quarter 5 (July- September) Fiscal Year 2023 Unified Planning Work Program budget
utilization is provided for the following:

e CRTPA Budget Report PL Funds (Attachment 1)
e CRTPA Budget Report SU Funds (Attachment 2)



ATTACHMENT 1

Unified Planning Work Program - Fiscal Years 2022/23-2023/24

Invoice #: G2782 (PL-5)

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND DESCRIPTION

Task 1.0 - Administration

Remainder FY 23 + FY 2024 FHWA
(PL) Budgeted Amount

FY 2024 FHWA (PL)

Previous Payments

FPID# 439323-4-14-01

Invoice Period: 06/01/23 - 09/30/23

2024 FHWA (PL)
Current Cost

2022/2023 FHWA (PL)
Remaining Balance

Personnel Services

Salaries and Fringe

Sub Total:

Consultant Services
Contract/Consultant Services
1.7 Professional Services WCOT
1.12 Professional Services Audit
1.16 Professional Services Legal
Sub Total:

Travel/Training

Travel/Training

Sub Total:

Direct Expenses

Operational Expenses (Telephone/Insurance)
Computer Software

Staff Services

Sub Total:

Supplies and Equipment

Office Supplies

Computer Equipment

Sub Total:

Total:

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND DESCRIPTION

$292,956.00
$292,956.00

$18,056.25
$20,500.00
$21,574.50
$60,130.75

$10,778.57
$10,778.57

$52,608.40
$2,276.37
$89,742.40
$144,627.17

$9,829.97
$0.07
$9,830.04
$518,322.53

Task 2.0 - Data Collection

Remainder FY 23 + FY 2024 FHWA
(PL) Budgeted Amount

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

FY 2024 FHWA (PL)

Previous Payments

$92,213.85
$92,213.85

$825.00
$20,500.00
$4,556.00
$25,881.00

$3,488.83
$3,488.83

$222.87
$1,200.00
$18,761.20
$20,184.07

$164.64
$0.00
$164.64
$141,932.39

2024 FHWA (PL)
Current Cost

$200,742.15
$200,742.15

$0.00
$17,231.25
$0.00
$17,018.50
$34,249.75

$7,289.74
$7,289.74

$52,385.53
$1,076.37
$70,981.20
$124,443.10

$9,665.33
$0.07
$9,665.40
$376,390.14

2022/2023 FHWA (PL)
Remaining Balance

Personnel Services
Salaries and Fringe

Sub Total:
Consultant Services
Contract/Consultant Services

Sub Total:
Direct Expense
Transportation Data Mangement

Sub Total:

Total:

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND DESCRIPTION

$6,987.00
$6,987.00
$0.00
$40,197.33
$40,197.33

$47,184.33

Task 3.0 - Long Range Planning

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$6,987.00
$6,987.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$6,987.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$40,197.33
$40,197.33
$40,197.33

2022/2023 FHWA (PL)
Remaining Balance

Personnel Services
Salaries and Fringe

Sub Total:
Consultant Services
Contract/Consultant Services
Sub Total:
Total:

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND DESCRIPTION

$66,593.40
$66,593.40

$0.00
$0.00
$66,593.40

Task 4.0 - Short-Range Planning

Remainder FY 23 + FY 2024 FHWA
(PL) Budgeted Amount

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

FY 2024 FHWA (PL)

Previous Payments

R inder FY 23 + FY 2024 FHWA
STISIEEE FY 2024 FHWA (PL) 2024 FHWA (PL)
(PL) Budgeted Amount .
Previous Payments Current Cost

$16,520.03
$16,520.03

$0.00
$0.00
$16,520.03

2024 FHWA (PL)
Current Cost

$50,073.37
$50,073.37

$0.00
$0.00
$50,073.37

2022/2023 FHWA (PL)
Remaining Balance

Personnel Services
Salaries and Fringe

Sub Total:
Consultant Services
Contract/Consultant Services

Sub Total:
Other Direct Expenses
TIP Software

Sub Total:

Total:

$74,209.66
$74,209.66

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$74,209.66
Page 1 0of 2

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$6,848.79
$6,848.79

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$6,848.79

$67,360.87
$67,360.87

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$67,360.87

Utilization

31%

5%
100%
21%

32%

0.4%
53%
21%

2%

Expended in FY23

100%

0%

0%

25%

0%

9%

0%

0%

Unified Planning Work Program - Fiscal Years 2022/23-2023/24
Invoice #:

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND DESCRIPTION

$0.00 Invoice Period:
Task 5.0 - Mobility Planning

Remainder FY 23 + FY 2024 FHWA
(PL) Budgeted Amount

FY 2024 FHWA (PL)
Previous Payments

FPID# 439323-4-14-01

2024 FHWA (PL)
Current Cost

Contract# G2782 (PL FUNDS)

$0.00

2022/2023 FHWA (PL)
Remaining Balance

Personnel Services
Salaries and Fringe
Sub Total:
Consultant Services
5.0 Contract/Consultant Services Support Task 5 Activities
5.7 Tallahassee to Havana Trail Feasibility Study
5.8 SR267 Bloxham Cutoff Trail Feasibility Study
5.20 Congestion Management Plan Update
5.22 CMP Implement. Studies
5.26 Other Mobility Studies TBD
Sub Total:
Total:

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND DESCRIPTION

$126,530.49
$126,530.49

$0.00
$1,014.75
$0.00
$19,959.31
$0.00

$0.00
$20,974.06
$147,504.55

Task 6.0 - Public Involvement
Remainder FY 23 + FY 2024 FHWA

(PL) Budgeted Amount

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

FY 2024 FHWA (PL)

Previous Payments

$16,846.76
$16,846.76

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$16,846.76

2024 FHWA (PL)
Current Cost

$109,683.73
$109,683.73

$0.00
$1,014.75
$0.00
$19,959.31
$0.00

$0.00
$20,974.06
$130,657.79

2022/2023 FHWA (PL)
Remaining Balance

Personnel Services
Salaries and Fringe

Sub Total:
Consultant Services
Contract/Consultant Services
Sub Total:
Total:

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND DESCRIPTION

$81,789.39
$81,789.39

$0.00
$0.00
$81,789.39

Task 7.0 - Special Projects

Remainder FY 23 + FY 2024 FHWA
(PL) Budgeted Amount

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

FY 2024 FHWA (PL)

Previous Payments

$3,295.77
$3,295.77

$0.00
$0.00
$3,295.77

2024 FHWA (PL)
Current Cost

$78,493.62
$78,493.62

$0.00
$0.00
$78,493.62

2022/2023 FHWA (PL)
Remaining Balance

Personnel Services
Salaries and Fringe $148,814.26 $0.00 $13,928.37 $134,885.89
Sub Total: $148,814.26 $0.00 $13,928.37 $134,885.89

Consultant Services
7.0 Consultant Support Task 7 Activities $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
7.1 Telecommute Study $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
7.2 Regional Freight Study $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
7.3 Other Moobility Studies (TBD) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
7.4 SS4A Safety Action Plan $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
7.2 Regional Freight Study $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Sub Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Total: $148,814.26 $0.00 $13,928.37 $134,885.89

Rounding Adjustment $0.01
G 2782 PL-5
) TR L B o TR (R L $1,084,418.12 $0.00 $206,359.11 $878,059.01
Page 2 of 2

Utilization

13%

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

4%

0%

9%

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%




ATTACHMENT 2

Contract# G2782 (SU FUNDS) Utilization
Unified Planning Work Program - Fiscal Years 2022/23-2023/24 FPID# 439323-4-14-02
Invoice #: G2782 (SU-5) Invoice Period: 6/01/23 -9/30/2023
Task 1.0 - Administration
(SU) Budgeted Amount Previous Payments Current Cost Remaining Balance
Personnel Services
Salaries and Fringe $37,494.72 $0.00 $37,494.72 0%
Sub Total: $37,494.72 $0.00 $0.00 $37,494.72
Consultant Services
Contract/Consultant Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
1.7 Professional Services WCOT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
1.12 Professional Services Audit $36,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $36,000.00 0%
1.16 Professional Services Legal $19,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,500.00 0%
Sub Total: $55,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $55,500.00
Travel/Training
Travel/Training $18,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
Sub Total: $18,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,000.00
Direct Expenses
Operational Expenses $58,690.00 $0.00 $0.00 $58,690.00 0%
Computer Software $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 0%
Staff Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
Sub Total: $63,690.00 $0.00 $0.00 $63,690.00
Supplies and Equipment
Computer Equipment $4,000.00 $4,000.00 0%
Sub Total: $4,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00
Total: $178,684.72 $0.00 $0.00 $178,684.72
Task 2.0 - Data Collection
(SU) Budgeted Amount Previous Payments Current Cost Remaining Balance
Personnel Services
Salaries and Fringe $47,184.69 $11,696.77 $35,487.92 25%
Sub Total: $47,184.69 $0.00 $11,696.77 $35,487.92
Consultant Services
Contract/Consultant Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
Sub Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Direct Expenses
2.7 Transportation Data Management $33,041.67 $32,500.00 $541.67 98%
Sub Total: $33,041.67 $0.00 $32,500.00 $541.67
Total: $80,226.36 $0.00 $44,196.77 $36,029.59
Task 3.0 - Long Range Planning
(SU) Budgeted Amount Previous Payments Current Cost Remaining Balance
Personnel Services
Salaries and Fringe $558.68 $0.00 $558.68 0%
Sub Total: $558.68 $0.00 $0.00 $558.68
Consultant Services
Contract/Consultant Services $30,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 0%
Long-Range Transportation Plan $300,000.00
Sub Total: $330,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $330,000.00
Total: $330,558.68 $0.00 $0.00 $330,558.68
Task 4.0 - Short-Range Planning
(SU) Budgeted Amount Previous Payments Current Cost Remaining Balance
Personnel Services
Salaries and Fringe $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
Sub Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Consultant Services
Contract/Consultant Services $34,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $34,500.00 0%
Sub Total: $34,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $34,500.00
Consultant Support
3.0 Consultant Support $12,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 0%
Other Direct Expenses
TIP Software $14,155.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,155.00 0%
Sub Total: $14,155.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,155.00
Total: $48,655.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,655.00
Page 1 of 2
Utilization
Contract# G2782 (SU FUNDS)
Unified Planning Work Program - Fiscal Years 2022/23-20223/24 FPID# 439323-4-14-02
Invoice #: G2782 (SU-5) Invoice Period: 6/01/23-9/30/2023
Task 5.0 - Mobility Planning
(SU) Budgeted Amount Previous Payments Current Cost Remaining Balance
Personnel Services
Salaries and Fringe $55,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $55,000.00 0%
Sub Total: $55,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $55,000.00
Consultant Services
5.0 Consultant Support Task 5 Activities $10,166.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,166.00 0%
5.7 Tallahassee Havana Trail Feasibilty Study $2,178.25 $0.00 $0.00 $2,178.25 0%
5.7.1 Tallahassee Havana Trail Feasibilty Study Public Involvement $11,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,500.00 0%
5.8 SR 267 Bloxham Cutoff Trail Feasibility Study $5,939.99 $0.00 $5,196.75 $743.24 87%
5.8.1 SR 267 Bloxham Cutoff Trail Feasibility Study Public $2,496.37 $0.00 $2,495.70 $0.67 100%
5.20 Congestion Management Plan Update $10,721.00 $0.00 5,936.55 $4,784.45 55%
5.20 Congestion Management Planimplementation Studies $250,000.00 $250,000.00 0%
5.26 Other Mobility Studies (TBD) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0%
Sub Total: $293,001.61 $0.00 $13,629.00 $279,372.61
Total: $348,001.61 $0.00 $13,629.00 $334,372.61

Task 6.0 - Public Involvement




Remainder FY 23 + FY 2024 FHWA
B PENDITURE CATECORY AND DECCRIPTION FY 2024 FHWA (SU) 2024 FHWA (SU) 2022/2023 FHWA (sU)
(SU) Budgeted Amount Previous Payments Current Cost Remaining Balance

Personnel Services
Salaries and Fringe

Sub Total:
Consultant Services
Contract/Consultant Services
Sub Total:
Total:

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY AND DESCRIPTION

Personnel Services

$0.00
$0.00

$30,000.00
$30,000.00
$30,000.00

Task 7.0 - Special Projects

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

Remainder FY 23 + FY 2024 FHWA FY 2024 FHWA (SU) 2024 FHWA (SU)
(SU) Budgeted Amount Previous Payments Current Cost

$0.00
$0.00

$30,000.00
$30,000.00
$30,000.00

2022/2023 FHWA (SU)
Remaining Balance

Salaries and Fringe $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Sub Total: $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Consultant Services
7.0 Consultant Support Task 7 Activities $24,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $24,000.00
7.1 Telecommute Study $81,000.00 $0.00 $32,400.00 $48,600.00
7.2 Regional Freight Study $166,000.00 $47,250.00 $118,750.00
7.3 Other Moobility Studies (TBD) $349,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $349,250.00
7.4 SSAA Safety Action Plan $91,812.20 $62,447.20 $29,365.00
7.5 SS4A Safety Action Plan High Injury Network Safety Studies $208,523.00 $0.00 $0.00 $208,523.00
7.6 Safe Routes to School Report Update $500,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
7.7 Thomasville Rd. Safety abd Access Study $100,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100,000.00
Sub Total: $1,520,585.20 $0.00 $142,097.20 $878,488.00
Total: $1,520,585.20 $0.00 $142,097.20 $1,378,488.00
G2782 SU-5 $2,536,711.57 $0.00 $199,922.97 $2,336,788.60
* G2782 SU-5

e e SRR S E AL - $2,536,711.57 $0.00 $199,922.97 $2,336,788.60

Page 2 of 2

0%

0%

0%

0%
40%
28%

0%
68%

0%

0%

0%

Adjusted Total - Reduce by .01 due to rounding

$2,536,711.57

$406,282.08



o 2 |
CRTRA-

CAPITAL REGTON

v

AGENDA ITEM 10 D

CORRESPONDENCE

February 19, 2024

TyPE OF ITEM: Information

The following correspondence has been sent or received by the CRTPA:

e CRTPA email correspondence from CRTPA Board Member Commissioner Austin Hosford to
CRTPA Executive Director Greg Slay dated February 13, 2024 (Attachment 1).




ATTACHMENT 1

From: Slay, Greg

To: Austin Hosford

Cc: Burke, Greg

Subject: Re: Bike Trail Resolution

Date: Tuesday, February 13, 2024 9:31:58 AM
Attachments: Bike Trails.docx

We’ll add it to the Communications section of next week’s agenda.

Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 13, 2024, at 8:30 AM, Austin Hosford <ahosford@jeffersoncountyfl.gov>
wrote:

**EXTERNAL EMAIL***
Please report any suspicious attachments, links, or requests for sensitive
information.

Good morning Greg.

Jefferson County Board of Commissioners passed this attached resolution at our
February 1 meeting. Hoping to get it circulated through the CRTPA board or
seeing if I need to introduce it at the meeting. Thanks.

Austin Hosford

Get Outlook for iOS

From: Encinosa, Heather <hencinosa@ngn-tally.com>
Sent: Wednesday, January 31, 2024 5:04 PM

To: Austin Hosford <ahosford @jeffersoncountyfl.gov>
Subject: Bike Trail Resolution

Pursuant to your request. Let me know if you have any questions.

Heather J. Encinosa

1500 Mahan Drive, Suite 200
Tallahassee, Florida 32308
(850) 224-4070

hencinosa@ngnlaw.com


mailto:Greg.Slay@talgov.com
mailto:ahosford@jeffersoncountyfl.gov
mailto:Greg.Burke@talgov.com
https://urldefense.com/v3/__https://aka.ms/o0ukef__;!!N4_s6dRKiShDng!fpt-3TH6jG3PJtlnSFvBAZXdLNc89V6etsHW3JnFt7o0XdhUUneHHh8hWf7Eg8q3oz5-Z8W5rcI54Be3GPdcT8b-ZbHvqbU$
mailto:hencinosa@ngn-tally.com

RESOLUTION NO. __________



A RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MEMORIALIZING THE BOARD’S POSITION WITH REGARD TO THE DUKE RAIL TRAIL  AND THE SUN TRAIL MULTI-USE TRAILS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 



WHEREAS, on February 7, 2019, the Jefferson County Board of County Commissioners (“Board”) voted not to proceed with a Bike Trail Agreement with Duke Energy Florida, LLC for the construction and operation of a multi-use trail within the Duke rail bed in Jefferson County; and 

WHEREAS, on December 15, 2022, the Board voted not to enter into a   maintenance agreement with the State of Florida for County maintenance of the proposed Sun Trail Multi-Use Trail within Jefferson County; and 

WHEREAS, the Board now wishes to adopt this resolution to memorialize these decisions with regard to the Duke Rail Trail and Sun Trail multi-use trails within the County. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, FLORIDA, that:

SECTION 1. RECITALS. The above recitals are true and correct and are hereby incorporated herein by reference.

SECTION 2. BIKE TRAILS.  The Board hereby adopts this resolution to memorialize its current position in opposition to the County’s construction of the Duke Rail Trail and County’s maintenance of the Sun Trail multi-use trail within the County.

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall become effective upon its adoption.

PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED at the meeting of the Board of County Commissioners of Jefferson County, Florida on the _____ day of _____________, 2024.



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, FLORIDA







						

J.T. Surles, Chair



ATTEST:







					

Clerk of the Circuit Court





APPROVED AS TO FORM:







					

Heather J. Encinosa, Esq.



2




RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS, MEMORIALIZING THE BOARD’S POSITION WITH

REGARD TO THE DUKE RAIL TRAIL AND THE SUN TRAIL MULTI-USE

TRAILS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, on February 7, 2019, the Jefferson County Board of County
Commissioners (“Board”) voted not to proceed with a Bike Trail Agreement with Duke
Energy Florida, LLC for the construction and operation of a multi-use trail within the Duke
rail bed in Jefferson County; and

WHEREAS, on December 15, 2022, the Board voted not to enter into a
maintenance agreement with the State of Florida for County maintenance of the proposed
Sun Trail Multi-Use Trail within Jefferson County; and

WHEREAS, the Board now wishes to adopt this resolution to memorialize these
decisions with regard to the Duke Rail Trail and Sun Trail multi-use trails within the
County.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, FLORIDA, that:

SECTION 1. RECITALS. The above recitals are true and correct and are hereby
incorporated herein by reference.

SECTION 2. BIKE TRAILS. The Board hereby adopts this resolution to
memorialize its current position in opposition to the County’s construction of the Duke Rail
Trail and County’s maintenance of the Sun Trail multi-use trail within the County.

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall become effective upon its

adoption.



PASSED AND DULY ADOPTED at the meeting of the Board of County

Commissioners of Jefferson County, Florida on the day of , 2024.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, FLORIDA

J.T. Surles, Chair

ATTEST:

Clerk of the Circuit Court

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Heather J. Encinosa, Esq.



	Meeting Agenda
	Item 4A - Minutes
	Attach 1 - November 2023 Minutes

	Item 4B - CMAC Appointment
	Attach 1 - Application

	Item 4C - Executive Director's Timesheets
	Attach 1 - Timesheets

	Item 6A - TIP Amendment Ratification
	Attach 1 - Resolution
	Attach 2 & 3 - Project Pages

	Item 7A - Safety Targets
	Attach 1 - Resolution
	Attach 2 - Target History

	Item 7B - Telecommute Study
	Attach 1 - Study

	Item 10A - Future Meeting Dates
	Item 10B - Committee Actions
	Item 10C - Utilization Report
	Item 10D - Correspondence
	Attach 1 - Email dated 2/13/2024




